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Mr. Okada. Ms. Sinatra replied that she would have to check to see if a copy could be provided;
in fact, she did not and has never provided a copy of the investigative report to Aruze USA,
Mr. Okada, or their counsel.

112. On October 4, 2011, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra met with Mr. Okada and his
counsel. At the meeting, Mr. Wynn stated that Wynn Resorts’ other directors had already
decided that Mr. Okada must be removed as Vice Chairman of the Company’s Board and as a
director of both the Wynn Macau and Wynn Resorts Boards. It apparently did not matter to
Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra that in Nevada only stockholders can remove directors. Based on a
false threat, Mr. Wynn demanded Mr. Okada’s resignation as a director.

113.  Mr. Okada’s counsel told Mr. Wynn that in all his years, he had never before
experienced a situation where the subject of an investigative report had never been formally
questioned or even permitted to respond to the accusations being levied against him. Mr. Okada’s
counsel once again requested a copy of the investigative report so that he and Mr. Okada’s other
attorneys could ensure they were advising Mr. Okada properly and that the Wynn Directors could
make a decision based on accurate information. Over the course of the remainder of the
October 4 mecting, counsel for Mr. Okada asked at least two additional times for a copy of the
investigative report. Ms. Sinatra finally replied that Mr. Okada and his counsel could not see a
copy of the investigative report because it was “privileged.” On information and belief,

Ms. Sinatra once again intentionally misrepresented the law (Mr. Okada, as a director of the
Company, has a right to see the Company’s books and records, including its communications
with counsel), in breach of her duties to Wynn Resorts.

114.  During the October 4, 2011 meeting, Mr. Wynn stated that the purported
“grounds” upon which the other directors based their decision to move against Mr. Okada were as
follows:

. That the Philippines were so corrupt that no one could possibly do business in that

country without violating the FCPA;
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. That *“research” showed Mr. Okada owned land without a Philippines partner, and
that this violated Philippines law;
. That the other directors were “convinced” that Mr. Okada’s use of his Wynn
Resorts business card in other countries had caused a belief that Wynn Resorts was
involved in the Philippine project and that the Company would not be in this
position had he instead used his Universal business card;
. That Mr. Okada had used the Wynn Resorts building design and other trade secrets
without permission; and
. That Mr. Okada had associated with persons who had later been indicted in the
Philippines on charges unrelated to the Philippine project.
115. Mr. Wynn’s characterizations of the allegations are telling for several reasons.
First, many of these claims were not ultimately used as a basis to redeem Aruze USA’s stock.
Rather, Wynn Resorts had an ever-changing list of supposed transgressions it claimed against
Mr. Okada, strongly suggesting that Mr. Wynn and Wynn Resorts were seeking to find something
— anything — to justify a predetermined outcome. Second, many of these claims are demonstrably
false — as one example, the acquisition of the land in the Philippines was entirely compliant with
Philippine law.

116. Mr. Wynn closed the meeting by telling Mr. Okada that if he had any respect for
Mr. Wynn and the other members of the Board, he would voluntarily step down from his role as a
director and Vice Chairman of Wynn Resorts. At this time, Mr. Okada’s counsel explained to
Mr. Wynn that Mr. Okada should not be required to respond to his demand for resignation until
he had time to further consider it. Mr. Wynn agreed and the meeting was adjourned.

117.  Around this same time, the Chairman of Universal’s Compliance Committee also

requested a copy of the investigative report through the Chairman of Wynn Resorts” Compliance

Committee. This request has been ignored.
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C. A Letter From Steve Wynn’s Qutside Lawyer Confirms that, While Wynn
Resorts Had Already Determined the Outcome, a Pretextual “Investigation”
was Only Just Starting

118.  On October 13, 2011, Robert L.. Shapiro, Esq., an attorney retained by Wynn
Resorts, sent a letter to Aruze USA. Without any c¢laboration, the letter reiterated the same
mistaken — and soon to be abandoned — conclusions that Mr. Wynn outlined in the October 4
meeting. Mr. Shapiro also explicitly stated that Universal’s Manila Bay project “raises questions”
regarding “possible violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.” The letter again demanded
Mr. Okada’s resignation.

119.  Curiously, Mr. Shapiro’s letter admitted that the Compliance Committee was only
then beginning the very investigation that Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra claimed to have already
been concluded. They also claimed to have already generated a report. Yet Mr. Shapiro wrote
that “The Compliance Committee of Wynn Resorts must fully investigate the foregoing acts and
have retained Louis J. Freeh ... to conduct an independent investigation.” On information and
belief, as of the date of Mr. Shapiro’s letter, Mr. Freeh had not started his investigation.

D. Wynn Resorts Refuses to Allow Kazuo Okada and Aruze USA to Review Any

Supposed “Evidence”

120.  On October 24, 2011, Mr. Okada through his counsel made an initial demand for
documents regarding the Philippine investigation. Although he was plainly entitled to such
documents as a director under Nevada law, Wynn Resorts refused this and numerous subsequent
demands for documents. Wynn Resorts aimed to conduct a secret investigation and never allow
Mr. Okada or his counsel to scrutinize or respond to the supposed “evidence” against him.

E. The Board Summarily Removes Kazuo Okada As Vice-Chairman

121. At the Board’s November 1, 2011 meeting, Mr. Miller presented an oral report of
an alleged investigation by the Compliance Committee into Mr. Okada’s and Universal’s
activities in the Philippines. The report disclosed that the Compliance Committee had allegedly

conducted one internal and two “independent” investigations into allegations of suitability,
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conflicts of interest, and possible breaches of fiduciary duties related to acquisition of land for the
Philippine project and charitable contributions made by Universal. To date, the contents of these
purported investigations have not been presented to Mr. Okada.

122.  Mr. Miller reported that the Compliance Committee (and not a committee
consisting of the independent directors) had retained Freeh Sporkin & Sullivan LLP (“Frech
Sporkin™) as a special investigator to conduct an investigation into the allegations against
Mr. Okada. The Board — without debate, deliberation, or allowing Mr. Okada a chance to
respond — summarily eliminated Mr. Okada’s position as Vice-Chairman of the Board and ratified
the decision to hire Freeh Sporkin.

F. Kazuo Okada Seeks More Information Regarding Wynn Macau

123. The vehemence of the actions by Mr. Wynn, Ms. Sinatra, Mr. Miller, and the
Board against Mr. Okada is highly suspicious. After all, Mr. Okada had raised concerns about the
donation to the University of Macau before Wynn Resorts had raised any type of unsuitability
allegations against Mr. Okada and before anyone associated with Wynn Resorts even mentioned
the word “redemption” to him. Mr. Okada made several requests for access to Wynn Resorts’
books and records for information relating to the donation made by Wynn Resorts to the
University of Macau, all of which were denied without a valid basis. In the state court of Nevada,
Mr. Okada even filed a petition for a writ of mandamus on January 11, 2012 to compel Wynn
Resorts to grant him access to Wynn Resorts’ books and records. Qkada v. Wynn Resorts, Ltd.,
case number A-12-65422-B, Department XI (the “Inspection Action™). At a hearing on
February 9, 2012, the Court ordered Wynn Resorts to comply with Mr. Okada’s reasonable
requests. In an order dated October 12, 2012, the Court further ordered that Wynn Resorts
produce to Mr. Okada documentation regarding expenditurcs advanced directly or indirectly by

Mr. Wynn in pursuit of gaming concessions in Macau.
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G. Aruze USA Nominates Directors, But Steve Wynn Refuses to Endorse Them

Despite His Obligation to Do So
124.  To further address the concerns about Wynn Resorts management, on January 18,
2012, pursuant to Section 2(a) of the Stockholders Agreement, Aruze USA, submitted a letter to
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Company designating three
individuals as candidates to be considered for nomination as directors of the Company and
included in the Company’s proxy statement relating to the Company’s 2012 annual meeting of
the stockholders or any stockholder meeting held for the purpose of electing Class I directors.
Despite numerous written requests to Mr. Wynn to endorse the slate of directors nominated by
Aruze USA, as required by the Stockholders Agreement, Mr. Wynn refused to do so.

H. The Freeh Investigation Proceeds Without Seeking Any Input From Kazuo

Okada

125.  In early November 2011, counsel for Mr. Okada contacted Freeh Sporkin

requesting further information regarding how its investigation would proceed and to request
copies of documents, evidence, or reports related to the allegations against Mr. Okada.
Mr. Okada requested the documents so that he could address the allegations made against him.
Freeh Sporkin declined to provide any materials and instead directed counsel for Mr. Okada to
make such requests of Mr. Shapiro. When such requests were made of Mr. Shapiro, they were
rejected.

126.  Freeh Sporkin did not contact Mr. Okada or his counsel about an interview until
January 9, 2012, at which time it demanded (not requested) an interview of Mr, Okada during the
week of January 30 (i.e., January 30-February 5). On January 15, 2012, four days after
Mr. Okada filed his Inspection Action, Freeh Sporkin informed Mr. Okada’s counsel that the
“schedule has changed” and pressured Mr. Okada to agree to an interview before the week of
January 30.

127.  On January 19, 2012, Mr. Miller, Chair of Wynn Resorts’ Compliance Committee,

wrote directly to Mr. Okada, threatening that if Mr. Okada failed to make himself available for
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interviews with Freeh Sporkin on January 30 or 31, the Compliance Committee “can only
conclude that you have refused participation.” The letter stated that the Compliance Committee
originally had a goal of receiving a report by the end of 2011, which was extended to January 15,
2012. In addition to this being the first time anyone shared the Compliance Committee’s
purported deadlines with Mr. Okada, these dates are inconsistent with Freeh Sporkin making its
initial request to conduct an interview of Mr. Okada that would take place in the first week of
February. It proved not to be the first time Mr. Miller was “confused” about the “investigation”
that was supposedly operating under his direction.

128.  Mr. Okada had only recently hired new counsel to assist with the response to the
Freeh Sporkin investigation. In order to prepare for the interview, the new counsel requested that
the parties seek a mutually convenient date for an interview by February 15, 2012. Freeh Sporkin
then agreed to schedule the interview on February 15th.

I. Freeh Sporkin Refuses to Provide Meaningful Information Regarding the

Investigation to Kazuo Okada

129.  While attempting to set a date to schedule the Freeh Sporkin interview,
Mr. Okada’s counsel requested that Freeh Sporkin identify the specific matters under review so
that Mr. Okada could prepare appropriately for his interview. After all, Mr. Okada is the
Chairman of a publicly traded corporation — and cannot be expected to know every operational
detail in his organizations. In addition, translations between Japanese and English are notoriously
difficult because of subtleties in language. Mr. Okada’s counsel repeatedly requested documents
that Freeh Sporkin might use in the interview and topics so Mr. Okada could prepare for the
interview and be ready to provide information and documents that could help Freeh Sporkin (and
the Board) understand the facts concerning whatever topics and issues it wanted to discuss with
Mr. Okada.

130.  Freeh Sporkin refused to provide anything more than a statement that it was
investigating “all matters related to Mr. Okada’s, Universal’s, and Aruze’s activities in the

Philippines and Korea.” This was the first time that Korea was even mentioned as the subject of
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any investigation by the Company. Again — the basis of Aruze USA’s supposed “unsuitability”
kept changing.

131.  Instead of sharing the topics of the interview with Mr. Okada, Mr. Freeh chose to
conduct the interview as an ambush, not unlike the hostile interrogation of a suspected criminal,
rather than a respectful and cooperative interview seeking information from a director of Wynn
Resorts. If he was afforded the opportunity to do so, Mr. Okada could have helped Mr. Freeh and
Freeh Sporkin avoid the public embarrassment of a report that is riddled with factual and legal
EITors.

J. Kazuo Okada Voluntarily Sits For A Full-Day Interview With Freeh Sporkin

132.  On February 15, 2012, Mr. Okada sat for a full-day interview with Mr. Freeh and
other lawyers for Freeh Sporkin.

133.  The questions focused mainly on expenses that Mr. Freeh claimed had been paid
by Universal for lodging and meals at Wynn Resorts properties on behalf of persons Mr. Freeh
identified as foreign officials. This was a subject that had never been mentioned in the months
before when Ms. Sinatra asserted that an investigation had already been conducted by the
Company, or when Mr. Wynn or Mr. Shapiro, in a subsequent letter, listed the supposed bases for
the directors taking action to eliminate Mr. Okada’s position as Vice Chairman. Other than
allegations regarding such purported expenses, Mr. Freeh also asked questions about Universal’s
compliance with Philippine landownership requirements, which had been handled for Universal
by one of the Philippines’ leading law firms.

134.  The interview went well into the evening, hours past the time originally estimated
by Mr. Freeh. At the end of the interview, Mr. Okada stated that he would look into the matters
raised during the interview, and that he would be willing to report back with detailed information

once it could be assembled.
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K.

135.

Wynn Resorts Allows No Opportunity for A Reasonable Response

At a press conference following the redemption of Aruze USA’s stock. Mr. Miller

made a number of statements that will prove to be false. One stood out in particular. Mr. Miller

said:

136.

Following the interview, [Mr. Freeh] informed Mr. Okada that he
would be finalizing the report on Friday, February 17, and offered
[Mr. Okada] an opportunity to present any exculpatory evidence
prior to that time frame. [Mr. Frech] determined that no additional
exculpatory evidence was presented, and thus a final report was
presented.

Similarly, the Wynn Resorts Seconded Amended Complaint states that “Freeh

advised Mr. Okada and his counsel that he would be reporting his findings to the Wynn Resorts

Board on February 18, 2012....” (SAC at ] 47.)

137.

Neither statement is true. Mr. Freeh said nothing regarding the date of the

completion of his report at the interview, and, in fact, said at the February 15, 2012 interview of

Mr. Okada that his investigation was not complete and that his report was not complete.

138.

139.

On February 16, 2012, Mr. Okada’s counsel emailed Mr. Freeh stating:

Louis:

I hope you had a good trip back to the US. Following your
interview of Mr. Okada, we understand that you will be drafting a
report for submission to the Wynn Resorts Compliance Committee.
I am writing to request an opportunity for Mr. Okada and Universal
Entertainment to submit additional material for your consideration,
prior to the submission of your report. Please let me know as soon
as you are able if you will allow us to do.

In response, on February 17, 2012, Mr. Freeh, acting as an agent for Wynn

Resorts, oftered two options to Mr. Okada’s counsel:

Joel Friedman called you about 900a today (PT) and left a message
for you to call a well as an email.

I can suggest two possibilities in response to your letter:

First, that you provide me as soon as possible, and no later than
600p PacT today, with a protfer of what Mr. Okada and Universal
wish to submit for additional consideration. Your very able firm
has represented Mr. Okada now for several weeks and you know
the principal areas of our investigation based on Wednesday’s
interview. So I would expect you can make such a proffer.
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Secondly, Mr. Okada will have the opportunity to respond to my
report after he receives a copy, along with the other Wynn Resorts’
directors. 1will certainly consider and evaluate whatever
information may be provided.

[ also note that Mr. Okada’s litigation against Wynn Resorts has
now predicated an SEC inquiry and no doubt drawn the proper
attention of other regulatory agencies. Consequently, the
Compliance Committee has given me instructions to conclude my
report with all deliberate speed.

Anyway, [ have a great deal of respect for you and believe the
above alternatives allow for a fair resolution at this stage.

Best regards.

Loue

(Emphasis added.)

140.

Given the timing, Mr. Okada elected to respond to the Freeh Sporkin report once

he was able to see it, responding through his counsel:

Louis:

Thanks for your response. I am still traveling in Asia, and did not
have a chance to review Joel’s message or contact him. I appreciate
your willingness to review any supplemental information that we
provide and to consider it in your findings. Under the
circumstances, and in particular the tight time framework, I think it
makes the most sense for Mr. Okada, UE, Aruze USA, and our Firm
fo review your report and to use it to focus our efforts in providing
you additional information. So, we accept the second of the two
proposals in your letter, and would expect that the opportunity to
respond will include an opportunity for our law firm to work with
Mr. Okada, UE, and Aruze USA in order to be able to respond in a
complete and helpful fashion. Thanks very much.

(Emphasis added.)

141.
142.

Mr. Freeh responded “Thanks Tom and safe travels.”

Curiously, about an hour and half later (now late in the day on Friday,

February 17), Mr. Freeh sent a second response, stating:

Just to confirm, I will now deliver my report to the Compliance
Committee having completed my investigation regarding the
matters under inquiry. It is my understanding that the Compliance
Committee will thereafter provide all of the Directors, including
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Mr. Okada, with a copy of the report. As we both stated,

Mr. Okada can then submit any responses to the report which will
be considered and evaluated. However, the report I am submitting
is not a ‘draft’ subject to being finalized after Mr. Okada provides
any response. Rather this is akin to a final brief being submitted
with the opportunity for a response to be made.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Best regards

Louie

143.  This statement would prove to be misleading. As it turned out, Wynn Resorts
refused to give Mr. Okada a copy of the Freeh Sporkin report and then purported to redeem Aruze
USA’s stock (at a nearly $1 billion discount) on the day the other Wynn Directors received the
report, without giving Mr. Okada any reasonable opportunity to respond.

144. In addition, Mr. Freeh’s statement that he was preparing a “final brief’ is very
telling about how Mr. Freeh viewed his role in the process. Mr. Freeh was not preparing an
objective report of the facts by an “independent” investigator — he was providing the Board with
an argumentative document as an advocate against Mr. Okada. But even so, Mr. Freeh clearly
contemplated that Mr. Okada would and should have the opportunity for a response.
Nevertheless, spurred on by Mr. Wynn, the Board ignored Mr. Freeh’s promise of an opportunity
to respond to the report (and the express statements in Mr. Freeh’s report that further
investigation would be needed on certain topics), and instead acted rashly to redeem Aruze
USA’s stock on an incomplete factual record and a faulty understanding of governing legal
principles, including, for example, the application of the FCPA to the facts, as well as Wynn
Resorts’ (lack of) contractual rights to attempt to redeem Aruze USA’s stock.

L. Steve Wynn Hurriedly Schedules Board of Directors Meeting

145. On February 15, 2012, scant hours after the completion of Mr. Freeh’s interview
of Mr. Okada, Wynn Resorts noticed a special meeting of its Board. The meeting was set for
Saturday, February 18, 2012, at 9:00 a.m. in Las Vegas — which is 2:00 a.m. Sunday morning in

Japan. Although the notice for the Board meeting went out immediately following the conclusion
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of the interview of Mr. Okada, and was scheduled to occur a mere three days after the interview,
Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra included on the agenda a review of the Freeh Sporkin report.
M. Steve Wynn Tries to Use the Threat of Redemption to Buy Aruze USA’s
Stock at a Substantial Discount
146.  Following the interview, Mr. Wynn communicated to Aruze USA through

intermediaries that, instead of having the Board consider the Freeh Sporkin report, Mr. Wynn

‘would be willing to buy Aruze USA’s stock for his benefit at a significant discount off of the fair

value of the shares. Mr. Wynn, through his intermediaries stated that in exchange for Aruze USA
selling its stock to Mr. Wynn, Mr. Wynn would ensure that the Freeh Sporkin report would not be
disclosed. A sale to Mr. Wynn was presented as an alternative to the public embarrassment and
regulatory issues attendant to possible disclosure of the Freeh Sporkin report. Aruze USA did not
accede to these demands, ultimately causing Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra to make
good on their threats and commence a systematic process of defaming Mr. Okada, Aruze USA,
and Universal and precipitating the redemption Aruze USA’s shares at a $1 billion discount off
the fair value of the shares.

147.  On information and belief, this is not the first time Mr. Wynn has attempted to co-
opt state gaming regulations to consolidate his ownership and control over a gaming company.
According to published reports, in 1980, Mr. Wynn forced out the second largest shareholder of
the Golden Nugget, Inc., Mr. Edward Doumani. Mr. Doumani was also a board member, and had
expressed concerns about Mr. Wynn’s practices as CEO of the Golden Nugget. Mr. Wynn
eventually strong-armed Mr. Doumani into selling his stake by threatening to instigate an
investigation of Mr. Doumani, contending that his continued association with the company
caused a risk to a potential gaming license in Atlantic City. Three decades later, Mr. Wynn
attempted the same scam, only this time Aruze USA refused to accede to Mr. Wynn’s demand to

sell him its stock on the cheap.
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V. WYNN RESORTS’ UNFOUNDED AND UNPRECEDENTED REDEMPTION OF

MORE THAN §2.9 BILLION OF ARUZE USA’S SHARES

A. Wynn Resorts Publicly Asserts That the Value of Aruze USA’s Stock Is $2.9

Billion

148. In a letter to Aruze USA’s counsel dated December 15, 2011, Mr. Shapiro asserted
that Aruze USA’s shares were worth approximately $2.7 billion.

149.  Hardly a month later (and a mere 22 days before purporting to redeem the shares),
on January 27, 2012, Wynn Resorts filed its opposition papers in response to Mr. Okada’s
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus. In that court filing, Wynn Resorts declared that Aruze USA’s
holdings were worth more than $2.7 billion, stating that Aruze USA’s shares are “valued at
approximately $2.9 billion[.]” In the 22 days following Wynn Resorts’ $2.9 billion valuation of
Aruze USA’s stock, Aruze USA’s stock was not sold, transferred, or further encumbered by any
additional restrictions.

B. The Board Hurriedly Meets and Rushes to Redeem Aruze USA’s Stock

150.  On February 17, 2012, Mr. Okada’s counsel contacted Wynn Resorts’
representatives to express Mr. Okada’s concerns with the substantive and procedural process for
the Company’s investigation, and stated that any discussion of unsuitability or redemption,
including any discussion involving the Freeh Sporkin report at the February 18 Board meeting,
would be premature.

151.  Rather than addressing the substantive and procedural issues raised by Mr. Okada
and his counsel, Wynn Resorts responded briefly, informing Mr. Okada’s counsel that additional
accommodations would not be made to facilitate translation to enable Mr. Okada’s participation
by teleconference. The Company also informed Mr. Okada’s counsel that, despite the seriousness
of the accusations against him, Mr. Okada was not permitted to have counsel present for the
Board call.

152, When it came time for the meeting, at 2:00 a.m. on Sunday morning, Mr. Okada

sat ready to participate by telephone. Mr. Wynn yelled at Mr. Okada’s counsel when he
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introduced himself. Mr. Wynn also said that Mr. Okada’s counsel could not be present to advise
Mr. Okada even though counsel made clear that he would not address the meeting. (At the threat
of having Mr. Okada’s telephone connection to the meeting severed, Mr. Okada’s counsel had to
sit outside the room while the meeting went on, despite Wynn Resorts having a battery of lawyers
from multiple law firms present on its end of the line.) Mr. Wynn and a company lawyer
informed Mr. Okada that — despite prior assurances that Mr. Okada would receive a copy of the
Freeh Sporkin report along with the other directors — he would not receive a copy of the report
unless both he and his legal counsel signed a nondisclosure agreement. The nondisclosure
agreement would have arguably precluded Mr. Okada from using the report in legal proceedings.
Mr. Okada did not sign the nondisclosure agreement.

153. As alleged in detail below, a few hours after demanding that Mr. Okada sign the
nondisclosure agreement claiming confidentiality, Wynn Resorts “leaked” a copy of the Freeh
Sporkin report to the Wall Streef Journal and attached a copy to its Complaint in this action,

154.  There were numerous translation problems during the Board meeting. Mr. Wynn
provided a translator who was woefully unable to perform an accurate simultaneous translation.
Mr. Okada requested that the translation be provided sequentially (with each speaker and the
translator speaking in turn) rather than simultaneously (with the translator speaking at the same
time as the speaker at the meeting), but this request was denied. As a result, Mr. Okada could not
follow or participate in the proceedings.

155. In this way, Mr. Okada sat and listened while Mr. Freeh made a presentation in
English that Mr. Okada could not understand. After Mr. Freeh completed his presentation, the
Board asked if Mr. Okada had any questions. Mr. Okada stated that he could not understand the
presentation, and that he would be able to address the claims of the report only after receiving a
copy and discussing with counsel. Mr. Okada also asked the Board to delay making any
resolutions until he could respond to the FFreeh Sporkin report.

156. At some point, someone at Wynn Resorts hung up the telephone, cutting

Mr. Okada off from the meeting. Mr. Okada waited to be reconnected, staying up until the sun
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rose in Asia, all the while not knowing whether the Board had resolved anything following the
presentation by Mr. Freeh. Ms. Sinatra later claimed that cutting off the telephone connection to
Mr. Okada was a “misunderstanding.” No other contact was made with Mr. Okada.

157. At 1:45 am PT on February 19, 2012, Aruze USA’s counsel received
correspondence, containing a notice of determination of unsuitability and a purported redemption
notice. In the redemption notice, the Company stated that it would redeem Aruze USA’s stock
for a promissory note of approximately $1.936 billion, a discount of exactly 30% off the $2.7
billion value measured by the stock market’s valuation of the stock based on the prior day’s
closing price and 33% less than the value (i.e., $2.9 billion) Wynn Resorts had publicly
proclaimed three weeks before.

158.  Although Wynn Resorts had claimed the Freeh Sporkin report was confidential
and tried to extract a signature from both Mr. Okada and his legal counsel in order to see the
report prior to redemption, a copy of the report was leaked to the Wall Street Journal in the early
morning Eastern Time of February 19, 2012. Almost immediately, reports appeared on the Wall
Street Journal website regarding the contents of the report.

159. In addition, at 2:14 a.m. PT on February 19, 2012, Wynn Resorts electronically
filed a complaint attaching the supposedly confidential Freeh Sporkin report (without exhibits).

160.  Despite repeated requests to Ms. Sinatra and Mr. Shapiro, Mr. Okada’s counsel
only obtained a copy of the “confidential” report when it sent a messenger to court on
February 21, 2012, the first court day following the weekend Board meeting. Wynn Resorts
refused to provide the Freeh Sporkin report’s exhibits to Mr. Okada or Aruze USA until ordered
to do so by this Court.

C. Aruze USA Disputes That Redemption Has Occurred

161. In public statements, representatives of Wynn Resorts have claimed redemption is
complete and that the securities formerly held by Aruze USA have been cancelled. Aruze USA
disputes that this has happened. Among other reasons, as explained elsewhere in this

Counterclaim, the purported redemption is void ab initio because it is in violation of the
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Stockholders Agreement, which predates the amended Articles of Incorporation purporting to
grant Wynn Resorts a right of redemption.

D. The Board Redeems on False Premises

162. Even if Aruze USA were bound by the redemption provision (which Aruze USA
disputes), the Articles of Incorporation only purport to allow redemption in three situations.

163.  First, according to the Articles of Incorporation, Wynn can redeem when it “is
determined by a Gaming Authority to be unsuitable to Own or Control any Securities or
unsuitable to be connected or affiliated with a Person engaged in Gaming Activities in a Gaming
Jurisdiction.” This has not occurred. In fact, Aruze USA has been found to be “suitable” by the
Nevada gaming authorities.

164. Second, according to the Articles of Incorporation, Wynn can redeem when a
person “causes the Corporation or any Affiliated Company to lose or to be threatened with the
loss of any Gaming License.” This has not occurred.

165. Third, Wynn Resorts’ Articles of Incorporation profess that the Company can
redeem where a person “in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the Corporation, is
deemed likely to jeopardize the Corporation’s or any Affiliated Company’s [a] application for,
[b] receipt of approval for, [c] right to the use of, or [d] entitlement, to any Gaming License.”
Subsections [a] and [b] do not apply because, on information and belief, at the time of redemption
Wynn Resorts had no present plan to apply for a license and was not awaiting approval of any
pending application. So, even under the standards of the Articles of Incorporation, Wynn Resorts
could only seek redemption upon a showing that Aruze USA’s stock ownership was “likely to

7 &8

jeopardize” Wynn Resorts’ “right to the use of, or entitlement to” its existing gaming licenses.
166. No such showing was made in the rushed Freeh Sporkin report. In fact, in the

gaming industry, any impact on the right to use or entitlement to a gaming license requires action

by the cognizant gaming authority. No gaming authority has found Aruze USA, Universal, or

Mr. Okada to be “unsuitable.” Furthermore, association with an “unsuitable” person would only

conceivably create a problem for a gaming license afier that person has been found by a gaming
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authority to be unsuitable. Even then, such concerns can be addressed via a voting trust or
orderly sale of shares. If Wynn Resorts’ true aim was to disassociate itself from Aruze USA in
order to protect its interests, it failed miserably. Even if the redemption were effective, Aruze
USA would now be Wynn Resorts’ largest holder of debt — a circumstance which would be
impermissible under Nevada law if Aruze USA were truly “unsuitable.” Under the
circumstances, it is obvious that the supposed redemption of Aruze USA’s shares was simply a
pretext to seek to quiet a potential dissident shareholder and director, increase the relative
ownership interests of the Board members by virtue of their shareholdings in Wynn Resorts, and
to enhance and maintain Mr. Wynn’s personal control over Wynn Resorts.
E. Even if Aruze USA Were Subject to the Redemption Provision (Which it is

Not), the Wynn Parties are Still Liable for Breaching and/or Tortiously

Interfering with the Stockholders Agreement and Amended Stockholders

Agreement.

167. Even1if Aruze USA were subject to the redemption provision, which it is not, the

Wynn Parties are not excused from breaching and/or tortiously interfering with the Stockholders
Agreement when they purported to redeem Aruze USA’s shares. Steve Wynn was bound by the
terms of the Stockholders Agreement before he unilaterally amended the Articles of Incorporation
to include a purported redemption right. The remainder of the Wynn Parties also knew or
reasonably should have known that Aruze USA’s shares were subject to the limitations of the
Shareholders Agreement and Amended Shareholders Agreement when they purported to utilize
their discretionary authority under the Articles of Incorporation to redeem Aruze USA’s shares.
Thus, even if the redemption provision of the Articles of Incorporation applies to Aruze USA, the

Wynn Parties are liable for all harm caused to Aruze USA as a result of the redemption.

45

DEFENDANTS’ FOURTH AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM

PA001456




O e 0

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

F. Even if Aruze USA Was Subject to the Redemption Provision (Which it is
Not), the Unilateral Blanket 30% Discount that Wynn Resorts Applied to the
Stock is Erroneous and the Promissory Note is Unconscionably Vague,
Ambiguous, and Oppressive

168. According to a press release dated February 19, 2012, Wynn Resorts issued a note
in the amount of $1.936 billion to Aruze USA. This amount is exactly 30% less than the market
value of Aruze USA’s stock as measured by the closing price of Wynn Resorts’ stock on the
Friday prior to the Saturday Board meeting. According to its press release, Wynn Resorts arrived
at this value because “it engaged an independent financial advisor to assist in the fair value
calculation and concluded that a discount to the current trading price was appropriate because of
restrictions on most of the shares which are subject to the terms of an existing stockholder
agrecment,” The irony here is rich, because the Stockholders Agreement, by its terms, either
precludes the redemption of Aruze USA’s stock altogether or, alternately, the transfer restrictions
are not binding on Aruze USA as a result of Steve Wynn’s and Elaine Wynn’s breach of the
Stockholders Agreement (by voting in favor of the redemption of Aruze USA’s shares and by
Steve Wynn'’s failure to vote in favor of directors nominated by Aruze USA). The transfer
restrictions are also invalid and unenforceable to the extent that they constitute an illegal restraint
on alienability. Thus, the restrictions in the Stockholders Agreement could not legitimately
impact the value of Aruze USA’s shares so as to support a discount against the market price.

169. The February 19, 2012 Wynn Resorts press release also falsely stated that the
redemption process in the Articles of Incorporation had “been [in place] since the Company’s
inception.” This is untrue, as Mr. Wynn unilaterally amended the Articles of Incorporation to
include the purported redemption language months affer Wynn Resorts was created, and nearly
90 days after Aruze USA agreed to invest in Wynn Resorts and committed its interests in Valvino
to Wynn Resorts. Wynn Resorts and Mr. Wynn thus sought to continue their fraudulent scheme
by publishing a false basis under which Wynn Resorts purported to have the authority to redeem

Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock.
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170. Nevertheless, hoping to unilaterally decide on a “clearance” price for Aruze
USA’s almost 20% shareholder interest in the Company, Wynn Resorts relied solely on one
opinion from Moelis & Company (“Moelis™), which has done business with Wynn Resorts in the
past.

171.  Mr. Wynn and Kenneth Mocelis (“Mr. Moelis”) — the founder of Moelis — go way
back. Mr. Moelis first worked with Mr. Wynn when Mr. Moelis worked at the investment
banking firm of Drexel Burnham Lambert (“Drexel”). At Drexel, Mr. Moelis was the banker
who helped Mr. Wynn finance his Golden Nugget Casino in Atlantic City and Mirage casino in
Las Vegas. On information and belief, Mr. Wynn has a close personal and professional
relationship with Mr. Moelis. According to press reports, Mr. Moelis has stated that he would
take the first flight out of LAX to rush to the assistance of Mr. Wynn. Mr. Wynn reciprocates
Mr. Moelis’ loyalty and support. Among other things, Mr. Wynn engaged Mr. Moelis to serve as
the lead underwriter of Wynn Resorts® $210 million common stock offering in March 2009.

172, Mr. Wynn called on Mr. Moelis’ loyalty in this case. Despite the fact that at least
some of the stock was exempted from the Stockholders Agreement, Moelis discounted Aruze
USA’s more than $2.7 billion shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock by around 30%.

173.  The terms of the note are unreasonable and one-sided in the extreme, completely
lacking reasonable and customary terms used to protect and preserve the interests of the note
holder. Among other things, the amount of compensation paid for Aruze USA’s shares do not
reflect the “fair value” of the shares under the Articles of Incorporation and/or under governing
law. Additionally, the hastily issued, ten-year $1.936 billion promissory note 1s unsecured and
fully subordinated, not merely to current outstanding Wynn Resorts debt, but potentially to all
future debt Wynn Resorts may incur, and pays a mere 2% interest per annum. In contrast, for
example, less than a month after the purported redemption, Wynn Resorts issued $900 million
aggregate principal amount in collateralized notes paying 5.375% interest. Moreover, though
Nevada gaming regulations do not permit an “unsuitable” person from holding debt of a publicly-

traded licensee, by its terms the note sent to Aruze USA is not even transferable. Wynn Resorts
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prepared the promissory note without any input from Mr. Okada, or any representative at Aruze

USA, forcibly imposing an unsecured, non-transferrable, non-voting, un-marketable, severely

discounted and oppressive debt instrument on its largest shareholder.

G.

174.
175.

The Timing of the Redemption Demonstrates that Wynn Resorts Redeemed

Aruze USA’s Shares Based on Material, Non-Public Information that Was

Not Incorporated Into the Redemption Price
On March 2, 2012, Wynn Resorts released a Form 8-K.

The Form 8-K purported to disclose positive news regarding Wynn Resorts’

efforts in Macau to receive certain land concessions related to Cotai:

As previously disclosed ... Wynn Macau, Limited (“WML”), an
indirect subsidiary of the Registrant with ordinary shares of its
common stock listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, announced that Palo Real Estate Company Limited
(“Palo”) and Wynn Resorts (Macau) S.A. (“Wynn Macau”), each
an indirect subsidiary of the Registrant, formally accepted the terms
and conditions of a land concession contract (the “Land Concession
Contract”) from the government (the “Macau Government™) of the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China (“Macau”) in respect of approximately 51 acres of land in the
Cotai area of Macau (the “Cotai Land™). The Land Concession
Contract permits Palo and Wynn Macau to develop a resort
containing a five-star hotel, gaming areas, retail, entertainment.
food and beverage, spa and convention offerings on the Cotai Land.

The LLand Concession Contract was published in the official gazette
of Macau (the “Gazette™) on January [+] 2012. Effective from such
publication date, Palo will lease the Cotai Land from the Macau
Government for an initial term of 25 years with the right to renew
the Land Concession Contract for additional successive periods,
subject to applicable legislation. The Land Concession Contract
also requires that Wynn Macau, as a gaming concessionaire,
operate and manage gaming operations on the Cotai Land. In
addition, as previously disclosed in the Registrant’s filings with the
Commission, on August 1, 2008, Palo and certain affiliates of the
Registrant entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
unrelated third party to make a one-time payment in the amount of
US $50 million in consideration of the latter’s relinquishment of
certain rights in and to any future development on the Cotai Land.
The Agreement provides that such payment be made within 15 days
after the publication of the Land Concession Contract in the
Gazette.

The foregoing description of the Land Concession Contract is

qualified in its entirety by reference to the full English translation of

the Land Concession Contract (originally published in the Gazette
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in traditional Chinese and Portuguese), which is filed as
Exhibit 10.1 hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Dollar
amounts in the Land Concession Contract refer to Macau Patacas.

176.  Such a land concession is significant positive development for Wynn Resorts. In
fact, Wynn Resorts’ stock immediately spiked 6% on this news.

177.  After initially attempting to backtrack from the filing as a “mistake,” Wynn
Resorts filed another Form 8-K on May 2, 2012. The Form 8-K reconfirmed the material
information Wynn Resorts disclosed on March 2, 2012.

178. On information and belief, these positive developments in Macau (or elsewhere in
Wynn Resorts operational sphere) were imminent and known by Wynn Resorts. To the extent
that the redemption of Aruze USA’s stock actually occurred, Wynn Resorts redeemed Aruze
USA’s stock based on this material, non-public information. Although Wynn Resorts claims to
have purchased Aruze USA’s stock using the current stock market value, Wynn Resorts knew,
but failed to disclose, that the stock market value did not reflect the land concession contract that
it had obtained in Macau. Therefore, Wynn Resorts continued its fraudulent and misleading
omission of this information in calculating the redemption price knowingly based on materially
misleading information.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT1
Declaratory Relief

(By Aruze USA and Universal Against Wynn Resorts and the Wynn Directors)

179.  Aruze USA and Universal reassert and reallege Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as
if set forth in full below.

180. Aruze USA and Universal seek a judicial declaration that the purported
redemption of Aruze USA’s shares is void ab initio, and that Aruze USA is the owner of
24,549,222 shares or 19.66% of the total outstanding common stock of Wynn Resorts, with all
rights and privileges appurtenant thereto (including, but not limited to, payment of dividends and
voting rights). This declaration is appropriate because, as alleged above: (1) the redemption

provision in the Articles of Incorporation is inapplicable to the Wynn Resorts’ stock owned by
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Aruze USA because Aruze USA entered into the Stockholders Agreement, which prevented any
further restrictions without agreement of the parties and vested in Aruze USA the “sole power of
disposition” of its shares, before the enactment of the redemption provision; (2) the redemption
provision in the Articles of Incorporation is inconsistent with Nevada law and public policy, and
thus void; (3) the Board lacked a sufficient basis for a finding of “unsuitability” or for
redemption; and/or, (4) the redemption provision as written and as applied is unconscionable.

181. In addition or alternatively, Al;uze USA and Universal seek a judicial declaration
that the redemption provision in Wynn Resorts” Articles of Incorporation is invalid as a matter of
law because 1t is impermissibly vague, contrary to law and public policy, and/or unconscionable.
This declaration is appropriate because, among other things, Nevada gaming regulators are given
the authority under the laws of Nevada to make determinations regarding “suitability.” The
redemption provision in Wynn Resorts’ Articles of Incorporation purportedly relied on here by
the Wynn Directors improperly and illegally usurps that authority. Furthermore, if and when
Nevada gaming regulators were to make such a determination, redemption that simply replaces
equity with debt is ineffective to effect a disassociation; the redemption provision, therefore,
would not comply with Nevada law.

182. In addition or alternatively, Aruze USA and Universal seek a judicial declaration
that the Board resolution finding Aruze USA, Universal, and Mr. Okada “unsuitable” was
procedurally and/or substantively defective and contrary to the Articles of Incorporation and/or
Nevada law. As alleged in detail above, this declaration is appropriate because the Wynn
Directors’ finding that there was a likely jeopardy to Wynn Resorts’ gaming licenses lacked a
sound foundation and was made without a thorough and complete review of relevant law, facts,
and evidence.

183.  In addition or alternatively, Aruze USA and Universal seek a judicial declaration
that the Board resolution to redeem Aruze USA’s shares was procedurally and/or substantively
defective, and contrary to law and public policy. As alleged in detail above, this declaration is

appropriate because (1) the Stockholders Agreement, executed before the redemption provision
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was added to the Articles of Incorporation, prevented any further restrictions on Aruze USA’s
shares without agreement of the parties and vested in Aruze USA the “sole power of disposition”
of its shares; (2) the Board lacked a sufficient basis for a finding of “unsuitability” or redemption
and made its findings without a thorough and complete review of relevant law, facts, and
evidence; (3) the redemption provision in the Articles of Incorporation is inconsistent with
Nevada law and public policy, and thus void; and, (4) the redemption provision, as written and as
applied, is unconscionable.

184.  Alternatively, to the extent that redemption is not otherwise barred, Aruze USA
and Universal seek a judicial declaration that the form and amount of compensation paid for
Aruze USA’s shares was improper and/or inadequate and that Aruze USA is entitled to cash in an
amount equivalent to at least the closing price of the stock on February 17, 2012. Indeed, Wynn
Resorts asserted in a court filing dated January 27, 2012, that “[w]ith holdings valued at
approximately $2.9 billion, Aruze is one of Wynn’s largest sharecholders.” As alleged in detail
above, this declaration is appropriate because simply converting Wynn Resorts’ largest
shareholder to Wynn Resorts’ largest creditor serves no valid legal purpose. Furthermore, the
discount applied to Aruze USA’s shares based on the transfer restrictions of the Stockholder
Agreement is invalid because of Steve Wynn’s and Elaine Wynn’s prior breach of the
Stockholders Agreement. Moreover, the amount and form of compensation paid for Aruze
USA’s shares does not represent the “fair value” of the shares under the Articles of Incorporation
and governing law. The “fair value” of the Aruze USA’s stock at the time of the redemption
should not have included any discount for the transfer restrictions or lack of marketability of
Aruze USA’s stock. In addition, the valuation by Moelis was not objective, independent, or the
product of sound financial analysis, and, among other things, did not consider material non-public
information available to Wynn Resorts that would militate in favor of a higher valuation, did not
account for the premium that would be applied to such a large block of shares, and did not

consider the extent to which transfer restrictions were not valid as to Aruze USA.
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185.  Aruze USA and Universal bring this claim within the relevant statute of limitations
under Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from
the purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about
February 18, 2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA and Universal did
not and could not reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

186. An actual justifiable controversy has arisen between parties whose interests are
adverse, and the dispute is ripe for adjudication. Wynn Resorts acted unlawfully when it
purported to “redeem” Aruze USA’s equity interest in Wynn Resorts.

187. It has been necessary for Aruze USA and Universal to retain the services of
attorneys to prosecute this action, and Aruze USA and Universal are entitled to an award of the
reasonable value of said services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT 11

Permanent Prohibitory Injunction
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts and the Wynn Directors)

188.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

189. Aruze USA seeks a permanent injunction enjoining and restraining Wynn Resorts
and the Wynn Directors, their agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all those acting in
concert or in active participation with Wynn Resorts, from enforcing a redemption notice upon
Aruze USA, and from engaging in any efforts to redeem Aruze USA’s equity holdings in Wynn
Resorts, including but not limited to making any demands that Aruze USA surrender its Wynn
Resorts stock, instructing any transfer agent for Wynn Resorts’ stock to effect any transfer or
cancellation of Aruze USA’s Wynn Resorts stock, and/or making any other changes to Wynn
Resorts’ stock ledger regarding Aruze USA’s stock.

190. For the reasons alleged above, the purported redemption is invalid as a matter of
law and violated applicable contracts, and/or depends on provisions of contracts that are

unenforceable as a matter of law. Even if there were a potentially valid legal mechanism to
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redeem Aruze USA’s stock, which there is not, redemption would be inappropriate in this case
because the Board lacked sufficient basis to find Aruze USA or any of its affiliates or employees
“unsuitable.”

191.  Harm will result if relief is not granted because Aruze USA’s interest in Wynn
Resorts is not fungible and Aruze USA’s status as the largest shareholder in Wynn Resorts cannot
be fully remedied through damages.

192.  Injunctive relief poses no appreciable risk of undue prejudice to Wynn Resorts and
the Wynn Directors.

193.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012, Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

194. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT III

Permanent Mandatory Injunction
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts and the Wynn Directors)

195.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

196.  To the extent it might be determined that Wynn Resorts’ purported redemption has
already occurred, Aruze USA secks a permanent mandatory injunction directing Wynn Resorts
and the Wynn Directors, their agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all those acting in
concert or in active participation with Wynn Resorts, to restore Aruze USA’s ownership interest

in Wynn Resorts. The injunction sought should restore both Aruze USA’s ownership interest, as
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well as the value of Aruze USA’s stock, and all dividends and other rights and privileges accruing
to the shares.

197.  For the reasons alleged above, the purported redemption was contrary to law and
violated applicable contracts, and/or depends on provisions of contracts that are unenforceable as
a matter of law. Even if there were a potentially valid legal mechanism to redeem Aruze USA’s
stock, redemption would be inappropriate in this case because the Board lacked sufficient basis to
find Aruze USA or any of its affiliates or employees unsuitable.

198.  Harm will result if relief is not granted because Aruze USA’s interest in Wynn
Resorts is not fungible and Aruze USA’s status as the largest shareholder in Wynn Resorts cannot
be fully remedied through damages.

199.  Injunctive relief poses no appreciable risk of undue prejudice to Wynn Resorts and
the Wynn Directors.

200. To the extent that Aruze USA cannot be restored to its status and/or its full rights
as a Wynn Resorts shareholder, and to the extent further compensation is warranted or punitive or
exemplary damages are warranted, Aruze USA seeks damages from Wynn Resorts in an amount
to make Aruze USA whole, as alleged in multiple damages counts below.

201.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

202. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said

services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.
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COUNT IV

Breach of Contract in Connection with Wynn Resorts’ Involuntary Redemption
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn and Elaine Wynn)

203.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

204.  The Stockholders Agreement, with Mr. Wynn in 2002, and as amended in 2010 to
include Ms. Wynn as a party, forms a contractual relationship and understanding between, inter
alia, Aruze USA, Mr. Wynn, and Elaine Wynn,

205.  The Stockholders Agreement between Aruze USA, Mr. Wynn, and Elaine Wynn
prohibits the involuntary disposition of any shares of Wynn Resorts held by Aruze USA.
Specifically, the Stockholders Agreement provides that Aruze USA “shall be the record and
Beneficial owner of all of the [Wynn Resorts’ common] Shares. . . [and] shall have the sole
power of disposition [and ] sole power of conversion...” over its shares in Wynn Resorts and
there arc “no material limitations, qualification or restrictions on such rights....” (Emphasis
added.)

206.  Any redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts is an involuntary
disposition of Aruze USA’s shares in violation of the Stockholders Agreement. By voting in
favor of the redemption, Steve Wynn and Elaine Wynn did knowingly, willfully, and
intentionally breach the Stockholders Agreement.

207.  Aruze USA has been damaged in excess of $10,000.

208.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts” stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not

reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.
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209. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT YV

Breach of Articles of Incorporation/Breach of Contract in Connection with Wynn Resorts’
Discounting Method of Involuntary Redemption
- (By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts)

210.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 172 above as if set forth
in full below.

211.  Inthe alternative, to the extent the Court finds that the redemption provision in the
Articles of Incorporation applies to Aruze USA’s shares, Wynn Resorts’ involuntary redemption
breaches the terms of the Agreement.

212.  Wynn Resorts” Articles of Incorporation provides that fair value will be provided
for shares redeemed under its provisions.

213.  On or about February 18, 2012, Wynn Resorts purportedly redeemed Aruze USA’s
shares for far less than the value of the shares, ¢.g., as reflected by the closing market price of
Wynn Resorts’ stock on NASDAQ.

214.  Wynn Resorts improperly discounted the fair value of the Aruze USA stock to the
extent the Stockholders Agreement is not enforceable as a result of Mr. Wynn’s and Elaine
Wynn'’s breach of the Stockholders Agreement. In addition, the purported stock restrictions
impose an unreasonable restraint on alienation and are therefore unenforceable.

215.  Inthe alternative, if the Stockholders Agreement is enforceable, Wynn Resorts
used an excessive discount amount and failed to provide fair value for Aruze USA’s stock.

216.  Among other things, although known to Wynn Resorts, Wynn Resorts did not take
into account material non-public information concerning positive developments for Wynn Resorts
regarding the Cotai land concession in Macau, as well as other positive non-public information,

when redeeming Aruze USA’s shares for far less than the value of the shares. Furthermore,
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Wynn Resorts’ unilateral valuation did not account for the premium that would be applied to such
a large block of shares.

217.  Aruze USA has been damaged in excess of $10,000.

218.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

219. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT VI

Breach of Fiduciary Duty
(By Aruze USA Against the Wynn Directors)

220.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

221. Directors of a corporation owe a fiduciary duty to the corporation and to its
shareholders, including a duty of care and a duty of loyalty toward the corporation and each
shareholder.

222, Under Nevada law, directors of a corporation are individually liable to a
stockholder for any act or failure to act that constitutes a breach of fiduciary duty.

223.  The terms of the Wynn Resorts’ Articles of Incorporation purported to define an
“Unsuitable Person™ as a person who “in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the
[Wynn Resorts], is deemed likely to jeopardize [ Wynn Resorts’] or any Affiliated Company’s ...
right to the use of, or entitlement to, any Gaming Licenses.”

224.  The Wynn Directors abused their discretion in finding Aruze USA, Universal, and

Mr. Okada “unsuitable” and resolving to have the Company cause the purported redemption of
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Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock. The outcome of the Compliance Committee’s
“investigation” was already determined prior to engaging a supposedly “independent”
investigator, which then openly acted as an advocate against Aruze USA, Universal, and

Mr. Okada rather than providing an objective, balanced, and fully informed review of the facts
and law. Despite the fact that Freeh Sporkin informed the Board that further investigation would
be required with respect to matters encompassed by its report, and despite assurances that Aruze
USA, Mr. Okada, and Universal would be permitted to respond substantively to the report, the
Wynn Directors deprived them of an opportunity to understand and to present any information to
address the allegations against them prior to the vote on redemption.

225.  On information and belief, the Wynn Directors acted at the direction of Mr. Wynn
and abandoned their own independence and objectivity in evaluating the allegations. The Wynn
Directors failed to conduct a fair, comprehensive, and thoughtful investigation, and failed to
ensure that they were properly and adequately informed before acting.

226.  Wynn Resorts, at the direction of Mr. Wynn, conducted an “investigation™ that
was hurried, incomplete, one-sided, and unfair to Aruze USA, with a result that was preordained
by Mr. Wynn and his cohorts before the “investigator”” was even hired. Aruze USA was not
given an opportunity to review the allegations against it or rebut or address any findings of
improper conduct or any other supposed basis for redemption. The entire process was tainted by
the desire to serve Mr. Wynn’s pretextual goals of removing Aruze USA as the largest single
shareholder of the Company, silencing Mr. Okada, and consolidating and maintaining
Mr. Wynn’s control over Wynn Resorts. Such actions do not withstand any standard of
fundamental fairness or due process.

227.  Further, the purported redemption was voted on by persons with irreconcilable
conflicts of interest, including breaches of the duty of loyalty, the duty of care, and the duty of
good faith.

228. Through their acts, the Wynn Directors have acted in a manner that seeks to

deprive Aruze USA alone from its right to vote its shares, receive dividends, elect directors, and
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to utilize other privileges incident to controlling the largest single block of shares in a publicly
traded company.

229.  Harm will result if relief is not granted because Aruze USA’s more than $2.7
billion equity stake in Wynn Resorts will be instantaneously and irreversibly damaged by the
Company’s purported action to convert Aruze USA’s substantial ownership interest into a wholly
subordinated ten-year promissory note in a principal amount 30% less than the fair market value
of the stock, and paying a mere 2% percent interest, without providing Aruze USA any voting
rights, rights to dividends, or the right to transfer the note.

230.  As a further direct and proximate result of the wrongful conduct by the Wynn
Directors, as alleged herein, Aruze USA was and continues to be damaged in an amount in excess
of $10,000.

231. Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
recasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

232. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT VII

Imposition of a Constructive Trust and Unjust Enrichment
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts)
233.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.
234. By engaging the in the wrongful conduct alleged herein, Wynn Resorts
purportedly redeemed Aruze USA’s stock in exchange for a wholly subordinated, unsecured ten-

year promissory note in a principal amount at least 30% less than the fair value of Aruze USA’s
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stock, and paying a mere 2% interest, without providing Aruze USA any voting rights, rights to
dividends, or the right to transfer the note.

235.  Asaresult of the relationship between the parties and the facts stated above, Wynn
Resorts will be unjustly enriched if it is permitted to retain Aruze USA’s stock and dividends and,
therefore, a constructive trust should be established over Aruze USA’s stock, and all dividends
that would be paid on such shares if held by Aruze USA. These shares and dividends are
traceable to Wynn Resorts.

236.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

237. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT VIII

Conversion
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts)

238.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

239.  Wynn Resorts did not have a legal right to redeem and in addition lacked a proper
and sufficient basis to find that the allegations in the Freeh Sporkin report against Aruze USA,
Mr. Okada, and Universal were activities that “were likely to jeopardize [the Company’s] or any
Affiliated Company’s ... right to the use of, or entitlement to any Gaming License.”

240.  Asaresult, Wynn Resorts’ Board lacked a fair, proper, and sufficient basis for
seizing Aruze USA’s stock.

241.  Wynn Resorts wrongfully exercised dominion over Aruze USA’s stock.
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242.  Wynn Resorts’ dominion over Aruze USA’s stock without a valid basis for
redemption is inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation and Aruze USA’s rights in the stock
under the Contribution Agreement and the Stockholders Agreement.

243.  Wynn Resorts converted Aruze USA stock, damaging Plaintiff in an amount in
excess of $10,000.

244.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

245. Tt has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT IX

Fraud/Fraudulent Misrepresentation in Connection with Financing for Aruze USA
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts, Steve Wynn, and Kimmarie Sinatra)

246. Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

247. Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra made false and misleading statements
and omissions of material facts to Aruze USA. Specifically, on or about May 16, 2011, and for
months thereafter, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra made false and misleading statements and
omissions concerning the ability of Wynn Resorts to loan money to Aruze USA, which Wynn
Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra agreed would be backed by shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock
held by Aruze USA. |

248. Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra, acting in their individual capacity and as agents of
Wynn Resorts, made these false and misleading statements and omissions knowingly or without

sufficient basis of information because they believed Wynn Resorts was not permitted to enter

61

DEFENDANTS’ FOURTH AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM

PA001472




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

into such a lending transaction pursuant to the restrictions in Section 402 of SOX. As alleged
above, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra engaged in this wrongful conduct for the purpose of
maintaining Mr. Wynn’s control over Wynn Resorts after Mr. Wynn’s shares in the Company
were split with Elaine Wynn following their divorce, and keeping alive the opportunity to later
have Wynn Resorts seck to redeem Aruze USA’s shares at a discount.

249. Furthermore, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra, acting in their individual capacity and as
agents of Wynn Resorts, made these false and misleading statements and omissions knowingly or
without sufficient basis of information regarding the immediate need for Elaine Wynn to transfer
her shares under the Stockholders Agreement. On information and belief, Mr. Wynn and
Ms. Sinatra knew or were without a sufficient basis to make those material statements.

250. Aruze USA relied on the false and misleading statements and omissions made by
Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra. Aruze USA’s reliance on the false and misleading
statements and omissions was reasonable and justifiable, especially in light of Mr. Okada’s
trusting relationship with Mr. Wynn.

251.  On information and belief, Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra knew that
Aruze USA intended to rely on this information as a reason for Aruze USA to consent to Elaine
Wynn'’s transfer of shares under the Stockholders Agreement, and for Aruze USA to refrain from
taking steps to invalidate the purported restrictions on alienability contained in the Stockholders
Agreement. On information and belief, Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra further knew
and intended that, in reliance on these misrepresentations, Aruze USA would relinquish its own
opportunity to liquidate its own shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock to fund Universal’s project in the
Philippines or seek other financing. Therefore, Aruze USA relied on the fact that Wynn Resorts
was a committed lender to the project at the expense of pursuing other financing options.

252.  As a further direct and proximate result of the wrongful conduct by Wynn Resorts,
Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra, as alleged herein, Aruze USA was and continues to be damaged in an

amount in excess of $10,000 to be proven at trial.
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253.  Pursuant to N.R.S. § 42.005, by reason of the fraudulent, reckless, misleading,
malicious, willful, and wanton misconduct of Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra, Aruze
USA is entitled to punitive damages not to exceed three times the amount of compensatory
damages awarded.

254.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about September 30,
2011.

255, Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim on or about September 30, 2011.
Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not reasonably have
discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

256. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said

services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT X

Negligent Misrepresentation in Connection with Financing for Aruze USA
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts, Steve Wynn, and Kimmarie Sinatra)

257.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

258.  Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra made false and mislecading statements
and omissions of material facts to Aruze USA. Specifically, on or about May 16, 2011, and for
months thereafter, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra made false and misleading statements and
omissions concerning the ability of Aruze USA to obtain a loan from Wynn Resorts, which Wynn
Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra agreed would be backed by shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock
held by Aruze USA.
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259.  The false statements of facts alleged herein were material because had Wynn
Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra provided Aruze USA with truthful and correct information,
Aruze USA would not have consented to Elaine Wynn’s transfer of shares under the Stockholders
Agreement, and would have taken steps to invalidate the purported restrictions in the Shareholder
Agreement.

260.  Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra failed to exercise reasonable care or
competence 1n obtaining or communicating the false statements of fact alleged herein.

261.  Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra made the false statements or omissions
of fact alleged herein with the intent to induce Aruze USA to consent to Elaine Wynn’s transfer
of shares under the Stockholders Agreement without pledging its own shares in a manner that
would reduce Mr. Wynn’s control over those shares. Furthermore, Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn,
and Ms. Sinatra made the false statements of fact alleged herein with the intent of gaining their
own financial advantage to the disadvantage of Aruze USA, including, but not limited to, the
opportunity to seek to have Wynn Resorts redeem Aruze USA’s shares at a discount.

262. Furthermore, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra, acting in their individual capacity and as
agents of Wynn Resorts, made these materially false and misleading statements and omissions
knowingly or without sufficient basis of information regarding the immediate need for Elaine
Wynn to transfer her shares under the Stockholders Agreement.

263.  Aruze USA relied upon the false statements of fact alleged herein by providing
consent for Elaine Wynn to transfer her shares under the Stockholders Agreement. Aruze USA’s
reliance on these representations and concealment of facts was reasonable and justifiable,
especially in light of Mr. Okada’s trusting relationship with Mr. Wynn.

264. Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra aided and abetted each of the others in
making the false statements of fact set herein by each failing to exercise reasonable care or
competence in obtaining or communicating those statements.

265.  Aruze USA has suffered and continues to suffer economic and non-economic

losses because of Wynn Resorts’, Mr. Wynn’s, and Ms. Sinatra’s false statements of fact. The
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amount of losses will be determined according to proof at trial, but damages are in an amount in
excess of $10,000.

266. Pursuant to N.R.S. § 42.005, by reason of the fraudulent, reckless, misleading,
malicious, willful, and wanton misconduct of Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra, Aruze
USA is entitled to punitive damages not to exceed three times the amount of compensatory
damages awarded.

267. Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim on or about September 30, 2011.
Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not reasonably have
discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

268. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XI
Civil Conspiracy in Connection with Financing for Aruze USA
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn and Kimmarie Sinatra)

269.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

270.  Aruze USA, Mr. Wynn and Elaine Wynn entered into an agreement regarding the
disposition of shares pursuant to the January 6, 2010 Amended and Restated Stockholders
Agreement.

271.  Ms. Sinatra, as General Counsel for Wynn Resorts, had knowledge of the
Stockholders Agreement and its restriction on transfer of shares.

272.  Oninformation and belief, Ms. Sinatra had knowledge that Mr. Wynn needed
Aruze USA to waive the restriction in order to permit Elaine Wynn to transfer her shares.

273.  On information and belief, Ms. Sinatra and Mr. Wynn agreed to persuade Aruze

USA to permit Elaine Wynn to transfer her shares without permitting Aruze USA to transfer or
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pledge any shares to anyone outside the control of Mr. Wynn. In fact, upon receiving an email
from Aruze USA’s representative on July 13, 2011 permitting the immediate transfer of Elaine
Wynn’s shares, Ms. Sinatra expressed happiness for Mr. Wynn, stating, “Thank you very much
for this. I’'m sure Mr. Wynn will be happy about the clarification.”

274.  Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra made false and misleading statements
and omissions of material facts to Aruze USA. Specifically, on or about May 16, 2011, and for
months thereafter, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra made false and misleading statements and
omissions concermning Wynn Resorts’ ability and/or willingness to loan money to Aruze USA,
which Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra agreed would be backed by shares of Wynn
Resorts’ stock held by Aruze USA.

275.  Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra, acting in concert with Wynn Resorts, made these false
and misleading statements and omissions knowingly or without sufficient basis of information
because they believed Wynn Resorts was not legally permitted to enter into such a lending
transaction pursuant to the restrictions in Section 402 of SOX. As alleged above, Mr. Wynn and
Ms. Sinatra engaged in this wrongful conduct for the purpose of maintaining Mr. Wynn’s control
over Wynn Resorts after Mr. Wynn'’s shares in the Company were split with Elaine Wynn
following their divorce, and keeping alive the opportunity to later have Wynn Resorts seek to
redeem Aruze USA’s shares at a discount.

276.  Furthermore, Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra, acting in their individual capacity and as
agents of Wynn Resorts, made these false and misleading statements and omissions knowingly or
without sufficient basis of information regarding the immediate need for Elaine Wynn to transfer
her shares under the Stockholders Agreement. On information and belief, Mr. Wynn and
Ms. Sinatra knew or were without a sufficient basis to make those material statements.

277.  Aruze USA relied on the false and misleading statements and omissions made by
Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra. Aruze USA’s reliance on the false and misleading
statements and omissions was reasonable and justifiable, especially in light of Mr. Okada’s

trusting relationship with Mr. Wynn.
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278.  On information and belief, Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra knew that
Aruze USA intended to rely on this information as a reason for Aruze USA to consent to Elaine
Wynn'’s transfer of shares under the Stockholders Agreement. On information and belief, Wynn
Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra further knew and intended that, in reliance on these
misrepresentations, Aruze USA would relinquish its own opportunity to liquidate its own shares
of Wynn Resorts’ stock to fund Universal’s project in the Philippines or seek other financing.
Therefore, Aruze USA relied on the fact that Wynn Resorts was a committed lender to the project
at the expense of pursuing other financing options.

279. As a further direct and proximate result of the wrongtful conduct by Wynn Resorts,
Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra, as alleged herein, Aruze USA was and continues to be damaged in an
amount in excess of $10,000 to be proven at trial.

280. Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim on or about September 30, 2011.
Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not reasonably have
discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

281. Pursuant to N.R.S. § 42.005, by reason of the fraudulent, reckless, misleading,
malicious, willful, and wanton misconduct of Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra, Aruze
USA is entitled to punitive damages not to exceed three times the amount of compensatory
damages awarded.

282. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said

services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XI1

Promissory Estoppel in Connection with Financing for Aruze USA
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts, Steve Wynn, and Kimmarie Sinatra)
283.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth

in full below.
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284. On or about May 16, 2011, Mr. Wynn, in the presence of Ms. Sinatra, gave
Mr. Okada an explicit personal assurance that Wynn Resorts would provide a loan or facilitate the
lending of money to Aruze USA, which would be backed by shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock held
by Aruze USA. As alleged above, Mr. Okada agreed to the financing from Wynn Resorts —
rather than causing Aruze USA to attempt to liquidate or pledge its shares of Wynn Resorts or
seek alternative financing — based on assurances made by Mr. Wynn. Ms. Sinatra agreed to
provide draft loan agreements to Aruze USA within 10 days to support the agreement reached
between Mr. Wynn and Mr. Okada.

285. Based on the foregoing agreement, on July 13, 2011, Ms. Sinatra stated in an email
to Aruze USA’s counsel that Wynn Resorts was negotiating with Deutsche Bank on a margin
loan transaction on Aruze USA’s behalf, with Wynn Resorts acting as a “backstop.”

286. Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra, acting in their individual capacities and as agents of
Wynn Resorts, made these statements knowingly or without sufficient basis of information
because they believed Wynn Resorts was not legally permitted to enter into such a lending
transaction pursuant to the restrictions in Section 402 of SOX. As alleged above, Mr. Wynn and
Ms. Sinatra engaged in this wrongful conduct with the intent to induce Aruze USA to consent to
Elaine Wynn’s transfer of shares under the Stockholders Agreement. Mr. Wynn and Ms. Sinatra
acted with the purpose of maintaining Mr. Wynn’s control over Wynn Resorts after Mr. Wynn’s
shares in the Company were split with Elaine Wynn following their divorce, and keeping alive
the opportunity to later have Wynn Resorts seek to redeem Aruze USA’s shares at a discount.

287. At the time, Aruze USA was not aware that Wynn Resorts would take the position
that it was not legally permitted to enter into such a lending transaction pursuant to the
restrictions in Section 402 of SOX. Aruze USA relied on the false and misleading statements and
omissions made by Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra. Aruze USA’s reliance on the
false and misleading statements and omissions was reasonable and justifiable, especially in light

of Mr. Okada’s trusting relationship with Mr. Wynn.,
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288. On information and belief, Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra knew that
Aruze USA intended to rely on this information as a reason for Aruze USA to forego seeking to
liquidate its shares or seeking another source of financing backed by its Wynn Resorts shares. On
information and belief, Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra further knew and intended that
in reliance on these misrepresentations, Aruze USA would relinquish its opportunity to liquidate
its own shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock to fund Universal’s project in the Philippines or seek other
financing. Therefore, Aruze USA relied on the fact that Wynn Resorts was a committed lender to
the project at the expense of pursuing other financing options.

289.  On September 30, 2011, Wynn Resorts’ Compliance Committee refused to permit
the loan to Aruze USA or to otherwise serve as a “backstop” for a margin loan transaction on
Aruze USA’s behalf.

290.  As a further direct and proximate result of the wrongful conduct by Wynn Resorts,
Mr. Wynn, and Ms, Sinatra, as alleged herein, Aruze USA was and continues to be damaged in an
amount in excess of $10,000 to be proven at trial.

291.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim on or about September 30, 2011.
Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not reasonably have
discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

292. Tt has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XIII

Fraud/Fraud in the Inducement of the Stockholders Agreement
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn)
293. Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth

in full below.
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294. In the alternative, to the extent the Court finds that the redemption provision in the
Articles of Incorporation applies to Aruze USA’s shares, Aruze USA asserts the claim of
fraudulent inducement against Steve Wynn. Aruze USA thus brings this claim in the alternative
to Aruze USA’s claims that assert the purported redemption by Wynn Resorts is void ab initio.

295.  On or about April 11, 2002, Aruze USA, Baron Asset Fund, and Mr. Wynn
entered into the Stockholders Agreement in recognition of their desire to form Wynn Resorts. On
June 3, 2002, Mr. Wynn caused Wynn Resorts to file its Articles of Incorporation with Nevada’s
Secretary of State without including a redemption provision.

296.  On behalf of Aruze USA, on or about June 10, 2002, Mr. Wynn caused Aruze
USA to enter into a Contribution Agreement between Aruze USA, Baron Asset Fund, Kenneth R.
Wynn Family Trust, Wynn Resorts, and Mr. Wynn, The Contribution Agreement committed
Aruze USA’s LLC interests in Valvino in exchange for Wynn Resorts common stock.

297.  Prior to causing the exchange to occur, on or about September 10, 2002,

Mr. Wynn unilaterally filed amended Articles of Incorporation that, for the first time, included a
redemption provision. On information and belief, Mr. Wynn deliberately delayed in causing the
exchange in order to allow Mr. Wynn to unilaterally amend the Articles of Incorporation without
affording Aruze USA a shareholder vote as would have been required pursuant to N.R.S.

§ 78.390. At the time of the amendment, Mr. Wynn was the sole stockholder of Wynn Resorts.
On or about September 28, 2002, about eighteen days after Mr. Wynn unilaterally amended the
Articles of Incorporation, Mr. Wynn caused the exchange of Aruze USA’s LLC interests in
Valvino to Wynn Resorts for Wynn Resorts common stock.

298. Mr. Wynn intentionally made materially false and/or misleading representations to
Aruze USA regarding Wynn Resorts’ stockholder obligations under the Articles of Incorporation
to induce Aruze USA to enter into the Stockholders Agreement. The Stockholders Agreement
expressly provided that Aruze USA would have the sole power of disposition of its stock in
Wynn Resorts and there were to be no other provisions regarding the disposition of Aruze USA’s

stock, voluntarily or involuntary. Mr., Wynn misrepresented and/or failed to disclose that Wynn
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Resorts” amended Articles of Incorporation would seek to impose substantial financial risk on
Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts stock by providing Wynn Resorts’ Board — which was
controlled by Mr. Wynn — purported discretion to redeem Aruze USA’s stock on potentially
onerous terms.

299.  The misrepresentations and concealment of facts alleged herein were material.

300. Mr. Wynn knew the misrepresentations and concealment of facts alleged herein
were false, or alternatively, made misrepresentations of facts with reckless disregard for whether
those representations were true.

301. Wynn Resorts and Mr. Wynn made the misrepresentations and concealed facts as
set forth herein with the intent to induce Aruze USA to enter into the Stockholder Agreement.
Furthermore, Mr. Wynn made the misrepresentations and concealment of facts alleged herein
with the intent of gaining his own financial advantage to the disadvantage of Aruze USA.

302.  Aruze USA relied upon the misrepresentations and concealment of facts made by
Mr. Wynn regarding Wynn Resorts’ common stock at the time Aruze USA entered into the
Stockholders Agreement. Aruze USA’s reliance on these representations and concealment of
facts was reasonable and justifiable, especially in light of Mr. Okada’s trusting relationship with
Mr. Wynn.

303. Aruze USA was not aware of and could not have known about the
misrepresentations until September 30, 2011, when Wynn Resorts, for the first time, indicated
that it might attempt to apply the redemption restriction to Aruze USA’s shares.

304. Aruze USA has suffered and continues to suffer injury because of Mr. Wynn’s
misrepresentations and concealment of facts set forth herein. As a direct and proximate result of
Mr. Wynn’s wrongful conduct, Aruze USA suffered injury when the redemption provision was
purportedly invoked by Wynn Resorts” Board on or about February 18, 2012.

305. Asaremedy for Mr. Wynn’s fraudulent inducement, Aruze USA seeks imposition
of a constructive trust over Aruze USA’s Wynn Resorts shares purportedly redeemed by the

Board, or, in the alternative, recovery of unjust enrichment/restitution.
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306. Pursuant to N.R.S. § 42.005, by reason of the fraudulent, reckless, misleading,
malicious, willful, and wanton misconduct of Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Sinatra, Aruze
USA is entitled to punitive damages not to exceed three times the amount of compensatory
damages awarded.

307.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

308. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XIV

Negligent Misrepresentation in Connection with the Stockholders Agreement
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn)

309.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

310. In the alternative, to the extent that the redemption provision in the later amended
Articles of Incorporation is found to apply to Aruze USA’s shares, Aruze USA asserts the claim
of negligent misrepresentation in connection with the Stockholders Agreement against Steve
Wynn. Aruze USA thus brings this claim in the alternative to Aruze USA’s claims that assert the
purported redemption by Wynn Resorts is void ab initio.

311.  Onor about April 11, 2002, Aruze USA, Baron Asset Fund, and Mr. Wynn
entered into the Stockholders Agreement in recognition of their desire to form Wynn Resorts. On
June 3, 2002, Mr. Wynn caused Wynn Resorts to file its Articles of Incorporation with Nevada’s

Secretary of State without including a redemption provision.
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312.  On behalf of Aruze USA, on or about June 10, 2002, Mr. Wynn caused Aruze
USA to enter into a Contribution Agreement between Aruze USA, Baron Asset Fund, Kenneth R.
Wynn Family Trust, Wynn Resorts, and Mr. Wynn. The Contribution Agreement committed
Aruze USA’s LLC interests in Valvino in exchange for Wynn Resorts common stock.

313. Prior to causing the exchange to occur, on or about September 10, 2002,

Mr. Wynn unilaterally filed amended Articles of Incorporation that, for the first time, included a

redemption provision. On information and belief, Mr. Wynn deliberately delayed in causing the

exchange in order to allow Mr. Wynn to unilaterally amend the Articles of Incorporation without
affording Aruze USA a shareholder vote as would have been required pursuant to N.R.S.

§ 78.390. At the time of the amendment, Mr. Wynn was the sole stockholder of Wynn Resorts.

314. On or about September 28, 2002, about three months after Aruze USA entered into
the Contribution Agreement, and cighteen days after Mr. Wynn amended the Articles of
Incorporation, Mr. Wynn caused the contribution of Aruze USA’s LLC interests in Valvino to
Wynn Resorts in exchange for Wynn Resorts common stock.

315.  Mr. Wynn made materially false representations and/or omissions to Aruze USA
regarding Wynn Resorts’ stockholder obligations under at the time Aruze USA entered into the
Stockholders Agreement. The Stockholders Agreement expressly provided that Aruze USA
would have the sole power of disposition of its stock in Wynn Resorts and there were to be no
other provisions regarding the disposition of Aruze USA’s stock, voluntarily or involuntary.

Mr. Wynn misrepresented and/or failed to disclose that Wynn Resorts’ amended Articles of
Incorporation would seek to impose substantial financial risk to Aruze USA by providing Wynn
Resorts’ Board (which was controlled by Mr. Wynn) purported discretion to redeem Aruze
USA’s stock on potentially onerous terms.

316. Aruze USA was not aware of and could not have known about the
misrepresentations until September 30, 2011, when Wynn Resorts, for the first time, indicated

that it might attempt to apply the redemption restriction to Aruze USA’s shares.
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317.  The false statements and/or omissions of facts alleged herein were material
because, had Mr. Wynn provided Aruze USA with truthful and correct information, Aruze USA
would not have entered into the Stockholders Agreement.

318.  Mr. Wynn failed to exercise reasonable care or competence in obtaining or
communicating the false statements of fact alleged herein.
| 319.  Aruze USA relied on the false and misleading statements and omissions made by
Mr. Wynn regarding Wynn Resorts” common stock at the time Aruze USA entered into the
Stockholders Agreement. Aruze USA’s reliance on the false and misleading statements and
omissions was reasonable and justifiable, especially in light of Mr. Okada’s trusting relationship
with Mr. Wynn.

320.  On information and belief, Mr. Wynn knew that Aruze USA intended to rely on
this information as a reason for Aruze USA to enter into the Stockholders Agreement.

321.  Aruze USA has suffered and continues to suffer injury because of Mr. Wynn’s
false and misleading statements and omissions alleged herein. As a direct and proximate result of
Mr. Wynn’s wrongful conduct, Aruze USA suffered injury when the redemption provision was
purportedly invoked by Wynn Resorts” Board on or about February 18, 2012,

322. Asaremedy for Mr. Wynn’s negligent misrepresentations, Aruze USA seeks
imposition of a constructive trust over Aruze USA’s Wynn Resorts shares purportedly redeemed
by the Board, or, in the alternative, unjust enrichment/restitution.

323.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

324. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said

services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.
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COUNT XV

Breach of Contract in Connection with the Stockholders Agreement
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn)

325, Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

326. Mr. Wynn, Elaine Wynn, and Aruze USA are parties to the Stockholders
Agreement.

327. Section 2(a) of the Stockholders Agreement provides that Mr. Wynn must endorse
and vote for Aruze USA’s proposed slate of directors so long as the resulting Board is composed
of a simple majority of directors selected by Mr. Wynn.

328. Mr. Wynn has failed and refused to endorse Aruze USA’s slate of directors in
violation of his obligations under the Stockholders Agreement and failed and refused to provide
assurances of his intent to vote his and Elaine Wynn’s stock in favor of those nominees.

329. Mr. Wynn’s actions constitute a material breach of the Stockholders Agreement
without justification and has frustrated the essential purpose of the Stockholders Agreement.

330. The Stockholders Agreement provides that each of the parties to it recognizes and
acknowledges that a breach by any party of any covenants or agreements contained in the
Agreement will cause the other parties to sustain damages for which they would not have an
adequate remedy at law for money damages, and therefore each of the parties agrees that in the
event of any such breach the parties shall be entitled to appropriate equitable relief.

331. On account of Mr. Wynn’s material breach of the Stockholders Agreement, Aruze
USA was excused and completely discharged from any further performance of its obligations
contained therein.

332.  Further, the breaches by Mr. Wynn have frustrated the entire purpose of the
Stockholders Agreement, and have instead served to further entrench Mr. Wynn’s control over

the Company to the detriment of the other parties to the Agreement.
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333.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

334. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said

services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XVI

Breach of Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing in Stockholders Agreement
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn)

335. Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

336. Inevery contract, there exists an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

337. Aruze USA and Mr. Wynn are parties to the Stockholders Agreement, between
Mr. Wynn, Elaine Wynn, and Aruze USA.

338.  Aruze USA has properly sought to exercise its rights under the Stockholders
Agreement in secking to designate directors for endorsement by Mr. Wynn while complying with
the contractual condition that the Board will consist of a majority of directors nominated by
Mr. Wynn.

339.  Mr. Wynn has materially breached the Stockholders Agreement by failing to
endorse Aruze USA’s slate of nominees for directors to the Wynn Resorts Board and by failing to
confirm his intent to vote his and Elaine Wynn’s stock in favor of those nominees, thereby
frustrating the essential purpose of the Stockholders Agreement.

340. Mr. Wynn has breached the reasonable and justifiable expectations of Aruze USA
with respect to Aruze USA’s ability to successfully designate director candidates, an essential

purpose of the Stockholders Agreement.
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341. Mr. Wynn also has breached the reasonable and justifiable expectations of Aruze
USA by unrecasonably withholding his consent for Aruze USA to liquidate stock, and by falsely
promising financing in order to persuade Aruze USA to delay its demands for liquidity.

342.  Accordingly, Mr. Wynn’s conduct has breached the covenant of good faith and
fair dealing. On account of Mr. Wynn’s material breach, Aruze USA is entitled to contract
damages, or in the alternative, Aruze USA is entitled to be excused and discharged from its
obligations under the Stockholders Agreement.

343. By virtue of his purported position as power of attorney under the Stockholders
Agreement, Mr. Wynn owed fiduciary duties to Aruze USA. Given the existence of this “special
relationship” between Mr. Wynn and Aruze USA, Mr. Wynn is also liable for a tortious breach of
the implied duty of good faith and fair dealing and the accompanying tort damages.

344.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

345. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XVII

Breach of Fiduciary Duty
(By Aruze USA Against Steve Wynn)
346.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.
347. In the alternative, to the extent the Court finds that the redemption provision in the

Articles of Incorporation applies to Aruze USA’s shares, Aruze USA asserts the claim of breach
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of fiduciary duty against Steve Wynn. Aruze USA thus brings this claim in the alternative to
Aruze USA’s claims that assert the purported redemption by Wynn Resorts is void ab initio.

348. Section 2(c) of the Stockholder Agreement provided that “Aruze [USA] hereby
constitutes and appoints [Mr.] Wynn as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full
power of substitution and reconstitution for it and in its name, place and stead, in any and all
capacities, to execute and deliver any and all documents in connection with or related to the
formation of [Wynn Resorts].” As Aruze USA’s attorney-in-fact and agent, Mr. Wynn had a
fiduciary duty to Aruze USA to act in good faith and in Aruze USA’s best interest.

349. By virtue of his purported position as power of attorney under the Stockholders
Agreement, Mr. Wynn owed fiduciary duties to Aruze USA. In breach of these duties, on or
about September 10, 2002, Mr. Wynn caused to be filed amended Articles of Incorporation that
included, for the first time, a redemption provision.

350. Mr. Wynn’s act of unilaterally amending the Articles of Incorporation
demonstrated that Mr. Wynn possessed a conflict of interest in his dual roles of sole shareholder
in Wynn Resorts and attorney-in-fact and agent of Aruze USA. If applied to Aruze USA, the
redemption provision would violate the Stockholders Agreement and impose substantial financial
risk on Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts stock by providing Wynn Resorts’ Board — which
was controlled by Mr. Wynn — purported discretion to redeem Aruze USA’s stock on potentially
onerous terms. Despite the conflict of interest, Mr., Wynn included the redemption provision in
the Articles of Incorporation to the detriment of Aruze USA in breach of his fiduciary duties as
attorney-in-fact to Aruze USA. Further, as Aruze USA’s attorney-in-fact, Mr. Wynn had a duty
to inform Aruze USA that the redemption provision could be used against Aruze USA. In
violation of this duty, Mr. Wynn not only failed to inform Aruze USA of this risk, but, on
information and belief, his attorneys represented to Aruze USA’s attorneys that such a
redemption provision would not apply to Aruze USA’s shares.

351.  Mr. Wynn’s fiduciary obligations to Aruze USA as attorney-in-fact are not subject

to the business judgment rule.
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352.  Aruze USA was not aware of and could not have known about the breach of
fiduciary duties until September 30, 2011, when Wynn Resorts, for the first time, indicated that it
might attempt to apply the redemption restriction to Aruze USA’s shares.

353.  As afurther direct and proximate result of the wrongful conduct by the Mr. Wynn,
as alleged herein, Aruze USA was and continues to be damaged in an amount in excess of
$10,000.

354.  Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts” stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not
reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.

355. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said
services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XVIII

Tortious Interference of Contract
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts, Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani,
Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson,
and Allan Zeman)

356.  Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

357. Inthe alternative, to the extent the Court finds the redemption of Aruze USA’s
shares enforceable, Aruze USA asserts the claim of tortious interference of contract against Wynn
Resorts, Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D.
Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman.

358.  On or about February 18, 2012, Wynn Resorts purportedly redeemed Aruze USA’s

Wynn Resort shares for 30% less than the market value of the shares as measured by the closing
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price of Wynn Resort’s stock on the Friday prior to the Saturday Board meeting. Wynn Resorts
announced that it arrived at the 30% discounted valué because of the existence of the
Stockholders Agreement.

359.  Wynn Resorts, Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller,
John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman knew of
the existence of the Stockholders Agreement between Aruze USA, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Wynn,
and believed the Stockholders Agreement to be valid and enforceable prior to voting to redeem
Aruze USA’s stock in Wynn Resorts.

360. By voting in favor of the redemption of Aruze USA’s shares, Wynn Resorts, Linda
Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin
V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman knew or should have known that the
redemption would violate the Stockholders Agreement by denying Aruze USA the right to have
the “sole power of disposition” of its shares in Wynn Resorts.

361. To the extent the Court finds that the redemption of Aruze USA’s stock actually
occurred, Wynn Resorts, Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller, John A.
Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman intentionally and
tortiously interfered with contractual relations, which resulted in injury to Aruze USA.

362. As afurther direct and proximate result of the wrongful conduct by Wynn Resorts,
Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr,
Alvin V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman as alleged herein, Aruze USA was and
continues to be damaged in an amount in excess of $10,000 to be proven at trial.

363. Aruze USA brings this claim within the relevant statute of limitations under
Nevada law, having discovered facts giving rise to this claim, including injury arising from the
purported redemption of Aruze USA’s shares of Wynn Resorts’ stock, on or about February 18,
2012. Despite having exercised reasonable diligence, Aruze USA did not and could not

reasonably have discovered earlier the facts giving rise to this claim.
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364. It has been necessary for Aruze USA to retain the services of attorneys to
prosecute this action, and Aruze USA is entitled to an award of the reasonable value of said

services performed and to be performed in a sum to be determined.

COUNT XIX

Unconscionability/Reformation of Promissory Note
(By Aruze USA Against Wynn Resorts)

365. Aruze USA reasserts and realleges Paragraphs 4 through 178 above as if set forth
in full below.

366. In the alternative, to the extent that the redemption provision in the Articles of
Incorporation is found to apply to Aruze USA’s shares and the redemption is found to be lawful,
Aruze USA asserts that the promissory note is unconscionable and therefore subject to
reformation.

367. On January 27, 2012, Wynn Resorts declared in a publicly filed Opposition to
Mr. Okada’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus that Aruze USA’s nearly 20% stake in Wynn Resorts
was “valued at approximately $2.9 billion.”

368. Just 22 days later, on February 18, 2012, Wynn Resorts acted to forcibly acquire
Aruze USA’s stake in Wynn Resorts in exchange for a $1.936 billion promissory note, paying a
mere 2% interest per annum over a ten-year term.

369. The promissory note is unconscionably vague, ambiguous, and oppressive.

370. Aruze USA was never permitted the opportunity to negotiate the amount of the
promissory note given the market value of its shares, nor was Aruze USA permitted the
opportunity to negotiate the terms of the promissory note, including, but not limited to, the
interest rate, the restrictions on transfer, and the subordination provisions.

371.  Wynn Resorts received a grossly one-sided windfall by forcibly redeeming $2.9
billion of securities at a deep discount, transforming equity into a 2 percent per annum debt

instrument that Aruze USA may not transfer, retaining the ability to issue additional debt at any
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time and provide any new lender priority rights above Aruze USA’s note, and removing voting
and other rights from Aruze USA.

372.  Aruze USA, therefore, secks reformation of the promissory note, including but not
limited to its principal, duration, interest rate, restrictions on transfer, restrictions on

subordination, and inclusion of other customary and reasonable terms, conditions, and covenants.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Aruze USA and Universal each expressly reserves its and their right to
amend these Counterclaims before or at the time of the trial of this action to include all items of
injury and damages not yet ascertained. Aruze USA and Universal pray that the Honorable Court
enter judgment in favor of each of them, and against Wynn Resorts, Mr. Wynn, Ms. Sinatra, and

the other Wynn Directors, as follows:

a. For general damages in an amount in excess of $10,000;

b. For consequential damages;

C. For treble and statutory damages;

d. For punitive damages three times the amount of compensatory damages awarded;
e. For disgorgement of profits;

f. For constructive trust and unjust enrichment;

g. For preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief;

h. For declaratory relief;,

1. For reformation of the promissory note;

j. For costs and expenses of this action, prejudgment and post-judgment interest, and

reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred herein; and
k. Any and all such other and further equitable and legal relief as this Court deems
just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Defendants and Counterclaimants hereby demand a trial by jury on all claims and issues

so triable.
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Dated: November 26, 2013

LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS
SAMUEL S. LIONEL (SBN 1766)
CHARLES H. McCREA, JR. (SBN 104)
STEVEN C. ANDERSON (SBN 11901)

MORGAN, LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
MARC J. SONNENFELD

ROLLIN B. CHIPPEY, I

JOSEPH E. FLOREN

BENJAMIN P. SMITH

CHRISTOP71 ER J. BANKS
By , [Loa % —

Chérles H. McCrea, Jr.

Attorneys for Defendants and Counterclaimants

ARUZE USA, INC. and UNIVERSAL
ENTERTAINMENT CORP.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee
of LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS and that on this 26th day of November, 2013, I caused
documents entitled FOURTH AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM OF ARUZE USA, INC. AND

UNIVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT CORP. to be served as follows:

[ 1 by depositing same for mailing in the United States Mail, in a sealed envelope

addressed to:

James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar # 4027

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar # 4534

Debra L. Spinelli, Bar # 9695
PISANELLI BICE PLLC

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Paul K. Rowe, Esq.*

Bradley R. Wilson, Esq.*

Grant R. Mainland, Esq.*

WACHTELL LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ
51 West 52nd Street

New York, NY 10019

Robert L. Shapiro, Esq.*

GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP

10259 CONSTELLATION Blvd., 19th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067

* admitted pro hac vice

Donald J. Campbell, Esq., Bar # 1216
J. Colby Williams, Esq., Bar # 5549
CAMPBELL & WILLIAMS

700 South Seventh Street

Las Vegas, NV 89109

William R. Urga, Esq., Bar # 1195
Martin A. Little, Esq., Bar # 7067
JOLLY URGA WIRTH WOODBURY
& STANDISH

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th

Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Ronald L. Olson, Esq.*

Mark B. Helm, Esq.*

Jeffrey Y. Wu, Esq.*

MUNGER, TOLLES & OLSON LLP
355 South Grand Avenue, 35th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071-1560
*admitted pro hac vice

[ 1 pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b)(2)(D) to be sent via facsimile as indicated:

[ 1] tobehand delivered to:

and/or

[X] by the Court's ECF System through Wiznet.
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12/30/2013 03:58:16 PM
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JJP@pisanellibice.com

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
TLB(@pisanellibice.com

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
DLS@pisanellibice.com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: 702.214.2100
Facsimile: 702.214.2101

CLERK OF THE COURT

Paul K. Rowe, Esq. fadmitted pro hac vice)
pkrowe@wlrk.com

Bradley R. Wilson, Esq. (admitted pro hac vice)
brwilson@wlrk.com

WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ
51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

Telephone: 212.403.1000

Robert L. Shapiro, Esq. (admitted pro hac vice)
RS@glaserweil.com

GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP

10250 Constellation Boulevard, 19th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067
Telephone: 310.553.3000

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited, Linda Chen,
Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller,

John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker,
Kimmarie Sinatra, D. Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED, a Nevada Case No.: A-12-656710-B
Corporation, Dept. No.: XI

Plaintiff, NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
VS. GRANTING UNITED STATES OF

AMERICA’S MOTION FOR

KAZUQ OKADA, an individual, ARUZE EXTENSION OF TEMPORARY
USA, INC., a Nevada corporation, and STAY OF DISCOVERY
UNIVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT CORP.,
a Japanese corporation, Date of Hearing:  October 31, 2013

Defendants. Time of Hearing:  8:30 a.m.
AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS
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PLEASE TAKE NMOTICE that an “Order Granting Urnited States of America’s Motion for

DATED this 30™ day of December, 2013,

| Extension of Temporary Stay of Discovery and for Order Shortening Time™ was entered in the

above-captioned matter on December 26, 2013, a true and correct copy of which is attached

N
\T‘;fhl l lBngE: Pl
U
E' (:- '\;\\q.f %
AP N L
ié&‘k g

Tames 1. Bisanclli, 28q., Bar 4027
Todd L. Bice, qu Bar # +4534

!}mei . Spinelli, Fsq., Bar # 9695

3883 Howard Hughes Pmlmd‘. Suite §00

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

and

Paul K. Rowe, B SG. fadmitied prohae vice)
Bradley R W 115011 ES8q. (admitted pro hac vice:
L UﬂR Nﬂ[dﬂlidﬂd th fadmitied pro o vice)

WACHTELL, L1PTON, ROSEN & KA1z
31 West 5211(‘.1 Street

New York, NY 100159

and

Robert L, Sh&pi‘i‘ﬂ, ESC{ fuidmitted pra hae vic
{TLARER WEIL Fing Jacons HOWARD
AVOHEN & SHapriro, LLP
10259 CoNsTELLATION Bhvd,,
.08 Angm@s_., CA 80067

19th Floor

Adtorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited, Linda Chen,
Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert I, Miller,
John A, Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V.
Shoemaker, Kimmarie Sinatra, D). Boone Wayson,
and Allan Zeman

A
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

PHEREBY CERTIFY that Lam an employee of Pisanelli Bice PLLC, and that on this 30th |

day of December, 2013

. 1 caused 1o be electronically served through the Comrt's filing system

true and correct copies of the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORBER properly addressed

to the following:

Samuel S, Lionel, Esq.

Paul R, Hejmanowkst, Bsg.

Charles H, McCrea, Esq.

LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS
300 South Fourth Strect, Suite 1700
Las Vegas, NV 89101

William R. Urga, Esq.
Martin A. Little, Esq.

[ JOLLEY URGA WIRTH &

WOODBURY
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16 Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89109

Ronald L. Olson, Esqg.

Mark B, Helm, Esq.

Jeffrey Y. Wu, Fsq.

MUNGER TOLLES & OLSON, LLP
355 South Grand Avenue, 35% Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Dantel G, Bogden, Esq.
Uniled States Attorney
Eric Johnson, Fsg.

|| Roger Wenthe, Esq.
H Assistant United States Aftormeys

333 Las Vegas Boulevard Seuth, Sutte 5000
Las Vegas, NV 89101

i

[ . N
Y » (.‘: N oS
SRR ef
\ -t

W
i
At

> 0
'\ o Ll

Mare J. Sonnenfeld, Esq.

MORUGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
1701 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

loseph E. Floren, Esq.

Benjarmin P. Smith, Esq.

Christopher J. Banks, Esqg.

MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
One Market, Spear Street Tower

San Francisco, CA 94105-1126

Donald | Campbell, Ksq.

J. Colby Williams, Esq.
CAMPBELL & WILLIAMS
700 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Jetfrey H. Knox, Esq.

Chief, Frand Section, Criminal Division
LS. Department of Justice

Joey Lipton, Trial Attorney

1400 MNew York Avenue, NW
Washington D.C. 20005

3
N
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3
An Lu“qi:i(wu. of Bisanelli Bice PLLC
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Tames L Pisaneiii, Bsq., Bar No. 4027
Pa@pisancllibice.com

Tadd L. Bice, Fsty., Bar No. 4534
TLR: cum&dm‘lbhme LOM

Debma L, Spinelh, Esq., Bar No. 9695
DPLS@nisenellibice com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vepus, Nevada 89169
Telephione: 702.214.2100
Fm:si:rsiie: 702.214.2101

Paul K. Rowe, ESQ. (ashnitiod pen hae o)
skrow e(cz?w.n SO

Bra dl&y R. Y’\’li‘tﬂn, j."\(.j (admitas] prG fuie vicsy
brwilsonfowlrk.com

Walh }l"&.! L., Tivy ON, ROSEN & KATZ
31 Weat 20d Strect

New York, New York 10019

Telephone: 2124031600

Robart L, Shapirg, Esq. tedmived pr iz vies
RSdxiaserwatl.com

CILASER WEIL FIRR JACORS HOWARD
AvensN & Suarro, LLP
14250 Counstellation Bwicwrd
{os Angeles, Colifomia 200667

Telephone: 310,353.3G00

191h Floor

Electronically Filed
12/26/2013 01:01:23 PM

%g.w

CLERK OF THE COURT

Atlarneys {or Wynn Rasaras, Linsited, Lioda Chan,

Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irand, Roberi T, Miller,,

John A, Morag, Mare D. Schor, Alvin V., Shoeraker,
Kimmarie Sinatrg, D, Boona Wa\f som, a0d Allan Zeman

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WYRNN RESORTS, LI
Corporalion,

AUTED, a Nevads
Plaintify,
V.

R’AEU‘(} QRADA, an individual, ARUZE
LISA,INC, 5 Nevads ce*pomtm 3, and

UNTVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT CORY.,
& Jupanese corporation,
Defendants,

AND ALL RELATED CLADMS

Y

Case Noo A-12
Dept. Not Xi

ORDER GRANTING UNITED STATES
OF AMERICA'S MOTION FOR
EXTENSION OF TEMPORARY STAY
OF DISCOVERY AND FOR ORDER
SHORTENING TIME,

{Octobor 21, 2013
8:30 a.m.

-H36710-B

Date of Hearing:
Time of Heanng:

- v - ¥ ARTER
YE-1e-1IPES TS ROVD
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The United States of America’s Motion for Extension of Temporary Stay of Dissovery and
tor Order Shortening Time (the "Motion for Extension of Temporary Stay™), filed on October 30,
2013 (after being submitted (6 the ot on October 28, 2013), came before this Court for heaving
on Qutober 31, 2013, The Motion for Hxtension of Tempuorary Stuy was supportad by sn £y
Parte Declaration in Support of Motion for Extension of Temporary Stay, which the Ynited States
of Araerica snbmitted to the Court in camera on Qctober 28, 2013 simultane usly with the
submission of its Motion to File the Ex Parte Declarution Usnder Seal (the "Moijon o File Ex

FParte Duclaration Under Seal”),

Far the Qeawber 31, 2013 bearing, Joey Lipton, Esq. and L. Bric Johnsan, Bsq. appeared

on behaif of the United States of Avoveies, James 1 Pisanelli, Esq., of PISANELLE BICE PLLE, |

appeared on behalf of PlaintifiCounterdefendunt Wynn Resorts, Limited and Covnterdefendanis
Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmuth, Ray R, Irani, Robert . Mifter, John A. Moran, Mare . Schorr,
Atvin V. Shoemsker, Kiounade Sinatra, [J. Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman {the "Wynn
Parties").  Donald J. Campbell, Bsg., of Campbell & Wiliams, appeared on dehalf of

Connterdefendant/Cross-defondant Stephent A, Wean ("Mr. Wynn®™). William U rgs. Esg, of

Jolley Urga Wirth Woodbury & Stundish, and Mark B. Helo, Esg., of Munger Toles & Glson,

LLP, appesred on bebalf of CounserdefendantfCounterciaimany'Cross-claimans Blaine P. Wynn

("Ms. Wynn"). And, Charles H. MoCres, Bsq., of Lionel Sawyer & Colling, and Rullin B.
Chippey, of Mowgan Lawis & Bockins LLE, appeared on behalf of Defondant Kazon Okada |
Defendsnt/Countercinimunt Universal Enfertainment o, ("Universal™, ang |

Defendeatv’Connterclaimant/Counterdefendant Aruze USA, Inc. ("Aruze USA™) {(the 'C!Emda

Parties").
The Couwrt considered the following papers Hled an behalf of all of the above-referenced

paries:
> The United States of America's Motion for Extension of Temporary
Stay of Discovery, submitted on Qctobier 28, 2013 snd filed on
Qctober 31, 2013,

*  The United States of America’s supporting £x Parie Declaration,
submitted i camra on Oetober 28, 2013 (and read by the Court on
Qcrobier 31, 2013 after receiving no objections from the parties)

s
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PISANELLI BICE PLLC

883 HowaRD HUGHES PAREWAY, SUITE 800
Las VEGAS, NEVADA §2160
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>

1 || RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 52:

2 Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the. following grounds: {1) it is overly broad in
3 1iscope given that it asks for "[alil documents concerning” the removal of Okada as a vice chairman
4 {jand director, in that it essentially seeks sll documents produced in this case; (2) it is thus

5 {|redundant of various other requests herein; (3) it is unduly burdensome to the extent it seeks

& || documents solely in Defendants' possession, custody, and control, which Wynn Resorts is seeking

7 || and/or intends to seek from Defendants in this action; (4) it is unduly burdensorme to the extent it
8 || sceks documents already produced in this action, |
9 Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows: |

10 || Please refer to documents disclosed and produced concurvently herewith, identified as
1i [ WYNNOODOS242 - WYNNOGO0R343, WYNNOOOO8T92 - WYNNOG008794, WYNNOOOOI620 -
12 iW YNNOO009624, and WYNNOQOU96T6 ~WYNNOOGO09713,  Discovery is continuing, and
13 Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response as discovery corntinues,

{4 || REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 53:

15 All documents concerning any investigation of Wynn Resorts or its employees, offices, |
16 ||shareholders, or directors (including but not limited to Wynn and Defendants) by any local, state,
17 || federal, or foreign law enforcement agency, regulatory agency, or gaming regulator, including but |
1¢ || not limited to all documents concerning any investigation by the Nevada Gaming C‘Ql'lii'lz'}iﬂsiﬂﬂ;_:
19 || the State Gaming Control Board of Nevada, the US SEC, the United States Department of Justice
20 |1 ("DOIM, Philippine Secwrities and Exchange Commission ("Philippine SEC"), or the Mucau
21 | Gaming Commission concerning:

292 Al Wynit Macau's pledge to donate to the University of Macau Development

23 {{ Foundation;

24 | B. Wynn Resorts' purported redemption of Aruze's shares of Wynn Resorts;
94 1 C. Any alleged payment, benefit, or gift by Defendants to former or current members

27 D, The Land Concession Contract included as exhibit 10.1 to Wynn Resorts'

28 || Form &-K filing on May 2, 2013;

65
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E. The paymerit of $50 million to Tien Chiao Entertainment & Investment Co. Lid.
by a Palo Real Estate Company Limited as disclosed in exbibit 99.1 o Wynn Resorts’ Form §-X
filing on September 11, 2009 and

8 The FCPA or any other cotruption prevention laws.

Wynn Resorts abjects to this Reguest on the following grounds: (1) it is overly broad,
unduly butdensome, and not reasonably caleulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence
to the extent it seeks information related to any purported investigation rather than related to the
claims or defenses gsserted in this action; (2) if 1s & harassing fishing expedition and propounded
to annoy and harass; (3} it improperly seeks information and/or documents that may be related to
a criminal/civil investigations pending against Defendants by each and/or all regulatory agencies |
inamed in the Request; (4) the Requests' various sub-parls, separate and apart from any
: mvestigation, congern matters unrelated to the subject matter of and any claim or defense in this
action and thus are, in and of themselves, not reasonably caleulated to lead to the discovery of |
admissible evidence in his action; (5) to the extent this Requests seeks documents by and betweern
the Company and Nevada gaming regulators, the Request seeks docwments an communications
'pmtszeteﬁ by NRS 463,3407 and NRS 463,120; and (6) this Request is objectionable to the extent
it sceles information and communications protected by the attorney-client privilege, common
interest privilege, and/or the work product doctrine,

In Hght of the foregeing, Wynn Resorts will not respond to this Raquest unless and until
| Defendants demonstrate how the Request is reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
adimissible evidenve n relation to any allegation or defense andfor a cowrt order compels the
production atter a finding of discoverahility. Discovery is continning,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 54

All documents sufficient to show the relationships between Wynn Resorts, Wynn Macau,
Wynn, Universal, Aruze, and Okada, and their ownership inferests in Wynn Resorts and

Wynn Macan.

86
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RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION MO, 54

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it assumes [acts
{e.g., that Aruze, Universal, Qkada, and/or Wynn Macau has an ownership interest in
Wynn Resorts; that Universal, Aruze, and/or Okada has an ownership interest in Wynn Macauy;
(2) the terms “relationships” and “sufficient” are undefined, vague, and ambiguous, rf:—quiring?
| speculation as to Defendants’ intended meaning; (3) by virtue of the tenm “sufficient,” the Request
calls for a legal conclusion and/or subjective mental iropression of counsel (which is work
product and thus protected information); (4) it is also vague and overly broad through in that it
seeks "[alll documents” demonsirating ownership in Wynn Resorts and a non-party,
Wynn Macau, which could consist of a vast number of documents, the vast majority of which are |
unrelated to the subject matter of this action and/or any claim or defense in this action; and (5} is
unduly burdensome to the extent it seeks documents in the public record related to two publiely
traded companies.
| Subject to and without walving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:
Pleuse refer to documents previously produced and identified as WYNNOOGO77-WYNNOO0096,
WYNNGOO0O7-WYNNOO0 106, WYNNCO0651, WYNNQO0G0652, WYNNQOOU6S3, WYNN00654,
WYNNOCGOSS6- WYNNOOOG4,  WYNNOOOGAS,  WYNNOO0666,  WYNNOOO6T2,
HWYNNOOOET3,  WYNNOOOG76, WYNNOOOTI0, and  WYNNOOO7II-WYNNOOOT13,,
i WYNNOGO782-  WYNNDOOT99, WYNNOOUKE4, WYNNOG12S4- WYNNDOI255, and
WYNNOB1256- WYNNG01276.

Please also refer to documents disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, identified as |
WYNNOOOMO33 - WYNNOO004634, WYNNOO0N4635, WYNNOOD04636, W’y-"'I‘-*le\l_.'EHI}'{}()&I&@E;‘?’,__é
WYNNOOG04638 - WYNNOOUU4639, WYNNODD04G40 - WYNNDG004641, WYNNDOO04642,
WYNNO0004643 - WYNNOO004644, WYNNOD004645 - WYNNO0004646, WYNNO0004647 -
| WYNNODG04648, WYNNOD004640, WYNNOODD4650, WYNNOODD4651, WYNNOGG04652,
WYNNOOO04653 - WYNNOO004654, WYNNOD004655 - WYNNOQ004657, WYNNOO004658 -
 WYNI#J(H)HO&(&SQ, WYNNO0004660. - WYNNOD004661, WYNNOOG04662 - WYNNODOO4663,
| WYNNOOG04664 - WYNNOOO04665, WYNNDO04666 - WYNNI0O04667, WYNNOOD04668 -

67
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WYNNO0004669, WYNNOOOO4ET0 - WYNNOOOO46T1, WYNNOOOO4672 - WYNNOO004673,
WYNNOOO04674 - WYNNOOD0467S, WYNNDOO04676 - WYNNOOOD467, WYNNOGO04ET -

L WYNNOOO04692, WYNNOODO4693 - WYNNODO04694, WYNNOOO04695 - WYNNOO004696,

| WYNNOOOO4TO7 - WYNNOO004708, WYNNOCO04709 - WYNNOODOAT10, WYNNOOOO4TII -
WYNNOOC04712, WYNNO0004713 - WYNNOOOO4T14, WYNNOOODAT15 - WYNNOO004718,
WYNNOOOD4717 - WYNNOOO04718, WYNNOOOD4TIO - WYNNDOD04720, WYNNO0004721 -

| WYNNOO004745, WYNNGO004746 - WYNNOOO04747, WYNNOOOD4748 - WYNNOOD04749,
L WYNNOOOO4TS0 - WYNNOOO0475T, WYNNOO0OD4TS2 - WYNNOO004753, WYNNOODD4TS4 -

WYNNOGOGATE0 - WYNNODQ04761, WYNNOOO04762 - WYNNOQ004763, WYNNODO04764 -
WYNNOO0G4765, WYNNOOOD4 766 - WYNNOOO04767, WYNNOO003574 - WYNNOGOOSST

WYNNOOO04681, WYNNODOD4682 - WYNNODO04684, WYNNOOO0468S - WYNNIGG04686,
WYNNOO004687 - WYNNOOQO4688, WYNNOOOO4689 - WYNNOOOD4690, WYNNOODO469] -

WYNNOOO04697 - WYNNOO0OD4698, WYNNO0004699 - WYNNGOD04700, WYNNOOO04701 -
WYNNOOD04702, WYNNOGO04703 - WYNNOO004704, WYNNOOOD4TOS - WYNNOO004706,

WYNNOG004722, WYNNOGO04723 -~ WYNNOGO04723, WYNNOOO04724 - WYNNOOGO4724,
WYNNOOO04725 - WYNNOOG04726, WYNNOC0O4727 - WYNNG0004728, WYNNOQQGG4729 -
WYNNOUOG04730, WYNNOR004731 - WYNNOOO04732, WYNNOO004733 - WYNNQO0G4734,
WYNNOOOO4T3S - WYNNOOOD4TIS, WYNNIOO04736 - WYNNODO04736, WYNNOOO04737 -
WYNNOO004737, WYNNOQGO4738 - WYNNOQOG473E, WYNNOO004739 - WYNNI0004739,
WYNNOODO4T40 - WYNNOODO4741, WYNNOOOD4742 - WYNNOOO04743, WYNNCOOD4744 -

WYNNDODOATSS, WYNNO0O04756 - WYNNOGO04TST7, WYNNOOO04758 - WYNNOGON4759,

A

f

Discovery i1s continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right fo supplement this response |
as discovery confinues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 55:

All organizational charts of Wynn Resorts and Wynn Magcau, including but not limited to |
its subsidiaries, divisions, departments, affiliates, committees, and any other related entity or

aroup,

68
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{ | RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 55;

Wynn Resorts ohjects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) the terms “affiliates”

3 {Land "any other related entity or group” is undefined, vague, and ambiguous, requiring speculation

1 || as to Defendants' intended meaning; (2) it is vague and/or overly broad (i.e., unlimited) as to time;
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and (3] it secks irrelevant information wrvelated to the subject matter of this action and/or any
claim or defense in this action and thus is net reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence in this action.

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:
| Please refer to documenis disclosed and produced concurrendy herewith, identified as
WYNNOOO04633 - WYNNOG004634, WYNNOGOO4A3S, WYNNOOO04636, WYNNOO004637,
WYNNOOC04638 - WYNNOOD04639, WYNNOCD04640 - WYNNOD004641, WYNNODD04642,
WYNNODO04643 - WYNNOO004644, WYNNON04645 - WYNNOD004646, WYNNOOO04647 -
WYNNOOG04648, WYNNO0004649, WYNNDOO04650, WYNNOO004651 -~ WYNNOO0N465L,
WYNNOOD04652, WYNNOOO04653 - WYNNOQOO46SS, WYNMO0O04655 - WYNNO0004657, |
WYNNOO004658 - WYNNOOOGI4659, WYNNOGOU4660 - WYNNDOOG4661, WYNNOOG04662 - |
WYNNOO004663, WYNNDIO004664 - WYNNOGOQ4665, WYNNOOR04666 - WYNNGOU04667,
P WYNNOOO04668 - WYNNO0004669, WYNNODO04670 - WYNNOOG04671, WYNNO0004672 -
EWYI&&T}”‘JOGGO%?B; WYNNOOO04674 - WYNNOOO46TS, WYNNOOO04676 - WYNNGO004678,
WYNNOOOGA6TI - WYNNOOOO468T, WYNNOO004682 - WYNNOG04684, WYNNOCG04685 - |
WYNNOO004686, WYNNOO0O04687 - WYNNOO004688, WYNNDGCO4689 - WYNNO0004690,
| WYNNOOBO469T - WYNNOO004692, WYNNO00046D3 - WYNNOOU04694, WYNNOOO04695 -
WYNNMNO0004696, WYNNOOO(4697 - WYNNOO004698, WYNNOQ004699 - WYNNGOO04700, |
WYNNOGGO4 T - WYNNODO0O470Z, WYNNGDO04703 - WYNNOO004704, WYNNOOO04705 -

14 || WYNNOO004706, WYNNOO004707 - WYNNGO004T08, WYNNOGO04709 - WYNNO00OG4710,

)

3
o A

=~

)

WYNNOO004716, WYNNOOOG4TIT - WYNNOOOO4718, WYNNCOD04719 ~ WYNNO0004720,
WYNNOOO04T21 - WYNN00004722, WYNNOO004723 - WYNNOO004723, WYNNOO004724 -
WYNNOOOO4T24, WYNNOOON4T25 - WYNNOOOD4726, WYNNOOOD4T27 - WYNNOO004728,

6%
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| WYNNOOGO4T3T - WYNNOOODAT3Z, WYNNOO004TI8 - WYNNOO0IET38, WYNNOGG04739 -
HWYNNGO004739, WYNNOO004740 - WYNNOOO04741, WYNNOOOO4TA2 - WYNNOOON4T43,

H WYNNOOO04TS4 - WYNNOG00475S, WYNNOOOOATS6 - WYNNOODO4757, WYNNOO004758 -

=B T o &

WYNNOQOO4 764 - WYNNOOD04T6S, WYNNOGQG4766 - WYNNOOOU4767, WYNNOGODS574 -

tunduly burdensome because it seeks "[alll documents concerning” budgets and forecasts; (2) it is

 proprietary, and cornmercially sensitive information not publicly accessible; and (5) it is a fishin;g

Hcompelling the production.  Discovery is continuing, and Wymn Resorts reserves the right to

i supplenient this response as discovery continues.

FYNNOOOO4729 - WYNNOOOD4730, WYNNOGO04731 - WYNNOOOO4T32, WYNNDOO04733 -
WYNNOOOO4734, WYNNOOO0473S - WYNNOQOO4735, WYNNOOOD4736 - WYNNOOG4736,

WYNNO004744 - WYNNORD04745, WYNNOOOD4746 - WYNNOOON04747, WYNNO0004748 -
WYNNOOOO4749, WYNNOODO4750 - WYNNO0004751, WYNNOOGOQ4752 - WYNNO0004753,

WYNNOO004759, WYNNOOOO4T60 - WYNNOOOO4T61, WYNNOO004762 - WYNNOO04763,

WYNNODOOSSTS.
as discovery continues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 56;

Alf documents concerning Wynn Resorts' budget for each fiscal year from 2012 to 2022,

including but net limited to financial forecasts and projected revenue and costs.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PROUDUCTION NO. 56:

Wynn Resorts objecis to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it is overly broad and

overly broad in time; (3) it seeks nondiscoverablefirrelevant information unrelated to the subject |

matter of this action or the claims and/or defenses asserted in this action; (4) it seeks confidential,

expedition propounded with an improper purpose and designed to annoy and harass.
Wynn Resorts will not produce documents in response to Reques! unless and until

Defendants demonsivate s purported discoverability in this action and/or obtain a court order
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RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 87:

tdefenses); (3) because of its extreme overbreadth, it seeks non-discoverable/irrelevant information |

Pleage refer to documents previously produced and identified as WYNNO0OO001-WYNNOGGO03,
CWYNNOGOA22-WYNNG00336, WYNNOOO3I7S- WYNNO0O03RS, WYNNOCO310-WYNNOG0321,
< 1 WYNNOCOT799, WYNNODI254- WYNNOOI255, and WYNNOOI256- WYNNO0O1276.

L WYNNOO006524 - WYNNOOOOGS86, WYNNOOOOSE1] - WYNNOODORE1Y, WYNNOOOUS6S1 -
PWYNNOOO0S6ES, WYNNOO00S68S - WYNNOGOOSTO6, WYNNGOO08707 - WYNNQD008712,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ, 87

All documents concerning the negotiation, drafting, and cxecution of each of the
tollowing documents and any and all amendments thereto:

A, The Articles of Incorporation;

B, The Bylaws,

C. The Contribution Agreement; and

[ The Stockholder's Agreement.

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it is overly broad
{f.e., unlimited) in tune and thus also unduly buardensorne; (2) it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome in scope (e.g, it seeks "[alll documents” related to four separate corporate documents

and agreements and numerous amendmerits thereto without any connection o the claims or

and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this action; E
(4) it seeky information and documents protected by the attomey-client privilege, common
interest privilege, andfor work produoct dootrine; (5) it is unduly hurdensome o the extent is seeks
documents in Defendants' possession, custody, and control; and (6) it is unduly burdensome {fothe
extent it secks documents already produced by the Company in this action and the writ
proceeding. |

Subject to and without waiving said oljections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:
WYNNOOO004-WYNNOOO017, WYNNOOOOT7-WYNNOO0G96, WYNNOUG097-WYNNODO106,
WYNNOOO758 WYNNOOO768, WYNNOOOT69- WYNNOQO7TE,  WYNNOGO782-

Please also refer to documents disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, identified as
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WYNNOOOOB713 - WYNNODOOSTI4, WYNNOCOUETES -~ WYNNOOOORT22, WYNNOO008T23 -

WYNNOOOO183, WYNNOQO0S184 - WYNNOCOS190, WYNNDOD0O101 - WYNNOG0N9195,
WYNNOOD09196 - WYNNOG009197, WYNNGG00S199 - WYNNOGOU9200, WYNNOO009201 -

iprovisions in the referenced Stockholders' Agreement; and (7) the terms "nomination,”

WYNNOOOORT26, WYNNOOOOST2S - WYNNOOO(8729, WYNNOOO0OR732 - WYNNOOU08737,

WYNNO0009203, WYNNOOOU9IST - WYNNOGO09257, WYNNDDO09284 - WYNNG0009297,
WYNNDOQO9298 - WYNNO0009316, WYNNO0009327 « WYNNOOG09337, WYNNOUU09488 -~
WYNNOOOO9302, WYNNOG009S0S - WYNNOO000329, WYNNOQOODSEN - WYNNOJ009583,
WYNNGO0OD608 - WYNNOO00Y612.

Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorls reserves the right to supplement this response
as discovery continues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NG, 58

All documents concerning Aruze's nomination of individuals to serve as directors of
by Atuze as required by pavagraph 2(a) of the Stockholder's Agreement.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 88:

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) 1t is overly broad |
(f.¢, unlimited) in Gme; (2) it is vague and overly broad in scope; (3) it is unduly burdensome and,
as drafied, not reasonably caleulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence 1n this action;
(4) it is unduly burdensome to the extent if seeks documents in Defendants' possession, cusiody,
and control that Wynn Resorts is secking or will seek to discover from Defendants in this action;
(5) it seeks information and documents protected by the atiorney-client privilege, common

intergst privilege, and/or work product doctrine; (6) it assumes facts and/or mischaracterizes the
"nominated by Aruze) and “Wynn's refusal to endorse" arg undefined, and under the

circumstances, vague and ambignous as used, requiring speculation as to Defendants’ intended

meaning.
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Subject to. and without walving said objections, Wymn Resorts responds as follows:

 Pleagse refer to documents disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, identified as

WYNNOCO0GT740, WYNNOODOS741 -~ WYNNOO0O8742, WYNNUO0090TT - WYNNOO009079,

WYNNOOOOO0B0 - WYNNO00GS088, WYNNOCO09089 ~ WYNNOOGOS0%0, WYNNOOGD9091 -

W YNNOOO09102, WYNNO0009122 - WYNNOQQO9127, WYNNOOOOSI28 - WYNNOOG09136,

WYNNODOOSI37 - WYNNOOO09150, WYNNDOO09303 - WYNNOD009504,

Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response

as discovery gontinues.

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 59:
All documents concerning Wymn Resorts’ policies and  training, including  all
comunications to the Wynn Board of Directors, concerning;

AL Membership on the Board of Directors and procedure for nominating members to

| the Board of Direetors;

B, Removal of persons from the Board of Directors;
C, Compliance with the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Gaming

Commission Regulations;

D, Compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, including Section 402;

5

Corapliance with the FCPA or any other corruption prevention law,

¥, The adoption of resolutions by Wynn Resorts' Board of Directors;
G, Wynn Resorts' Gaming and Compliance Program;
H. Wynn Resorts” Policy Regarding Payment to Government Officials, referenced in

Paragraph 38(b) of the Complaint;
I Wynn Resorts' Code of Business Conduct and Ethies ("Code of Conduet",

referenced in Paragraph 14 of the Complaint, including any amendments to the Code of Conduct;

J. Determinations of "unsuitability” under the Articles of Incorporation;
K. The confidentiality and privacy of guest information, including guest mnformation

1 Macau;

L. Data privacy laws in Macau;
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M, Ameéndments to the Articles of fncorporation;

N. All notices sent fo members of the Board of Directors regarding training;
3. Restrictions on shares of Wynn Resorts owned by officers and directors of

Wynu Resorts, including any prohibition on pledging such shares; and
P, Any other policies relevant to Wynn Resorts' allegations against Defendants.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 59

Wymn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) i is overly broad
(i e, vnblimited) in troe and thus also unduly burdensome; (2) it is overly broad and unduly

burdensome in scope (e.g, it seeks "[a]ll documents” related to fifteen (15) separate subparts and

1a "eatch-all” provision); ‘{'3} it is overly broad and unduly burdensome to the extent it essentially

seeks "all communications" with the Wynn Resorts Board of Directors; (4) because of its extreme

overbreadth, it seeks non-discoverablefirrelevant information and is not reasonably caleulated to

lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this action; (3) it seeks information and

documents protected by the attorney-client privilege, common interest privilege, and/or werk

product doctrine; (6) it is unduly burdensome fo the extent is seeks decuments in Defendants’

| possession, custody, and comtrol; {73 #t is unduly burdensome 1o the extent 1t secks documents
p ¥ 4 3

already produced by the Company in this action; (8) it is unduly burdensome as it secks |
documents publicly accessible and cqually accessible to all parties; (9) it is unduly burdensome

and harassing to the extent this Request, including all of its subparts, isfare duplicative of other

Requests herein; (10} the phrase "[alny other policies relevant to Wynn Resorts’ allegations'
tassumes facts that all of the aforementioned "policies” are relevant to the Company's claims
{against Defendants; and (11) the phrases "[cJompliance with the Nevada Revised Statufes” and |

{*{m]embership on the Board of Directors” are overly broad, vague and ambiguous.

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows: |
Please refer to documents previously produced and identified as WYNNOO000! - WYNNDO0003,

WYNNODOOO4-WYNNOODO 17, WYNNO00322- WYNNOO0336, WYNNOOOI75-WYNNO03R9,

WYNNGHOS20- WYNNO0OS28,  WYNNOOOS4O-WYNNOO0852,  WYNNOGOSS3-
W YNNOOOSSE, WYNNO00R3I9, WYNNDO1405- WYNNOO14135, and WYNNOO1416,

74

PA001350




345, MEVADA $9169

PISANELLIBICE PLLC

3883 Howand HUGHES PARKWAY, SLATE 8§00

LAS Wi

S VIR

18

B
3

L

WYNKNNOO004216 - WYNNOOO04220, WYNNODO04221 - WYNNOO004224, WYNNOOC0422S -

WYNNOOO0423T - WYNNOOOGA240, WYNNON0G04241 « WYNNOOD04244, WYNNQOO04245 -
WYNRNO0004249, WYNNOO004263 - WYNNOO004389, WYNNOOO4486 - WYNNGG004500,
W YNNODO0450T - WYNNOOO04ST S, WYNNOOGD4516 - WYNNOOOO453G, WYNNOGO04531 -

S B

H WYNNOOOD4S4S, WYNNOOD04625 - WYNNOO004627, WYNNOOOD4628 - WYNNOOD04630,

& o0

WYNNGOO04777, WYNNOOO04793, WYNNOOQO4794 - WYNNOOO04797, WYNNOOGOD4798 -

| WYNNOQOODS53, WYNNOGI09554 - WYNNOOG09558, WYNNOOUOISS59 - WYNNOOD09563,

1 materials provided fo him in Japanese,

Please alse veler to documentis disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, identified as

WYNNOO004228, WYNNOOD04229 - WYNNOO004232, WYNNOOG04233 - WYNNOOD04236,

WYNNOOOD463T - WYNNOOG04632, WYNNOOG04768 - WYNNI0004772, WYNNOOG047T3 -

WYNNO0OO04799, WYNNOO004800 - WYNNGO004801, WYNNOO004802 - WYNNO0D04806,
WYNNOOO04807 - WYNNOO004R11, WYNNOOOO4812, WYNNOO004813, WYNNOOD06524 -
WYNNOOOOES86, WYNNOOGOO8S7T7 - WYNNOOD08S79, WYNNOOOOSS80 - WYNNQO008381,
WYNNOOOOSSSE - WYNNOOU08601, WYNNODOOSY2Z - WYNNOG00894T, WYNNOCO09I8S -
WYNNOOOO93RT, WYNNOGO093S8 - WYNNOOD0930, WYNNOQOO9391, WYNNOGO09392 -
WYNNOOOD9404, WYNNOO009446 - WYNNOOO09465, WYNNOG0G466 - WYNNOD009477,

WYNNOG009564 - WYNNOQOO9568, WYNNDOOUS60!E - WYNNOQG09602, WYNNOOCORG3T -
WYNNOO009641, WYNNOG009720 - WYNNOQO09723, WYNNO0009T724 - WYNNOQ00I72S,
WYNNOQ009726 - WYNNOG009739, WYNNDOGODT4A0 - WYNMOOQ09752, WYNNOOG0STS3 -
WYNNOOOOYT66, WYNNOOONOT67 - WYNNOOOUS769, WYDNOO0G9TT0 - WYNNOO0O9771,
WYNNOO009772 - WYNNOOO09774, WYNNOOOGYTTS - WYNNOO009776, WYNNOOG09TTT -
WYNNOOO0S779, WYNNOOONOTSH - WYNNO0009794.

Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplemaent this response
as discovery continues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 60

Al communications to and from Okada, Wynn Resorts, or any of the Counterdefendants

concerning the FCPA, including but not limited to Okada's requests to have FCPA training

75

PA001351



‘ PISANELLIBICErLLC
3883 Howarly HUGHES PAREWAY, SUITE 8GO

L.AS VEGAS, MEVADA 89169

g o=

RESPONSE TQ REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 66:

Wynn Resorts objects o this Request on the following grounds: (1) it is unduly

| burdensome fo the extent it is duplicative of other Requests herein; namely Request for

Production Nos. 59 and 69, (2) to the extent this request is duplicative of Request for Production

1 Dos. 59 and 69, the objections thereto are Incorporated as if fully restated herein; (3) the Reguest

is objectionable to the extent it seeks documients protected by the attomey-client privilege,
common. interest privilege, andfor work produes dociring; and (4) the Request is undul ¥
burdensome beeause 1t secks documents in Defendants' possession, custody, or control,

Subject to and without walving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows: Please
refer to documents previeusly diselosed and produced, identified as WYNNODI277-

WYNNORI3TL, WYNNDOOIZ12- WYNNOO1345, WYNNOG1346- WY

Please also refer 1o documents disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, ideniified as
WYNNODOO463T - WYNNOO004632, WYNNOUG08SR2, WYNNO0009564-WYNNOOOHISHR,
and WYNNOOOD631-9632, Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the vight to
sipplement this response as discovery continues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 61

All documents concerning Wynn Resorts’ procedure for choosing and developing new |
casino gaming sites, including but not limited to the investigation or audit of propesed new casino |
gaming sites,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 61:

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it seeks documents
that are not relevant to the subject matter of and claims and defenses in this action, and it is not
reasonably caloulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; (2) it is overly hroad

(f.e, unlimited) in time and hence unduly burdensume; (3) it is overly broad in scope and hence

tunduly burdensome (e.g., "lalll documents congerning Wynn Resorts' procedure for choosing and
{developing new casing gaming sites™; (4) the terms/phrase "gudit! is undefined, and vague and |

tambiguous as used, requiring speculation as to Defendants’; intended mesning; (5) the Reguest

secks highly confidential and proprietary information, strategic plans, and trade secrels {none of

-3
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which is related to the claims or defenses in this action and thus is not reasonably caleulated to

lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this action); (68} it seeks documents protected by

the attorney-client privilege; (7) it is a fishing expedition designed to annoy and harass; and (8) it

is unduly burdensorne and harassing o the extent it is duplivative of the requests herein; namely

Reguest for Production No. 24.

I light of the foregoing, Wynn Resorts will not produce documents in response o
Request unless and until Defendants demonsirate its purported discoverability in this action
and/or obtain a cowrt order compelling the produetion,  Discovery is continuing, and

Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response as discovery continues.

| REQUEST FOR PROBUCTION NO. 62

All documents concerning Wyrn Resorts' Sarbanes Oxley Steering conumities,

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1)1t 1s overly broad (i e,
unlimited) in tine, and thus also unduly burdensonie; (2) it is overly broad in scope because it
secks "[alll documents concerning” a steering committee that is unrelated to any claim or defense
in this action: {3) the Request seeks nondiscoverablefirrelevant information unrelated to the
subject matter of this action and/or any claims ot defenses in this action and thus, i is not
reasonably caleulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; (4) rather, it is a fishing
expedition designed to annoy and harass,

In light of the foregoing, Wymn Resorts will not produce documents in response t@
Request unless and until Defendants demonstrate its purported discoverability in this acﬁoné

and/or obtain a court order compelling the production.  Discovery is continuing, and

[ Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response as discovery continues,

| REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 63

Al documents concerning Wynn Resorts' Audit Committee, including but not limited to
the Audit Committes’s Enterprise Risk Management review, any policies or procedures designed

to uncover any conduct that would be a risk to Wynn Resorts' FCPA compliance, and Audit

Conmmittee documents coneerning the Philippines and any of the Defendants,
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| RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 63:

Wynn Resoits objeets to this Request on the following grounds: (1) il seeks

nondiscoverablefirrelevant information unielated to the subject matter of this action and/or any

claims or defenses in this action and, thus, it is not veasonably calculated to lead to the discovery

of admissible evidence; (2} it is overly broad {ie., unlirafied) fn time, and thus also unduly

an

"falll documents concerning

prreey

Wynn Resorts' Audit Committee . . . ."; (4) the Reguest is a fishing expedition designed to annoy

and harass; (5) the Request assumes facts; and (6) it #s objectionable fo the extent U seeks

imformation and documents protected by the attorney-client privilege, comman interest doctrine,
i BY ) MR-} ; .

and/or the work product dectrine.

In light of the foregoing, Wynn Resorls will not produce documents in response to
Request unless and until Defendants demonstrate its purporied discoverability in this action
and/or obtain a court order compelling the production. Discovery is c¢ontinuing, and

Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supploment this response as discovery continues.

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 64:

All documents concerning the Directors' & Officers' Questionnaire Packet allegedly sent

o all members of Wynn Resorts’ Board of Directors in January 2012, as alleged in
| Paragraph 38(¢) of the Complaint, including but not limited to-acknowledgment forms.

| RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 64:

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the ftjil'owin-g orounds: (1) it is unduly |

burdensome to the extent it seeks documents in Defendants’ possession, custody, or control; (2) i

secks documents protected by the attorney-client privilege to the cxtent it seeks documents sent

and/or received from members of the Wynn Resorts Board other than Qkada; and (3) the Request |

is objectionable to the extent it seeks documents protected by the attorney-client privilege,
comment interest doctrine, and/or work product dostrine,

Subject to and withoul waiving said objections, Wymn Resorts responds as follows:

| Please refer to documents previously produced and identified as WYNNOQ1346- WYNNOO1395.
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Please also refer to documents disclosed and produced concuerently herewith, identified as
WYNNOOO04598 - WYNNOOO04624.

Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response

1 as discovery continues.

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 65:

All documents (including notes, meeting minutes, handouts, or transcripts) concerning

meetings of the Board of Directors of Wynn Resorts, including meetings heid on or about

February 24, 2011, April 18, 2011, November 1, 2011, and February 18, 2012,
RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 65

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) to the extent that it
seeks "falll documents” related to all "mestings of the Board of Directors of Wynn Resorts,”
vegardless of whether the particular board meeting had anything to do with the subject matter,
clatms and defenses in this action, the Request seeks information that is irrelevant to the subject ‘
iatter of and claims and defénses in this action and it is not reasonably calculated to lead to the
discovery of admissible evidence: (2) it seeks confidential, proprictary, and commercially
sensitive information not publicly accessible; (3) it is unduly burdensome to the extent it seeks |
documenis in Defendants’ possession, custody, or contrel; {4} it is urduly burdensome to the
extent it secks documents the Company .ah‘e:ady produced in this sction; (§) it assumes facts |
{e.g., that theve are notes, handouts or transcripts); and (6) it seeks information and/or documents
protected by the atorney-client privilege, common interest privilege, and/or the work product
doctrine.

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:

| Please refer to documents previously produced and identified as WYNNOGO571-WYNNOOO572,

WYNNOOOS73-WYNNOOOS75, WYNNOOOS76-WYNNOOOSTS, WYNNOO1396-WYNNO01401,

Please also refer to documents disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, identified as

WYNNOGO04263 - WYNNGD0043R9, WYNNOOOD4390 - WYNNOGQ0448S, WYNNOOOO651T -
WYNNUOOO652E, WYNNOUOOT7001 - WYNNGOOGT017, WYNNOOOORS83, WYNNOUO08584,

WYNNODOOESES, WYNNODIDOVET] - WYNNOOU(9673, WYNNOGOO9676 - WYNNOOO09T13.
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2 {}as discovery continues,

3 HREQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 66: .

4 All docoments (including notes, meeting minutes, handouts, or transeripts) concerning
§ || executive sessions held by members of the Board of Dircctors of Wynn Resorts, including a
& || session held on or about July 28, 2011,

7 || RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 66

g Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds; (1) the Request is ovetly

g || broad (ie, unlimited) in time and thus unduly burdensome; (2) # is overly broad and unduly
10 | burdensome in scope (e g, seeking all documents concerning any executive session of any Board
i1 of Directors meeting); (3) it seeks information and documenis unrelated to the subject matter of
12 {ithis action and/er any claim or defense in this action; (4) i seeks highly confidential, extremely
13 i sensitive, commercial and/or financial information; (5) it secks information and documents
14 || protected by the attorney-client privilege, common intevest privilege, andfor work product
15 |l doctrine; and (6) it assumes facts {.g., that there are notes, minutes, handouls, or transeripts). |
16 Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wyan Resorts responds as follows:
17 || Wynn Resorts is unaware of any documents responsive to this Request. Discovery is continuing,

1R || and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response as discovery coutinues.

19 || REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 67

0 All documents (including notes, mecting minutes, handouts, or transcripts) concerning
21 | meetings held by members of the Compliance Commitice of Wynn Resorts, including a meeting |

held on or about September 27, 2011,

B3

23 {| RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 67

24 | Wynn Resorts objects {o this Request on the following grounds: (1) the Request is overly
25 {ibroad (¢.e, unlimited) in time and thus vnduly burdensome; (2) it is overly broad and wnduly
96 || burdensome in scope {e.g, secking all documents related to any meeting of the Wynn Resorts' |

Complisnce Commitiee); (3) it seeks information and documents unrelated to the subject matter

b3 )
o~

of this action and/or any claim or defense in this action; (4) it secks highly confidential; extremely

&0
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| sensitive, commercial, financial and/or tegulatory mmformation; and (5) the Regquest seeks

E;in_fi}:}rm;ﬁi{m and documents protected by the attorney-client privilege, common interest privilege,
andfor work product doctrine.

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:
Please refer to documents disclosed and produced concurrently herewith, identified as
WYNNOQGO45 40 ~ WYNNOOOO4S4T, WYNNOOO04548, WYNNOCU04549 - WYNNOOG04550,
WYNNOOGORRO3, WYNNOOO0RE04, WYNNUGN08805, WYNNO0NI9615, WYNNOGODYa1T,
WYNNOGOO96 18, WYNNIOO09629, WYNNOOR09630,

Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response

as discovery conlinues.

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 68

All documents, including correspondence, notes, memoranda, or meeting mimies

{ concerning Okada's alleged statements during any meeting of Wynn Board concerning payvinents

to foreign Government Officials, the FCPA, or any other corruption prevention laws, as alleged in
Paragraph 37 of the Complaint,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 68:

Wyni Resorts objects 1o this Request on the following grounds: (1) the Request seeks
information and documents protected by the attorney-client privilege, common interest privilege,
and/or work product doetrine; (2) it is overly broad in scope and unduly burdensome to the extent
it seeks "all documents" concerning Okada's alleged statements; (3) to the exient this Request
seeks documents from Wynn Macau, a non-party to this action, a Rule 34 request is insufficient {o
compel the production of this third-party’s records and Defendants are required to follow the
appropriate fegal processes to compel the records of a third party; and (4} to the extent this|
Request seeks documents from Wynn Macau that reside only in Macan, the Request secks

docnments containing persoual information of third parties protected by the Macan Personal Data

{ Privacy Act,

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows: |

Please refer fo documents previously produced and identified as WYNNOO1396- WYNNU0I461,

B
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WYNNODI405-  WYNNOOI41S,  WYNNOOI4L6,  WYNNOOIS40-WYNNOOISS6  and
WYNNOOTS87-WYNNO(G3066

Please also refer to documents disclesed and produced coneprrently herewith, identified as

| WYNNOOOD4S6T - WYNNDOD04862, WYNNODO04BE3 - WYNNOOO04RT4, WYNNOOOOIRTS - |

WYNNOGO04876, WYNNOOGOO48T7 - WYNNOOQ0O4888.
Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response

-

as discovery continues.

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 69;

All documents concerning requests by Okada for Japanese translation services for Board
materials and Board meetings and telephone conférences,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 69:

Wynn Resorts cbjects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it i3 unduly

|| burdensome to the extent it is duplicative of other Requests herein; namely Request for

i Production No. 60; {2} it is unduly burdensome to the extent it seeks documents in Defendants'

possession, custody, or conitrol; (3) it assumes facts (i, that Okads made such requests); (4) i is
overly broad in scope and unduly burdensome to the extent it seeks "all documents concerning”

requests by Okada for Japanese translation services; (3) to the extent this Request seeks

+ documents from Wynn Macau, a non-party io this action, a Rule 34 request is insufficient to

compel the production of thig third-party's records and Defendants are required to follow the

appropriate legal processes to compel the records of a third party; and (6) to the extent this
Request secks documentis from Wynn Macau that reside only in Macau, the Request secks
doenments containing personal information of third parties protected by the Macau Personal Data |
Privacy Act.

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:
Wynn Resorts is unaware of documents responsive to this Request other than those provided in
resporse to Request for Production No. 60, which are incorporated herein.  Discovery is

continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response as discovery

conlinues.

&2
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REQUEST FOR PRODBUCTION NQ. 74

Al documents concerning Wynn Resorts' statement on October 2, 2012 concerning the
denial of Aruze and Universal's Motion for Preliminary Injunction, including but not limited to all |
documents concerning;

A, The investigations allegedly inifiated by law enforcement and regulatory
authorities in the United States and multiple jurisdictions in Asia; |

B, The purported business connections and common sharéholding in a Hong Kong

entity by Okada;

C. An alleged individual associated with "vaknza,™ a Japanese organized crime group;
and
D. An alleged mmproper payment in the Philippines in connection with Aruze,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PROBUCTION NEO, 70:

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) the Request is vagoe |
and overly broad, and generally confusing as to what information Defendants are seeking; (2) it is
undnly burdensome to the extent it secks decuments in Defendants' possession, custody, or |
control that Wynn Resorts {s secking or will seek from Defendants in this action; (3) it is unduly |
burdensome 1o the extent if 1s duplicative of various other Requests herein; (4) it is propounded
| with an improper purpose to discover information through this proceeding that may relate to other |
actions and/or investipations; {5} it seeks documents protected by the attorney-client privilege,
conumon interest privilege, and/or work product docirine; and {6) the term "October 2, 2012
statement" is vague and ambiguous, reguiring speculation as to its intended meaning,

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows: |
Wynn Resorts will respond 10 this Request with responsive documents not privileged or i}ﬂ’lel"\fﬂ"‘ig@;.
protecied, to the extent any such doguments exist, reserving all rights to ohject thereto, once.
Defendants clarify and/or explain their Request and identify the slatement to which it refers.
Discovery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplement this response as

discovery continues.

83
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 71

All documents concerning the name change and closwe of the Okada restaurants 1n
Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn Macan, including but not limited to all communications to or from
Wynin Las Vegas, Wynn Resorts and Wynn concerning the name change and closure.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ. 71

Wynn Resorts objects {o this Request on the following grounds: (1) the Request is |
unrelated to the subject matter of this action andfor any claim or defense agserted in this actior
{2) the request is mtended to harass and is a fishing expedition propeunded out of curiosity rather

than a connection to a claim or defense; (3) the Request seeks information and/or documents

profected by the attorney-client privilege, common interest privilege, and/or work product

1 doctrine; (4) it is overly broad in scope and unduly burdensome to the exient it seeks "all

documents concerning” the name change or closure of two restaurants; (5) to the extent this
Request secks documents from Wynn Macau, a non-party to this action, a Rule 34 request is
insufficient to compel the production of this third-party’s records and Defendants are required to
follow the appropriate legal processes te compel the records of g third party; and () to the extent
this Request seeks documents from Wynn Macau that reside only in Macay, the Request seeks
documents containing_' personal information of third parties protected by the Macau Personal Data
Privacy Act,

Wynn Resorts will not produce documents in response to Request unless and until
Defendants demonstrate its purported discoverability in this action and/or obtain a court order
cotnpelling the production. Discovery 1s continning, and Wynn Resorts reserves the right to
supplement this response as discovery continues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 72

All documents concerning the alleged risks to Wynn Resorts and/or fo is Board of
Directors, such ag regnlatory risks, conflicts of interests, and risks to Wymn Resoris' current and/or
prospective gaming Heense(s), arising from the alleged acts of Defendants, including but not

limited to all Communications concerning such risks, all analyses, reports, assessments, and/o

studies of such risks,

g4
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‘objectionable fo the extent it seeks information and documents protected by the atlorney-client

privilege, common interest privilege, and/or work product doctring; ;\2) the terms “risks” and

7 |lprotections and privileged afforded/imposed by NRS 4633407 and 463120, and similar

 protections afforded by statute in other jurisdictions.

W YNNOOTS40-WYNNODIS86, WYNNOOISS7-WYNN003066, WYNNOCG1396- WYNNOO1401,
| WYNNOOL402-WYNNOO1404, WYNNOO1440-WYNNO0144S, WYNNOOI417-WYNN001419,
H WYNNOOT4ZO-WYNNOOL42Z1, WYNNOOI425-WYNN001426, WYNNO0O1427-WYNNO01428,
WYNNOO1438-WYNNOO1439, WYNNOO1440-WYNNOO1445, and WYNNOQ1446,

as dHscovery continues.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 73:

| time-and scope and hence unduly burdensome; (2) it seeks information and document not related
1| to the subject matter of this action or the claims or defenses asserted in this action, and is thus not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this action; (3) it seeks
highly confidential, strategic business information that is, again, unrelated to this action; (4) it is

| designed to annoy and harass; (5) it is a blatant fishing expedition designed to gather information

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 72:

Wynn Resorts ohjects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) the Request is|

"conflicts of interest" are undefined, vagus and ambigucus, requiring speculation as fo

Defendants’ mtended nieaning; and (3) it is objectionable to the extent it seeks to impede upon the
Subject to and withowt waiving said objoctions, Wynn Resorts responds as follows:

Please referto documents previously produced and identified as WYNNOOT62 1-WYNNO01630,

Biscavery is continuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the vight fo supplement this response

Al documents related (o any gaming licenses that Wyna Resorts {including, but not
timited to Wynn Macau) or any members of the Wynn Resorts’ Board of Thivectors has considered
pursuing, whether or not the gaming Heense was actually pursued or granted, since Wynn Resorts’

inception in 2002,

Wynn Resorls ob; ects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it is overly broad in
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to which Defendants are not otherwise entitled; (6) the Request is vague as fo exactly what
Defendants are secking; (7) to the extent this Reguest secks documents in any way related to any
Wynn Resorts' application for 2 gaming license or a gaming license (or that of a Wynn Resorts
| affiliate) in any jurisdiciion, this Request impeded on various privileges and protections specific
:t.{} those jurisdictions, similar to the privileges alforded to a Nevada gaming applicant or licenses
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, which Wynn Resorts does not and will not waive; and (8) to
the extent this Request seeks documents related to the bidding process and tender for the Macau
license (see subpart (BY), Wynn Resorts objects based upon Macan SAR Law n.® 16/2001, which
is Macau's gaming regulatory statute governing gaming concessionaires, operators, and the tender
{process. Section 1, Article 16 provides as follows: "The bidding processes, the documents and
data included, as well as all documents and data related to the tender, are confidential and cannot
be accessed or consulted by thivd parties . . . "

In light of the foregoing, Wynn Resorts will not produce documents in response o
|| Request unless and until Defendants demonstrate its purported discoverability in this action
and/or obtain a cowt order compelling the production, Discovery is continuing, and
| Wynn Resorts reserves the right to supplemesnt this response as discovery continnes,

| REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 74:

All documents related to any msurangce agreement entered wto by Wynn Resorts
(including, but not Himited to Wynn Magau) within the past five years which a person carrying on
{an insurance business may be liable to satisfy part or all of a judgment which may be entered in
this action, including any disclaimer or limitation of coverage or reservation of rights uader any
such insurance agreement,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO, 74:

Wynn Resorts objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) it i3 overly broad in
time and scope and hence unduly burdensome; (2) it secks infonmation and docurnent not related
to the subject matter of this action or the claims or defenses asserted in this action, and is thus not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this action; {3) the

Request is vague as {o exactly what Defendants are seeking; (4) it is overly twroad to the extent

e
o
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this Request seeks documents in any way related 1o any insurance agreement entered into by
Wynnn Resorts (or that of g Wynn Resorts atfiliate) in any jurisdiction and for any reason; and
() it seeks documents protected by the attorney-client privilege and/or commaon iritm-esﬁ;-privilege. |

Subject to and without waiving sald objections, Wynn Resoris responds as follows:

Please refer to documents disclosed and produced concurvently herewith, identified as

| WYNNOOO08IG9 - WYNNOOOOS01S.  Disgovery is confinuing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the

right to supplement this response as discovery continues,

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NOQ, 75:

All documents related to any insurance agreemant entered into by Wynn Resorts
(including, but not limited to Wynn Macau) within the past five years which a person carrying on
an insurance business may be Hable to advance, indemnify or reimburse for ltigation costs and
expenses and/or payments made to satisfy the judgment in this action, including any disclaimer or
limitation of coverage or reservation of vights under any such insurance agreenient,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NQ, 75;

Wynn Resorts obijects o this Request on the following grounds: (1) it iz overly broad in
time and scope and hence unduly burdensome; (2) ¥ seeks information and document not related
to the subject matler of this action or the claims or defenses asseried in this action, and is thus not

reasonably caleulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this action; (3} the

Request is vague as to exactly what Defendants are seeking; (4) the Request is overly broad o the

extent this Request seeks documents in any way related to any insuranee agreement entered into

by Wynn Reserts (or that of & Wynn Resoris affiliate) in any jurisdiction and for any reason; and

L(5) it seeks documents protected by the attorney-client privilege and/or commun interest privilege. |
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refer to documents disclosed and produced concurrenty herewith, identified as WYNNOOQ(8969

{- WYNNOOQOO901S, Discovery is continaing, and Wynn Resorts reserves the vight to sug pplement

this response as discovegyroniinues.
§§\\ ‘gﬁ‘ &
e E §w= T : \\ £
DATED this _§ i day of March, 2013 i ! A

PISANELLI] Bi@}“ }*g\ ﬁ_
§ E\ “\ ;; 1. \s\‘ = l‘%; ‘“\“"\ ~
} R x LAY ¥ &3 \e"'w‘

SR &3 N & § o
B}:: E\w‘* Kﬁ%“@ {"’ § S04 "\;

Subject to and without waiving said objections, Wynn Resorts responds as follows: Please

TaddL Eu:e *:aq Bcll ‘\m 43'%""

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
3883 Howaird Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

and

Paul K Rowe, Esq, tre hae vice admitied)
Bradley R. Wi ]SOW ESg (v bag vice admitied;
{rant R Mainland, Esq. e five vice admiried)
WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ
51 West 52nd Sireel

New York, New York 10019

ang

Robert L. Shapivo, Bsq. (o buc vice admitied
GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD.
AVOHEN & SHAPIRD, LLP

10250 Constellation Boulevard, 19th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067

Attorpeys for Wynn Resorts, Limited, Linda Chen,
Russell Goldsmith, Ray R, Iiam Robert J, Miller,
John A, Moran, Mare D. Schorr, Alvin V.
.E-.Il_nﬁ:mah@xg hirnln.ailﬁ Sinatra, D. Boone Wayson,
and Allan Zeman
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Jg) HERERY CERTIFY that [ am an emploves of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, and that on this
e

‘\‘
{8
e

y

i*’“ day of March, 2013, T caused to be electronically served through the Court's

e-service/e-filing system irue and correct copies of the foregoing THE WYNN PARTIES'

| RESPONSES TO DEFENDANTS'

DOCUMENTS properly addressed to the following:

Donald J. Campbell, Esg,

1. Colby Williams, Esq.
CAMPBELL & WILLIAMS
700 South Seventh Sireet
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Samuel 8§, Lionel, Esqg.

Paul R, Ilc;maunwskl Esq.
Charles H. MeCrea, Fsq.

Steven C. Anderson, Esq,

LIONEL SAW YER & COLLING
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1700
Las Vepas, NV 89101

| William R, Urga, Esqg.

Martin A, Little, Esg.

JOLLEY URGA WIRTH WOODBURY
& STANDISH

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th Floor

Las Vegas, NV 89109

FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF

Ronald L. Olson, Esg.

Mark B. Helm, lgq

Jeffrey V. Wu, Esq.

MUNGER. TOLLES & OLSON, LLP
355 South Grand Avenue, 35th T}om
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Mare I. Somnenfeld, Bsg.
MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
1701 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Joseph E. Floren, Esq.
'BenjammP %mﬁh Esyq,

Christopher J. Banks, Hsq.

o MORGAN LEWIS& BQC‘KIUS LLP
{1 One Market, Spear Street Tower
‘ E%&ﬂ hanusm\\C A 94105-1120

An i‘“mp}m oo af‘Pis zwmil BICE PLLC

\\3
N
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produce EST primarily as single-page, uniquely and sequentially numbered CCITT Group IV

CTIFF image files not less than 300 dpi. The images shall he accompanied by searchable text files

tfile ("Data Load File") that shall contain coding andfor Metadata, as reasonably available and to
i the extent the file is not redacled, assoclated with cach field as specified in Schedule A hereto,

| Drata Load Files will be provided in Concordance DAT file format, with field name headers and

formats.

APPENDIX A

Wyan Resorts' Production Specifieations

i, Definitions: The following terms have the following meanings:

a. "ESI" mzans Electronically Siored Information, meluding, but not limited to,
email, attachmenis to cmail, other elecironic documents such as word
processing, spreadsheet, PowerPoint, HI'ML, and fext files and any other files
stored in an clectronic format.

b, "Metadata" means: (1) information embedded i a Native Format {ile that is
not ordinarily viewable or printable from the application that generated, edited
or modified such Native Format file; and (i) information generated
aniomatically by the operation of @ computer or other information technology
system when a Native Format file is created, modified, sransmitted, deleted of |
otherwise manipulated by a user of such system. Metadata is g subsef of BSL

¢.  "Native Format" means ESI in the electronic format of the application in
which such ESI is normally created, viewed and/or modified.

2. ESI Production Format: In response to these Requests, Wynn Resorts will

containing all exiracted text on a document basis, or if extracted text is unavailable (e.g., image |
PDF files) or if the document is redacted, then searchable text generated using Optical Character
Recognition ("OCR™) will be provided, The text files shall be named to maich the endorsed
number assigned to the image of the first page of the document. The images and text files shall

also be accompanied by a cross-reference load file, Wynn Resorts will also provide a data load

Bt

standard Concordange delimiters. The Image Load File will be provided in the OPT and LFP file |

e
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3, Emajl Production Format: Lrail, together with all attachments, shall be

produced as folaws:

a. Wynn Resorta will provide the following Metadata fields for each email in the
index load file (DAT file}, to the extent that they are available for cach email
and the email is not redacted: SendFrom ("From®), SendTo ("Te"), CopyTo
("CC), BlindCopyTo ("BCCY), DateSent, TimeSent, and Subject.

b. Wynn Resorts will provide single-page TIFF images representing the pages of
emails that would have been viewable in the ordinary course of business prior
to collection. Each such TIFF image will show the endorsed dosument nuniber
and confidentiality status for cach such email page.

c. The index load file will also include the following dats items; FIRSTBATES,
LASTBATES, BEGATTACH, ENDATTACH, and the original custodian of
the email.

4, Paper Production Fermat: Documents stoved in paper form in the ordinary

course of business shall be converted to electronic form and produced as single-page, uniguely
and sequentially numbered CCITT Group TV TIFF image files not less than 300 dpi resolution to
enablo the generation of searchable text using OCR. The images shall be accompanied by text
files containing the QCR-generaled searchable text. The text files shall be named to match the
be accompanied by an image cross-referenge load file, providing the beginning and ending
endorsed number of each docoment and the number of pages it comprises. The producing Party

shall also provide a Data Load File corresponding to the CCITT Group 1V TIFF image files that

shall contain the Metadata fields defined in Schedule A hereto.
5. Bates Numbering for TIFF Images: Each page of a document produced in TIPF

{lile format shall be endorsed with a legible, unique numeric identifier ("Bates Number”)
Lelectronically "burned” onio the image at a place on the document that does not obscure, conceal,

for mterfere with any information originally appearing on the document. The Bates Number for
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1 || each document shall be ereated so as to identify the producing Party or son=party and the unigue

2 i document number (e.g., "ABCO0000001™,

2 £, Document Unitization: 1fa paper document is more than one page, to the extent
4 {ipossible, {he unitization of the document and any attachmentis andfor affixed notes will be
3 {imaintained as it existed when collected by the Wynn Resorts. If unitization cannot be maintained,

& {ithe original unitization shall be documented 1 a load file or otherwise clectronically tracked. For

ESI, all nynitization should be defined within the Data Load File including the designation of

~

& | parent/attachments both for email and attachments.

0 7. }’-‘md uction of ESI in Native Format: Other than as specifically set forth below,

10 || Wynn Resorts will not produce docunients in Native Format,

11 8. Spreadsheets:  Wynn Resorls may produce Spreadsheets (eg., Excel and
12 Exceldype files) in their Native Format with a link in the NativePile Metadata field, along with
13 | extracted text to the extent the document is not redacted.

14 |l 9, Media Files; Wynn Resorts may produce non-privileged video, animation, or

15 {jaudio files in thetr Native Format.

TSl 10, Other File Types: In some cases it may be necessary to produce documents in
17 |itheir Native Format because such documenis cannot be rendered into TIFF format. In other cases,
12 {|it may be necessary to alter g native file to create a format switable for production purposes
19 || {e.g, Lotus Notes objects, compiled web pages, ete.). I alteration of a Native Format file is
20 necessary to oreate a format suitable for production, the Parties may discuss angd agree upon an |
21 ||acceptable format.

373 1l 11 De-Duplication of Nen-Fmails: Wynn Resorts may De-duplicate  across

23 {1 Custodians all non-email decuments prior to production, with an "AllCustodians” Metadata field |
34 identifving all the custodians who possessed copies of the documents. "De-duplicate across
25 Custodians” means that exact duplicates of documents (where the document family is identical),
26 i1as identified by MD3 hash value, will not be produced.

271 12 De-Duplication of Emaijls: For emails, in addition to de-duplication across

28 || eustodians, thread de-duplication may be applied prior to production. Thread de-duplication |
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| from production if 100% of the message body is contained a later email that is produced; all of
the addressees (senders and recipients) are the same; all of the attachments are included in the

| later email; and the calenlated MDS thread hash of the suppressed and produced emails match,

LAnY file produced in its Native Format will be produced with an associated numbered TIFF

{ format placeholder with the text "Document Produced in Native Format.”

when converting EST from its Native Format into TIFF image files prior to its production:

allows emails that are wholly contained in a later, surviving einail, with all-of the same recipients

and attachments, to be ideniified and suppressed from production. An email is only removed

‘These tests ensure that an email is not exchuded from production if any part of the email's message
body changes, any addressee is added or removed, or any attachment or subject changes.
Wynn Resorts will produce emails message unit complete,

13 De-Nisting of ESI: Wynn Resorts may remove operating aystem files and

program files with the assistance of its Tnformation Technology veadors prier to conducting
searches of such data in accordance with the National Software Reference Library De-Nisting
Process.

14, Piaceholders: In the event that s production coutains documents that could not be |

rendered to TIFF, Wynn Resorts may insert a numbered TIFF format placcholder page as a
replacement for, and to identify, any document that could not be rendered to TIFF or produced for

some other reason. The placeholder page(s) will bear the text "Document Cannot Be Rendered,”

15, Production Media: Wynn Resorls may produce document images, Native

Fosmat files, load files, and Metadata as uncompressed data on DVD-ROM optical dises for
Windows-compatible personal computers, Windows-compatible external hard drive employing
the USEH 2.0 interface, or other mutually agreeable media.

16. Processing Specitications: Wynn Resorts will use the following specifications

2. For Exeel or other spreadsheet files that must be produced in TIFEF image
format for redactions, hidden columns and rows will be made visible,
b. PowerPoint documents will be processed with hidden slides and speaker's

noies unhidden,
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¢. To the extent documents in a foreign language ate produced, processing of
such documents shall be Unicode-compliant,
d. To the extent any document existy in more than one language, the document
will be produced in all lanpuages.
17. The provisions of this Appendix do not in any way limit Wynn Resorts' ability to make
any necessary redactions, whether for privilege, confidentiality, privacy and/or
compliance with foreign data protection and privacy laws.

18. Production Specifications: All documents will be produced according o the

| following Production Specifications:

a. Data Load Files:

1. Concordance (DAT, OPT, LFP):
1. Versioen 10 for Unicode support.
i DAT file
t. UTF-8 encoded Unicode to support foreign language.
iii. Fields available in the DAT file (with standard Concordance |
delimiters):
1. See Scheduole A for list of fields,
2. Translations 1o include only FIRSTBATES, LASTBATES,
BEGATTACH, ENDATTACH,
tv. Text files will not be provided within the DAT file.

b, TIFF Smcilﬁmtimﬁ:}

i, Black and white,

i, Single page.
iii. Porlrait page orientation (fandscape pages will be imaged then rotated).
tv, CCITT Group IV FAX Compression.

v. 300 dots per inch,

¢. Native Format Specifications: Prior to production, Native Format documents

will be renamed with their appropriate Bates Numbers {(as assigned to the
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correspending placcholder) and confidentiality designation in the flename
{e.g., "Bates Mumber confidentiality designationfile cxtension™), and a
corvesponding TIFF format placeholder bearing the text "Document Produced
in Native Format.”

d. Endorsements:

i Pringed with font size 18 {similar to 10-point Arial),
ii. Right footer: Bates Number,
i, Left Footer: Confidentiality legend.
1. Legend valuss:
a. HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL
b, CONFIDENTIAL
iv. Redactions: White redactions with a bordsr,
I, Redaction types:
a, P:rix—ﬁilﬁge:.
b, Relevance.
¢. Personally Identifying Information (PH) Redaction.
2. Redaction labels:
a. REDACTED - PRIVILEGE
b, REDACTED - RELEVANCE
¢. REDACTED - PRIVACY
e. Text Files:
i. One Unicode text file will be provided per document (named according
to the beginning Bates Number for each document).
. Text will be extracted from Native Format files when possible and to
the extent the document i not redacted.
iit. Text will be provided with scanned documents where such text can be |

iy, Text files will not contain page brealks,

3
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v, Placeholders (with the exception of placeholders for files produced in
Native Format) will receive a text file matching the placeholder text.
vi. Text files for redacted documents will be created from the redacted
inage,
vii, OQCR text will be provided for documents where text cannot be
extracted.
viil, Text files will support foreign characters for upload into Concordance
Version 19
{. Serting:
. Keep source/attachments {families) together.
it. Group by custodian,
i, Sort 1: Custodian.
iv. Sort2: Default sort order,

g. Data Orpganization;

i, Images: One document per folder; no more than 1000 subfolders per
folder; root folder named "Images.”
ii, Textfiles; Will reside in a separate folder pamed "Full Text.™
iii. Native Format files: Will reside in a scparate folder samed "Natives.”
iv. Data Load Files; Will reside in the root folder,

19. Documenis Previously Produced in Other Actions: Notwithstanding the other

provistons of this Appendix, where the documents being produced were previeusly produced in
another matter, they may be produced in the same form and with the same Metadata that was
produced in that matter,

20. Reservation of Rishts: Nothing contained herein, is intended to create a

precedent for, or to constitute a waiver or relinguishment of, any Wynn Resorts’ objections or

arguments pertaining to any potential future ESI production(s). Nothing confained herein |
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production. To the extent that Defendants in their Requests purport to require additional metadata
fieids, Wynn Resorts expressly objects on the grounds that the information sought is not relevant
to the subject-matler, claims and/er defenses in the action, it is unduly burdensome, unreasonable,

and seeks information protected by the attorney~-client privilege and/or the aftorney work product

Wynn Resorts will produce the following metadata Helds, wheve available, in iis

doctrine,

00 3 T A B Ll B e

@,

10,
.
12,
i3,
14,
15,

17,
i8.

FIRSTBATES
LASTBATES
BEGATTACH
ENDATTACH
PAGES
CIISTODIAN
ALLCUSTODIANS
FROM

TO

CC

BCC
SUBIECT
DATESENT
TIMESENT
FILENAME

16, FILE EXTEN

FILE SIZE

DATE MOD

19 NATIVEFTLE

SCHEDULE A
METADATA FIELDS

1
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JIP@pisanellibice.com

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
TLB@pisanellibice.com

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
DLS@pisanellibice.com

PiSANELLI BICE PLLC

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: 702.214.2100

Paul K. Rowe, Esq. (pro hac vice admitted)
pkrowe@wlrk.com

Bradley R. Wilson, Esq. (pro hac vice admitted)
brwilson@wlrk.com

Grant R. Mainland, Esq. (pro hac vice admitted)
WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ

51 West 52nd Street

New York, NY 10019

Telephone: 212.403.1000

Robert L. Shapiro, Esq. (pro hac vice admitted)
RS@glaserweil.com

GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP

10250 Constellation Boulevard, 19th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Telephone: 310.553.3000

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited

Electronically Filed

04/22/2013 10:51:22 AM

%;.W

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED, a Nevada Case No.: A-12-656710-B
Corporation,
Dept. No.: XI

Plaintiff,
VS.

KAZUO OKADA, an individual, ARUZE
USA, INC., a Nevada corporation, and

UNIVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT CORP,,

a Japanese corporation,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

(Request for Business Court Assignment
Pursuant to EDCR 1.61(a))

(Exempt from Arbitration — Declaratory
Relief Requested)
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Plaintiff Wynn Resorts, Limited (“Wynn Resorts” or “the Company™), by and through its

undersigned counsel, hereby files the above-captioned Second Amended Complaint:
NATURE OF THE ACTION

This is an action for breach of fiduciary duty and related offenses committed against
Wynn Resorts by one of its former directors, Kazuo Okada, and his affiliates. Beginning in 2010,
Wynn Resorts began to uncover evidence that Mr. Okada, his companies, and their associates
were engaged in unethical, unlawful, and potentially criminal activities in the Philippines in
connection with the development of a casino resort in that country. The evidence raised
substantial questions as to Mr. Okada’s probity and his suitability to be associated with a
corporation in the casino gaming industry. Because of this, Mr. Okada’s business activities in the
Philippines posed an ongoing and potentially significant risk for Wynn Resorts’ existing and
potential future gaming licenses.

When confronted with the mounting evidence of his wrongdoing, however, Mr. Okada
was evasive, and tried to conceal his misconduct from Wynn Resorts and its Board — a clear
breach of Mr. Okada’s duty to make a full and fair disclosure to the Company of all facts that
materially affect its rights and interests. Mr. Okada also consistently refused to take steps to
address Wynn Resorts’ concerns, either by shutting down his Philippine project or by severing his
ties with Wynn Resorts. By engaging in the wrongful conduct alleged herein while associated
with Wynn Resorts, failing to make full and fair disclosure to the Company and his fellow
directors about the factual circumstances surrounding his business activities in the Philippines,
and refusing to act to protect the Company’s rights and interests when called upon to do so,
Mr. Okada breached his fiduciary duties to Wynn Resorts.

In view of Mr. Okada’s inaction and his and his counsel’s refusal to cooperate with the
Company’s investigations or provide any explanation for the troubling evidence that had been
presented to them by the Company and its attorneys, in the fall of 2011, the Compliance
Committee of Wynn Resorts retained former Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation,
Louis J. Freeh, to conduct a comprehensive investigation of Mr. Okada’s business activities in the

Philippines and their potential impact on Wynn Resorts’ interests. As discussed in his written
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report to the Board (attached as Exhibit 1), Mr. Freeh uncovered substantial evidence of gross
improprieties by Mr. Qkada and his agents, including evidence that Mr. Okada had made a series
of payments to the Philippine gaming regulators with direct responsibility for overseeing
Mr. Okada’s development project. Based on these findings, and upon the advice of two
independent gaming experts, the Board exercised its authority under the Wynn Resorts Articles of
Incorporation to declare Mr. Okada and his affiliates unsuitable and to redeem the Wynn Resorts
stock held by a company that Mr. Okada controlled. In addition to seeking damages for
Mr. Okada’s breaches of fiduciary duty, Wynn Resorts seeks a declaration from this Court that
the Board’s actions in this regard were lawful in all respects.

PARTIES AND RELEVANT PERSONS/ENTITIES

1. Plaintiff Wynn Resorts is and was at all times relevant hereto a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada, with its principal place of busineés
in the State of Nevada. Wynn Resorts is publicly traded on NASDAQ.

2. Wynn Resorts is a world class developer of destination resort casinos.
Wynn Resorts owns resort casinos through its wholly owned subsidiary Wynn Las Vegas, LLC
(“Wynn Las Vegas”) and through its majority owned subsidiary Wynn Macau, Limited
(“Wynn Macau”).

3. Wynn Las Vegas operates the Wynn Las Vegas and Encore resort casinos in
Las Vegas, Nevada.

4, Wynn Macau is a Cayman Islands company that is publicly traded on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Wynn Macau operates the Wynn Macau and Encore at
Wynn Macau resort casinos in Macau through its wholly owned subsidiary, Wynn Resorts
(Macau), S.A., a company organized and existing under the laws of Macau Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China.

5. Defendant Mr. Okada is and was at all times relevant hereto a citizen of Japan and
a member of the Board of Directors of Wynn Resorts. During the relevant period, Mr. Okada
served multiple roles with Wynn Resorts and its affiliated companies. In addition to serving as a

Wynn Resorts director, until February 24, 2012, Mr. Okada was a member of the Board of
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Directors of Wynn Macau, and, until February 18, 2012, he controlled a shareholder that owned
approximately 19.66% of Wynn Resorts. Moreover, between October 2002 and November 2011,
Mr. Okada served as Vice Chairman of Wynn Resorts. On February 21, 2013, Mr. Okada
resigned as a director of Wynn Resorts, one day before a scheduled special meeting of
Wynn Resorts’ stockholders that had been called to consider and vote on a proposal to remove
Mr. Okada from the Board. The special meeting was held as scheduled, and the removal proposal
was approved by 99.6% of the shares voted at the special meeting.

6. Defendant Aruze USA, Inc. (“Aruze USA™) is and was at all times relevant hereto
a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada and a wholly owned
subsidiary of defendant Universal Entertainment Corporation (“Universal”). Until February 18,
2012, Aruze USA was a 19.66% shareholder in Wynn Resorts. Mr. Okada serves as Director,
President, Secretary, and Treasurer of Aruze USA.

7. Defendant Universal (formerly Aruze Corporation) is a public corporation
organized under the laws of Japan. Universal manufactures and sells pachislot and pachinko
machines and other similar gaming equipment. Universal does business in the State of Nevada,
has been issued a manufacturer’s license by the Nevada Gaming Commission, and was deemed
suitable by the Nevada Gaming Commission as a 100% shareholder of Aruze USA. Mr. Okada
serves as Director and Chairman of the Board of Universal, and, together with his family
members, is a 67.9% sharecholder of Universal.

8. In February 2012, the Wynn Resorts Board of Directors consisted of twelve
members: Chairman Stephen A. Wynn, Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Dr. Ray R. Irani, former
Nevada Governor Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker,
D. Boone Wayson, Elaine P. Wynn, Allan Zeman, and Mr. Okada.

9. Wynn Resorts’ Gaming Compliance Committee (the “Compliance Committee”) is
an internal committee chaired by Governor Miller and consisting of two additional members:
Mr. Schorr (director and Chief Operating Officer of Wynn Resorts) and John Strzemp (Executive

Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer of Wynn Resorts). The Compliance Committee
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is charged with assuring Wynn Resorts’ compliance with all laws and regulations, including, in
particular, applicable gaming laws, regulations, and policies.

10.  The Honorable Louis J. Freeh, Esq. is a former director of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, having led that agency with distinction from 1993 to 2001. Prior to serving as FBI
Director, Mr. Freeh was a United States District Court Judge. In February 2012, Mr. Freeh was a
partner in Freeh Sporkin & Sullivan, LLP — a law firm he founded with two other former federal
judges — which specialized in domestic and foreign corporate investigations and compliance.
Today, Mr. Freeh is a partner and the chairman of the Executive Committee of Pepper
Hamilton LLP.

JURISDICTION

11. Defendants Mr. Okada, Universal, and Aruze USA have each individually and in
concert with one another caused the acts and events herein within the State of Nevada, and all are
subject to the jurisdiction of this Court. Venue is also proper in this Court.

12.  This matter is properly designated as a business court matter and assigned to the
Business Docket under EDCR 1.61(a), as the claims alleged herein arise from business torts.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

13. A Nevada gaming license is a privilege. Nevada law imposes comprehensive
regulatory requirements upon gaming licensees, including the requirement that persons and
entities associated with the licensee possess the necessary character, qualifications, and integrity
to be suitable to hold that privilege so as not to threaten the public interest or the integrity of the
regulation and control of gaming.

14.  Under the applicable gaming laws and regulations, Wynn Resorts has an obligation
to police itself and to take independent and proactive measures with respect to compliance issues
before it becomes necessary for gaming regulators to take action. Consistent with this regulatory
framework, Wynn Resorts has adopted a compliance program that requires the Compliance
Committee to, among other things, investigate senior officers, directors, and key employees to

protect Wynn Resorts from becoming associated from any unsuitable persons. The compliance
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program further requires Wynn Resorts to self-report to Nevada gaming regulators with respect to
any significant compliance-related issues that may arise.

15. As a director of Wynn Resorts (and formerly, through Aruze USA, one of its
largest shareholders), Mr. Okada’s conduct and reputation for probity had a direct impact on the
ability of Wynn Resorts to maintain its Nevada gaming license and to seek additional licenses in
the future. Accordingly, pursuant to Nevada law and its own compliance program, Wynn Resorts
was obliged to monitor Mr. Okada’s business activities to ensure that his association with
Wynn Resorts did not create any regulatory concern.

Okada Announces Plan to Enter Philippine Market

16. In or about 2008, Wynn Resorts learned that Mr. Okada, through one or more
companies he controlled, had publicly stated his intention to develop a casino resort in the
Philippines. Wynn Resorts was not and has never been an investor or participant in Mr. Okada’s
development project in the Philippines.

17.  For a number of reasons, it was highly uncertain whether Mr. Okada’s planned
casino resort in the Philippines would ever come to fruition. The scale of the proposed
development was larger than any comparable project in existence in the Philippines at the time,
and Mr. Okada and the companies he controlled had never developed anything on such a scale
previously. Numerous approvals and licenses from the Philippine government would also be
needed before any project could get off the ground, let alone become operational.

18. In 2008, the Philippines Amusement and Gaming Corporation (“PAGCOR”)
awarded four provisional gaming licenses, without public bidding, in connection with a
development project in the Manila Bay area referred to as Entertainment City. PAGCOR is a
100% government-owned and -controlled corporation that operates under the direct supervision of

the Office of the President of the Philippines and is charged with licensing and regulating casino

gaming in the Philippines. One of the provisional licenses that PAGCOR awarded went to a

newly-formed entity that is 99% owned by Aruze USA, known as Tiger Resort, Leisure and

Entertainment Inc.
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19.  Apart from obtaining a provisional license, however, between 2008 and early
2010, Mr. Okada and his companies made very little apparent progress with respect to the
proposed development in the Philippines. Indeed, on various occasions during that period,
Mr. Okada made statements to Mr. Wynn and others at Wynn Resorts expressing doubt that he
would ever actually develop a casino resort in the Philippines, stating that he had reconsidered.

20.  In this period of time, Wynn Resorts did not know what activities Mr. Okada was
engaged in to promote his Philippine project. As of early 2010, Wynn Resorts had no reason to
suspect that Mr. Okada and his associates would engage in unethical or unlawful conduct, or that
Mr. Okada’s project in the Philippines would damage Wynn Resorts or pose a threat to
Wynn Resorts’ gaming licenses. Indeed, Mr. Okada had every reason to conceal his activities,
both because he could be harmed by its exposure, and because Mr. Okada made periodic attempts
in that time period to persuade Wynn Resorts and/or Mr. Wynn to have some degree of
involvement with his Philippine project.

Wynn Resorts Begins to Have Concerns

21.  Beginning in 2010, a number of events occurred to change Wynn Resorts’
perception of Mr. Okada and his Philippine project. In June 2010, as Mr. Wynn was planning to
return from a visit to Macau, Mr. Okada prevailed on Mr. Wynn to make an unscheduled stopover
in Manila in the course of his trip back to the United States. Mr. Wynn had no interest in
involving Wynn Resorts in Mr. Okada’s project in the Philippines and agreed to the visit as a
courtesy to Mr. Okada. Mr. Okada abused Mr. Wynn’s courtesy, however, and went to great
lengths to try to associate Wynn Resorts and Mr. Wynn with his Philippine project.

22.  Unbeknownst to Mr. Wynn, Mr. Okada had arranged for a public event at his
Manila Bay development site that was to be attended by various Philippine government officials.
Mr. Okada conspicuously publicized Mr. Wynn’s attendance at the event by erecting a large sign
that read, “Welcome to the Philippines Chairman Steve Wynn,” and bore the trademarked
corporate logo of Wynn Resorts. Mr. Wynn immediately recognized that Mr. Okada had brought

him to the Philippines under misleading pretenses, and that he had orchestrated the event to send
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the false message to the Philippine government that Wynn Resorts’ good reputation and standing
in the casino resort industry backed Mr. Okada’s development project.

23.  Following Mr. Wynn’s stopover in Manila, and in light of concerns that Mr. Okada
was trading on Wynn Resorts’ reputation and creating the false impression that Wynn Resorts had
a role in his Philippine project, management determined to conduct an investigation regarding the
general business environment in the Philippines as part of the Company’s general compliance
program. Management produced a written report and presented it to the Board (including
Mr. Okada) in July 2010.

24,  Based on reports from sources in the U.S. government and local authorities in the
Philippines, as well as international organizations and media, the report concluded that corruption
posed a major problem in the Philippines and that Philippine anti-corruption efforts were
ineffective. Management’s report cited a “Global Corruption Barometer” study that listed the
Philippines in the top quintile of “Countries most affected by bribery.”

25. At this same July 2010 meeting of the Wynn Resorts Board, the other directors
asked Mr. Okada to state his intentions with respect to his casino resort development in the
Philippines. Mr. Okada was evasive, however, and failed to alleviate the Board’s concerns. By
refusing to make full disclosure to the Board about his business activities in the Philippines and
the factual circumstances surrounding those activities, Mr. Okada was able to conceal his
wrongful conduct from the Company and his fellow directors.

26.  Although Wynn Resorts did not appreciate the situation at the time — due to
Mr. Okada’s lack of candor — 2010 was a critical period for Mr. Okada’s project in the
Philippines. Effective June 30, 2010, Benigno S. Aquino III assumed office as President of the
Republic of the Philippines, succeeding Gloria M. Arroyo. Soon thereafter, President Aquino
appointed Cristino L. Naguiat, Jr. to replace Efraim C. Genuino as the Chairman of PAGCOR.

27.  In July 2010, reports surfaced in the Philippine press that at the behest of the new
President, Mr. Naguiat was investigating certain “midnight deals” that had been approved by his
predecessor. Specifically, in his final weeks as Chairman, Mr. Genuino, with the support of

then-President Arroyo, had caused PAGCOR to award several gaming licenses and related
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concessions on an abnormally expedited basis. Among the beneficiaries of these deals was
Mr. Okada, who received a special exemption allowing an Okada-controlled company to take title
to the land on which his casino resort was to be built. Without the exemption, Mr. Okada’s
company would have been subject to Philippine law prohibiting foreign investors from owning
land. A decision by Mr. Naguiat to revoke the exemption, therefore, would have significantly
impaired Mr. Okada’s project in the Philippines.

28.  Despite direct inquiry by Wynn Resorts management, the Company was not made
aware of these events until 2011, when it began to receive certain third-party investigative reports
discussed below. Mr, Okada still has never made a full or fair disclosure to the Company deépite
the material effects his activities in the Philippines have had on Wynn Resorts’ rights and
interests.

Wynn Resorts Receives Further Evidence of Mr. Okada’s Misconduct

29. By mid-2010, Wynn Resorts had no definitive proof of wrongdoing by Mr. Okada
or his associates. Mr. Okada’s continued evasiveness, however, coupled with substantial
concerns about widespread corruption in the Philippines, caused Wynn Resorts to determine that
further inquiry was warranted.

30.  Accordingly, in early 2011, Wynn Resorts retained a well-known investigative
organization, The Arkin Group LLC (“Arkin Group™), to further examine the risks associated
with doing business in the Philippines and to investigate Mr. Okada’s activities in that country.
Arkin Group summarized its findings in a series of written reports that were provided to
Wynn Resorts in February 2011.

31. Based on its investigation, which included interviews of Philippine officials and
other industry and government contacts, Arkin Group concluded that official corruption in the
Philippines — particularly in the gaming industry — was “deeply ingrained” and that “official
corruption at some level accompanies most if not all major business deals and transactions in the
Philippines.” In support of these conclusions, Arkin Group cited, among other sources, the 2010
Transparency International Corruption Percentage Index, which rated the Philippines at the lower

end of the index, 134th out of 178 countries surveyed. The Arkin Group observed that this rating
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placed the Philippines “on par with Nigeria, Honduras, Azerbaijan and Bangladesh™ in terms of
the pervasiveness of government corruption.

32, As for Mr. Okada’s activities, Arkin Group found that Mr. Okada was “perceived
as touting his relationship with Wynn Resorts as a means to generate a positive reputation and
high profile” and “proving his and Aruze’s credibility.” The Arkin Group’s reports also discussed
the land title exemption that Mr. Okada had obtained in the final days of the administrations of
PAGCOR Chairman Genuino and Philippine President Arroyo, and explained that such “midnight
deals” were at that time “receiving significant media attention and scrutiny” in the Philippines.

33. The Wynn Resorts Board discussed the results of the Arkin Group’s investigation
at a Board meeting held on February 24, 2011. Mr. Wynn advised the Board that Mr. Okada
(whb was present for the meeting) had arranged for him to meet with Philippine President
Aquino. Based on the information the Board had received about endemic corruption in the
Philippines, the independent directors unanimously advised Wynn Resorts management that any
involvement in the Philippines was inadvisable and strongly recommended that the meetiqg with
President Aquino be cancelled. Management agreed with the Board’s recommendation.
Mr. Okada, however, was embarrassed and angry about having to cancel the arrangements he had
made with President Aquino.

34, At the same Board meeting, in the course of an update from Wynn Resorts’
general counsel on the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), Mr. Okada stated that he
personally rejected Wynn Resorts’ anti-bribery rules and regulations, as well as legal prohibitions
against making such payments to government officials. Mr. Okada also stated that paying bribes
to government officials was a common business practice in certain Asian countries, and that the
important thing was to channel such illegal payments through third parties. Given that such
conduct is prohibited by law in virtually every Asian country, as well as the United States, this

was a shocking statement for Mr. Okada to make.

35.  Mr. Okada responded to the rift he had opened with the other Board members
through such comments by counter-attacking. At a Board meeting held on April 18, 2011,

Mr. Okada was the lone director to vote against a proposed charitable gift to the University of
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Macau Development Foundation. At the time, Mr. Okada’s stated concem related solely to the
length of the commitment, not its propriety. Mr. Okada has subsequently asserted, however, that
the charitable gift violated the FCPA, and he has sued Wynn Resorts in this Court seeking
documents and records related to the Board’s decision to authorize the charitable gift. These
claims are baseless, and they are designed to divert attention from Mr. Okada’s own misconduct
and breaches of fiduciary duty.

36. Mr. Okada’s business activities in the Philippines were again discussed at a
Wynn Resorts Board meeting held on July 28, 2011. At that time, Mr, Okada confirmed to the
Board that notwithstanding his fellow directors’ stated concerns, he was proceeding with his
Philippine project. Wynn Resorts’ independent directors expressed great concern regarding
probity issues attendant to Mr. Okada’s decision to do business in the Philippines and the possible
adverse effect that Mr. Okada’s involvement in the Philippines would have on Wynn Resorts.
The Board was advised that the Compliance Committee had engaged a second independent
firm — Archfield Limited (“Archfield”) — to further investigate these issues.

37.  The Compliance Committee reviewed the results of Archfield’s investigation at a
meeting held on September 27, 2011. The reports from Archfield deepened the Compliance
Committee’s concerns about Mr. Okada’s involvement in the Philippines.

38.  As described therein, Archfield’s investigation identified additional anomalies and
apparent improprieties related to Mr. Okada’s business activities in the Philippines. Among other
things, Archfield reported that a gaming license had been granted to Mr. Okada’s company
notwithstanding that Mr. Okada did not appear to have a Philippine business partner, as required
by Philippine law. In addition, Archfield cited reports that former Chairman Genuino, with the
support of former President Arroyo, had paved the way for Mr. Okada to obtain title to the land

on which his casino resort was to be located in a clear reversal of Philippine policy on foreign

investment.

39.  Archfield also reported that former PAGCOR Chairman Genuino, the government
official who had authorized Mr. Okada’s gaming license and who had direct regulatory authority

over Mr. Okada’s project in the Philippines, had been removed from office and was under
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investigation for potential misconduct. This was particularly troubling for the Compliance
Committee given the report from Archfield that former Chairman Genuino and former
President Arroyo were “strongly rumored to have profited from their relationship with Okada.”

40, A few days later, at the direction of the Compliance Committee, Wynn Resorts
management met with Mr, Okada’s attomeys, including Robert Faiss of the Lionel Sawyer firm,
to discuss Wynn Resorts’ concemns relative to Mr. Okada’s business activities in the Philippines
and the potential adverse effect of those activities on Wynn Resorts’ privileged status as a gaming
licensee. At this meeting, the Wynn Resorts representatives made clear that Mr. Okada’s alleged
activities in the Philippines posed substantial risks for Wynn Resorts and needed to be explained
post haste. Wynn Resorts’ concerns were ill-received, and the meeting was not productive.
Mr. Okada’s representatives refused to disclose the full factual circumstances surrounding his
business activities in the Philippines, much less provide an explanation for those activities that
might somehow address the Company’s concerns.

41.  Around this same time, Wynn Resorts was preparing to hold a training session for
its directors regarding the FCPA. The training session was scheduled for Oc.tober 31, 2011, the
day before a scheduled in-person Board meeting, and Mr. Okada (through his assistant) had
previously sent an RSVP indicating that he would attend. Six days before the session, however,
Mr. Okada requested that the training materials be translated into Japanese (despite his previous,
long-term practice of translating all materials on his own) and that the date of the session be
moved (despite that it had been planned around his previous confirmation). Wynn Resorts
accommodated Mr. Okada’s first request by obtaining a Japanese translation of the training
materials and arranging for professional translators to be available to assist Mr. Okada at the
session. Ultimately, however, although he was present at the Board meeting held the very next
day, Mr. Okada was the sole Board member who failed to attend the FCPA training session in
October 2011, with all other directors appearing in person or telephonically. Mr. Okada likewise
was the sole Board member to not attend a similar FCPA training session held in 2012.
Mr. Okada’s refusal to attend these training sessions further demonstrates his disregard for his

obligations as a director of a company in a highly regulated gaming industry.
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42. At this point, even if there was insufficient evidence in hand at that time to prove
misconduct by Mr. Okada in the Philippines, it was clear that Mr. Okada had set himself on a
course against the rest of the Board and was acting without regard for the best interests of
Wynn Resorts.  Accordingly, in October 201 1, management was authorized by the Board to
request Mr. Okada’s resignation as a director. Mr. Okada refused.

43, On November 1, 2011, in light of Mr. Okada’s failure to attend mandatory FCPA
compliance training, acknowledge the Company’s internal compliance policies, or to address the
Company’s serious concerns and inquiries about potentially dangerous and illegal activities in the
Philippines, the Board (apart from Mr. Okada) voted unanimously to remove Mr. Okada from his
Vice Chairmanship and to leave the office vacant.

44,  The Board and management have reiterated their request that Mr. Okada resign his
directorship on various occasions between October 2011 and the present date. Mr. Okada has
consistently refused to do so. At a special meeting of the ijn Resorts stockholders held on
February 22, 2013, 99.6% of the shares voted at the meeting were cast in favor of a proposal to
remove Mr. Okada from the Wynn Resorts Board.

Former FBI Director Freeh Investigates

45. By late 2011, the Compliance Committee was sufficiently concerned to seek
further assistance in determining the propriety of Mr. Okada’s activities in the Philippines.
Accordingly, on October 29, 2011, the Compliance Committee determined to retain Mr. Freeh
and his colleagues at Freeh Sporkin & Sullivan LLP to conduct a rigorous investigation.

46.  Over a three-month period, Mr. Freeh and/or his colleagues made several trips to
the Philippines and Macau, reviewed thousands of pages of documents, emails, and public
records, and conducted dozens of interviews, including of every independent director on the
Wynn Resorts Board. By early 2012, Mr. Freeh and his team had uncovered detailed prima facie
evidence of serious wrongdoing by Mr. Okada and his associates.

47.  On February 15, 2012, Mr. Freeh conducted a full-day, in-person interview of
Mr. Okada in Tokyo. Mr. Okada was accompanied by counsel, the former United States Attorney

for the Central District of California. Following the interview, Mr. Freeh advised Mr. Okada and
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his counsel that he would be reporting his findings to the Wynn Resorts Board on February 18,

2012, and invited Mr. Okada to present Mr. Freeh with any exculpatory evidence that might be

available.

At the Board meeting, Mr. Freech made a detailed presentation and provided the

directors with copies of his 47-page written report, outlining the following improprieties, among

others:

Since 2008, Okada and his associates have made multiple payments to and on
behalf of the Philippines’ chief gaming regulators at PAGCOR, the government
officials who directly oversee and regulate Mr. Okada’s licensing agreement to
operate in the Philippines.

For example, records reviewed by Mr. Frech revealed 36 separate instances, from
May 2008 to through June 2011, where Mr. Okada or his associates/affiliates made
payments exceeding $110,000 that directly benefitted senior PAGCOR officials.
This included payments to former PAGCOR Chairman Genuino, current
PAGCOR Naguiat, and their family, friends, and associates.

On one particular occasion in September 2010, Mr. Okada arranged for newly
appointed PAGCOR Chairman Naguiat, his wife, his three children, their nanny,
and other senior PAGCOR officials (one of whom also brought his family) to stay
at Wynn Macau. Mr. Okada and his associates refused to provide Wynn Macau
management with the name of Chairman Naguiat and tried to conceal his identity.
At Mr. Okada’s associates’ request and Mr. Okada’s direction, Chairman Naguiat
and his entourage were provided with the most expensive accommodation, food,
and star treatment. In addition, Mr. Okada’s associates asked that each guest be
provided a $5,000 advance, in cash, during their stay. Following the stay,
Mr. Okada’s associates requested that Wynn Macau reduce the excessive charges
because they feared an investigation and did not want Mr. Okada or his companies

to get in trouble. Wynn Macau refused.
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49.

There is substantial evidence that Mr. Okada, his associates, and companies may
have arranged and manipulated ownership and management of legal entities in the
Philippines under his control, in a manner that may have enabled the evasion of
Philippine constitutional and statutory requirements.

Moreover, close associates and consultants of the former PAGCOR administration
attained positions as corporate officers, directors, and/or nominal shareholders of
entities controlled by Mr. Okada and, in some cases, served as links between
Mr. Okada and the former PAGCOR Chairman.

Mr. Okada has stated his personal rejection of Wynn Resorts’ anti-bribery policies
and applicable anti-bribery laws to his fellow Wynn Resorts directors. Despite
being advised by members of the Wynn Resorts Board and the Company’s counsel
that making payments and providing gifts to foreign government officials is strictly
prohibited, Mr. Okada has expressed a willingness to engage in such conduct when
doing business in Asia.

The nature of Mr. Okada’s gaming license in the Philippines requires continued
oversight by PAGCOR officials. Mr. Okada thus has a strong and continuing
motive to maintain favorable relations with the Chairman and other senior officials
of PAGCOR.

Despite being invited to present exonerating evidence regarding these matters,

Mr. Okada provided no such evidence at his interview with Mr. Freeh in Tokyo or subsequently.

Moreover, Mr. Freeh concluded and advised the Board that Mr. Okada lacked credibility in the

statements he did make concerning his conduct.

50.

The Wynn Resorts Board Redeems Aruze USA’s Shares

The conduct detailed in Mr. Freeh’s report is conduct of a type that, when engaged

in by a person affiliated with a licensed entity, puts the entity’s existing and prospective gaming

licenses at risk. The Board was so advised by two independent experts on Nevada gaming law.
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51.  Thus, following Mr. Freeh’s presentation, the Wynn Resorts Board deliberated at
length and unanimously (except for Mr. Okada) adopted resolutions finding Mr. Okada,
Universal, and Aruze USA to each be an “Unsuitable Person” under Wynn Resorts’ Second
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the “Articles of Incorporation” or “Articles”),

52.  An “Unsuitable Person” is defined in Article VII of the Articles as any “Person
who . . . in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the Corporation, is deemed likely to
jeopardize the Corporation’s or any Affiliated Company’s application for, receipt of approval for,
right to the use of, or entitlement to, any Gaming License.”

53. Having found Mr. Okada, Universal, and Aruze USA unsuitable under the
Articles, the Board had an affirmative obligation under the applicable gaming laws and
regulations to take action to protect the gaming licenses and approvals of Wynn Resorts and its
affiliates. The specific course of action that was available to the Board is set forth in Article VII
of the Articles, which provides that following a determination of unsuitability, “[t]he Securities
Owned or Controlled by an Unsuitable Person or an Affiliate of an Unsuitable Person shall be
subject to redemption by the Corporation, out of funds legally available therefor, by action of the
board of directors, to the extent . . . deemed necessary or advisable by the board of directors. . . 7

54.  On the basis of these express provisions in the Articles, on February 18, 2012,
following Mr. Freeh’s presentation and the Board’s finding of unsuitability with respect to
Mr. Okada, Universal, and Aruze USA, the Board voted to redeem and cancel all of Aruze USA’s
shares of Wynn Resorts stock. In exchange, as expressly permitted by the Articles, the Board
unanimously (except for Mr. Okada) determined to issue to Aruze USA a promissory note with a
face value of approximately $1.936 billion and paying interest at 2% per year as provided for in
the Articles.

Further Evidence of Mr. Okada’s Wrongdoing Comes fo Light Post-Redemption

55.  Following the Board’s unsuitability finding and redemption of Aruze USA’s
shares, further evidence has reportedly come to light revealing the true extent of Mr. Okada’s
breach of fiduciary duty and lack of disclosure regarding his activities in the Philippines. It has

been widely reported in the press that Mr. Okada and his companies are the subject of multiple
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pending investigations relating to the development of Mr. Okada’s project in the Philippines. The
FBI, the Nevada Gaming Control Board, and the Philippine Department of Justice, among many
other organizations, are reportedly gathering additional evidence that Mr. Okada’s companies
paid bribes to Philippine gaming regulators at PAGCOR and their associates to facilitate the
development of Mr. Okada’s casino resort in Manila Bay.

56. At the center of the new evidence that has reportedly come to light is Rodolfo
Soriano, a former consultant to PAGCOR and a close business associate of former PAGCOR
Chairman Genuino. Mr. Freeh’s report to the Wynn Resorts Board in February 2012 described
M. Soriano as a “bag man” for Mr. Genuino. Mr. Soriano is often referred to by his nickname,
“Boysie.”

57.  The evidence reportedly uncovered in the ongoing investigations shows that, in or
about 2009, Mr. Okada and his companies made a strategic “shift to Boysie” to jumpstart the
lagging progress at their Philippine development site. This shift in strategy, it has been reported,
involved Okada-controlled companies paying up to $40 million in bribes to companies controlled
by Mr. Soriano in order to secure benefits from PAGCOR and the Arroyo administration that
were essential to the viability and profitability of Mr. Okada’s project in the Philippines. Of
course, the factual circumstances of these transactions were never disclosed to the Wynn Resorts
Board despite their unquestionable material effect on the Company’s righté and interests.

58.  News reports indicate that on January 14, 2010, Mr. QOkada’s company transferred
$10 million to Subic Leisure and Management (“Subic Leisure™), a Soriano-controlled company
registered in the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Okada’s company transferred an additional
$15 million to Subic Leisure on March 3, 2010, and a further $10 million to Subic Leisure in or
about early May 2010. And, it has been reported that Mr. Okada’s company transferred
$5 million to a Hong Kong shell company named People’s Technology Holding Ltd., of which
Mr. Soriano was the sole shareholder.

59.  The Asahi Shimbun, one of the largest national newspapers in Japan, has reported
that these money transfers were reported to senior management at Universal and were approved

by its board of directors. According to these Asahi Shimbun reports, the money transfers were
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discussed at a Universal board meeting and expressly approved in a board resolution that
Mr. Okada himself signed as the Chairman of Universal. Again, the factual circumstances of
these transactions were never disclosed to the Wynn Resorts Board despite their unquestionable
material effect on the Company’s rights and interests.

60.  Other news reports indicate that in exchange for these illicit payments, between
late 2009 and early 2010, Mr. Okada’s companies won concessions on three critical issues related
to the Philippine project. In Nc;vember 2009, PAGCOR, through its then-Chairman Genuino,
brokered a land swap that Mr. Okada’s company needed to move ahead with construction of its
casino resort. Then, in or about February 2010, then-Philippine President Arroyo signed a
presidential order that permitted foreign investors such as Mr. Okada to have 100-percent
ownership of casinos. Finally, around the same time, the Philippine government approved an
application for corporate tax relief by Mr. Okada’s company.

61. This additional evidence that has reportedly come to light in the ongoing
government investigations is entirely consistent with and supplements the findings contained in
Mr. Freeh’s report to the Wynn Resorts Board, as detailed above. This additional evidence is
consistent with Mr. Okada’s statements to the Wynn Resorts Board in February 2011, discussed
above, regarding Mr. Okada’s perspective on anti-corruption laws and regulations and his
willingness to pay bribes through intermediaries while doipg busincsé in certain Asian countries.
Because Mr. Okada engaged in this reported misconduct while he was associated with
Wynn Resorts, this additional information further demonstrates Mr. Okada’s failure to provide
full and fair disclosure to the Board of the factual circumstances surrounding his and his affiliates’
business dealings in the Philippines, and further supports Wynn Resorts’ claim for breach of
fiduciary duty.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Fiduciary Duty)
(Wynn Resorts against Mr. Okada)

62. Wynn Resorts repeats and realleges the allegations set forth in Paragraphs 1

through 61 above as though fully set forth herein.
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63.  As a director of Wynn Resorts, at all relevant times Mr. Okada owed fiduciary
duties to Wynn Resorts under NRS 78.138 and the common law. Those duties included, without
limitation: (a) the duty nbt to engage in conduct that was likely to damage the corporate interests
of Wynn Resorts; (b) the duty to act in the best interests of Wynn Resorts, as opposed to
advancing his own personal interests; and (c) the duty to make full disclosure to Wynn Resorts
and his fellow directors about his business activities in the Philippines and to avoid concealment
of his wrongful conduct where the interests of Wynn Resorts were concerned.

64.  As set forth herein, Mr. Okada violated his fiduciary duties in several material
ways during the period of 2008 to the date hereof. These violations of Mr. Okada’s duties were
intentionally concealed by him, however, and were not discovered by Wynn Resorts until various
times after 2010, as set forth in more detail herein. Indeed, the details of Mr. Okada’s wrongful
conduct are still coming to light today through the ongoing investigative efforts of government
and regulatory authorities worldwide.

65. Mr. Okada’s breaches of fiduciary duty arise from his plan to have entities he
personally controls develop and operate a resort casino in the Philippines. Specifically, the
breaches occurred when, in furtherance of these plans, Mr. Okada engaged in conduct that was
unethical, unlawful, and apparently criminal.

66. By engaging in such conduct while he was a director of Wynn Resorts, and indeed
while he held the title of Vice Chairman of Wynn Resorts, Mr. Okada directly, knowingly, and
intentionally damaged the interests of Wynn Resorts. This is because Wynn Resorts must be
licensed as an entity in order to operate in the casino industry in Nevada, Macau, and in other
jurisdictions in which Wynn Resorts may seek to operate casino resorts in the future. Such
licensure, both existing and prospective, is put at grave risk by unethical, unlawful, and/or
criminal conduct by any persons who serve as directors of the regulated entity. By engaging in
conduct that could have resulted in risk to Wynn Resorts’ existing and prospective licenses,
Mr. Okada struck at the heart of Wynn Resorts’ corporate interests in clear violation of his duty to

protect and advance the interests of Wynn Resorts.
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67.  Mr. Okada further demonstrated his willingness to damage Wynn Resorts, and his
contempt for his fiduciary duties, by concealing his wrongful conduct from Wynn Resorts and by
refusing voluntarily to resign and sever his links with Wynn Resorts when requested to do so.
This conduct compounded Mr. Okada’s other breaches of duty. In particular, despite requests to
do so at Board meetings and in conversations with senior executives of Wynn Resorts, Mr. Okada
refused to supply information about his activities in the Philippines and indeed refused to confirm
even that he had determined to proceed with his Philippine project. In addition, through his
counsel, Mr. Okada refused to cooperate with the Company’s investigations regarding his
activities in the Philippines or to provide any explanation for the troubling evidence that was
brought to Mr. Okada and his counsel’s attention by Wynn Resorts and its attorneys.

68.  Rather than providing full and fair disclosure, Mr. Okada purposefully covered his
tracks to prevent Wynn Resorts from discovering the extent of his questionable conduct.
Mr. Okada knew that if he was forthcoming with the Company and his fellow directors, and did
not evade their questions about his business activities in the Philippines, Wynn Resorts would
undoubtedly take action to protect itself. Specifically, Mr. Okada did not wish for the
Wynn Resorts Board to use its power under Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation to redeem
the shares he owned through Aruze USA, nor did Mr. Okada wish for Wynn Resorts to
commence the process of removing him as a director by a two-thirds shareholder vote (the only
way in which Mr. Okada could be removed against his will under Nevada law). Mr. Okada’s lack
of candor — when he owed the Company a duty of full and fair disclosure of the factual
circumstances surrounding his business dealings in the Philippines — amounted to an
independent breach of Mr. Okada’s fiduciary duties.

69. In addition, Mr. Okada breached his fiduciary duties by refusing, in 2011 and
2012, to attend the training sessions that Wynn Resorts arranged for its directors to ensure that
they are familiar with Wynn Resorts’ duties to be compliant with all applicable laws and
regulations, and to avoid corrupt conduct. By repeatedly evading such compliance education

without valid excuse, Mr. Okada not only made it more difficult for Wynn Resorts to demonstrate
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the commitment of its Board to compliance, but he also further manifested his position that
anti-corruption laws are irrelevant and of no importance to Mr. Okada.

70.  Mr. Okada’s breaches of duty involved intentional misconduct and knowing
violations of law.

71.  As a result of Mr. Okada’s violations of his fiduciary duties, Wynn Resorts has
suffered harm. In particular, Mr. Okada’s violations of duty, once suspected and/or discovered,
required Wynn Resorts: (a) to investigate his conduct, including to retain the services of three
investigative firms; and (b) to take action pursuant to Nevada law and to Wynn Resorts’ Articles
to protect the corporation from Mr. Okada’s breaches of duty. Wynn Resorts has been damaged
by having to incur and pay the costs associated with these efforts to limit and repair the threatened
damage to Wynn Resorts caused by Mr. Okada’s course of conduct.

72.  As direct and proximate result of Mr. Okada’s acts and omissions, Wynn Resorts
has suffered and will continue to suffer direct, incidental, and consequential damages, in an
amount to be proven at trial, but in any event, in excess of $10,000, plus prejudgment interest.

73.  In committing the acts herein above alleged, Mr. Okada is guilty of oppression,
fraud, and malice toward Wynn Resorts. As such, Wynn Resorts is entitled to recover punitive
damages from Mr. Okada for, inter alia, the purpose of deterring him and others similarly situated
from engaging in like conduct.

74.  As a result of the acts and omissions of Mr. Okada, Wynn Resorts has been
compelled to hire the services of an attorney for the protection of its interests.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Aiding and Abetting Breﬁch of Fiduciary Duty)
(Wynn Resorts against Universal and Aruze USA)

75.  Wynn Resorts repeats and realleges the allegations set forth in Paragraph 1
through 74 above as though fully set forth herein.

76.  As a director, Mr. Okada owed Wynn Resorts a fiduciary duty of loyalty which, as

alleged herein, he breached.
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77.  Universal and Aruze USA knowingly participated in Mr. Okada’s breaches of
fiduciary duty by facilitating and/or actively participating in the unethical, unlawful, and/or
criminal conduct described herein, which conduct has threatened to undermine Wynn Resorts’
reputation as well as its existing and prospective gaming licenses.

78.  As a direct and proximate result of Universal’s and Aruze USA’s acts and
omissions in aiding and abetting Mr. Okada’s breaches of duty, Wynn Resorts has suffered and
will continue to suffer direct, incidental, and consequential damages in an amount to be proven at
trial, but in any event, in excess of $10,000, plﬁs prejudgment interest.

79.  In committing the acts herein above alleged, Universal and Aruze USA are guilty
of oppression, fraud, and malice toward Wynn Resorts. As such, Wynn Resorts is entitled to
recover punitive damages from Universal and Aruze USA for, inter alia, the purpose of deterring
them and others similarly situated from engaging in like conduct.

80.  As a result of the acts and omissions of Universal and Aruze USA, Wynn Resorts
has been compelled to hire the services of an attorney for the protection of its interests.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Declaratory Relief — NRS Chapter 30)
(Wynn Resorts against Mr. Okada, Universal, and Aruze USA)

81. Wynn Resorts repeats and realleges the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1
through 80 above as though fully set forth herein.

82.  To be deemed “suitable” under Nevada gaming law, the applicant must be: (a)a
person of good character, honesty and integrity; (b) a person whose prior activities, criminal
record, if any, reputation, habits and associations do not pose a threat to the public interest of the
State of Nevada or to the effective regulation and control of gaming; and (c) must have adequate
business probity, competence, and experience, in gaming or generally.

83.  Section 3.090 of the Nevada Gaming Regulations provides that a license,
registration, and suitability finding requires, among other things, a person of “good character,
honesty, and integrity” and one “whose background, reputation and associations will not result in

adverse publicity for the State of Nevada and its gaming industry . ...”
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84.  Even after a suitability finding, Regulation 3.080 provides that “[t]he commission
may deny, revoke, suspend, limit condition or restrict any registration or finding of suitability or
application therefor upon the same grounds as it may take such action with respect to licenses,
licensees and licensing; without exclusion of any other grounds.”

85.  In recognition of the central importance of its gaming license to the affairs of the
corporation, the Articles of Incorporation aﬁ'ofd the Wynn Resorts Board the “sole discretion” to
take certain action to protect the gaming licenses and approvals of Wynn Resorts and its affiliates.
Under the Articles, an “*Unsuitable Person’ shall mean a Person who . . . in the sole discretion of
the board of directors of the Corporation, is deemed likely to jeopardize the Corporation’s or any
Affiliated Company’s application for, receipt of approval for, right to the use of, or entitlement to,
any Gaming License.”

86. Following a determination of unsuitability, the Articles of Incorporation provide
that “[tlhe Securities Owned or Controlled by an Unsuitable Person or an Affiliate of an
Unsuitable Person shall be subject to redemption by the Corporation, out of funds legally
available therefor, by action of the board of directors, to the extent . . . deemed necessary or
advisable by the board of directors. If .. . the board of directors deems it necessary or advisable,
to redeem any such Securities, the Corporation shall give a redemption Notice to the Unsuitable
Person or its Affiliate and shall purchase on the Redemption Date the number of shares of the

Securities specified in the Redemption Notice for the price set forth in the Redemption

?

Notice . ...

87.  On February 18, 2012, after receiving Mr. Freeh’s written report and considering
his presentation and the advice of expert gaming counsel, the Wynn Resorts Board of Directors
deliberated at length and thereafter adopted resolutions that; () determined that Mr. Okada,
Universal, and Aruze USA were likely to jeopardize Wynn Resorts’ and its affiliated companies’
existing and prospective gaming licenses; (b) deemed Mr. Okada, Universal, and Aruze USA to

be “Unsuitable Persons” under the Articles of Incorporation; and (c) redeemed Aruze USA’s

23
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shares of Wynn Resorts common stock in exchange for an approximately $1.936 billion
promissory note, in accordance with Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation. |

88.  Aware of the magnitude of his improprieties and what the likely response of any
reasonable board of directors of a Nevada gaming company, Mr. Okada attempted, in advance of
the February 18, 2012 meeting of the Wynn Resorts Board, to set up a defense by disputing the
Board’s authority to act upon Mr. Freeh’s report.

89. In light of the foregoing, Wynn Resorts seeks a judicial declaration that it acted
lawfully and in compliance with its Articles, Bylaws, and other governing documents when it
made the determination set forth herein.

90.  NRS 30.130 states that “all persons shall be made parties who have . . . any interest
which would be affected by the declaration.” Each of Mr. Okada, Universal, and Aruze USA has
interests that will be affected by the declaration that Wynn Resorts seeks. Among other
examples, given the determination by the Wynn Resorts Board that Mr. Okada, Universal, and
Aruze USA are unsuitable persons; none may be shareholders in Wynn Resorts.

91.  Accordingly, a justiciable controversy has arisen between the parties whose
interests are adverse, and the dispute is ripe for adjudication.

92.  As a result of the acts and omissions of Defendants, Wynn Resorts has been
compelled to hire the services of an attorney for the protection of its interests.

WHEREFORE, Wynn Resorts prays for judgment as follows:

1. For compensatory and special damages, in excess of $10,000, in an amount to be
determined at trial;

2. For a declaration that Wynn Resorts acted lawfully and in full compliance with its
Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and other governing documents as set forth herein;

3. For punitive damages;

4, For an award of reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees;
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5. For prejudgment and post-judgment interest on the foregoing sums at the highest

6. For a’n;% addgﬁﬂnai relief this Court deems just and proper.
DATED this ¢0 day of /4
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Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No, 4534
Debra L. Spinelii, Esq,, Bar No. 9685
3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

and.

Paul K. Rowe, Esq. {pro hac vice admitted)
Bradley R. Wilson, Esq, {pro hac vice admitted)
Grant R. Mainland, Esq. (pro hag vice admitted)
WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ

51 West 52nd Strest

Wew York, New York 10019

and

Robert L. Shapire, Esq. {pro hac vice admitied)
GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP | |
10250 Constellation Boulevard, 19th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited
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filing  system  true  and

i the following:

Samuel S, Lionel. Esq.

| Paul R, Ih‘:;mdm}wqi\l Esq,

| Charles H. McCrea, Esq.

[ Steven €. Anderson, Esg.

| LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS

300 Sputh Fourth Street, Suite 1700
Las Vegas, NV 89101

 William R. Urga, Esq,

Martin AL LdtiL La
JOLLEY URG A WIRI}I WOODBURY

| & STANDISH

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th Floor

 Las V egas, NV §9109

correct

copics  of  the

]

/

foregoing

| WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED'S SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT properly addresse

Ronald L. Olson, Esq.

Mark B, Helm, i::qq

Jeffrey Y. Wu, 1 -
MUNGER TOL LEH & OLSON, LLP
3335 South Grand Avenue, 35th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Mare J. S.o.m*;wiu“ld B
MORGAN LEWIS
1701 Market Street

Phi l‘&dﬂlphia, PA 19163

Bf.l] amin | brmth [ bq

Lhust{)phcz 1. Banks, Bsg.
MORGAN LEW I8& BOCK 1US LLP
One Market, Spear Street Tower

San Francisco, CA 941051126

s
A }
.-" £

i\\\“’cb'.?‘Ir f“? »'n r-ﬁ‘*
;‘a‘ivii“&.;;{ ; _‘,:_:-{\

d 1o

& BC&C KIUS LLP

LHEREBY CERTIFY that T am an employee of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, and that on this |
€8 _ | |
,} day of April, 2013, 1 caused to be e-mailed and electronically served through the Court's

PLAINTIFF

An employee df PISANELLI BICE PLLC,
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JIP@pisanellibice.com

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
TLB@pisanellibice.com

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
DLS@pisanellibice.com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: 702.214.2100

Facsimile: 702.214.2101

Paul K. Rowe, Esq. {pro hac vice admitted)
pkrowe@wirk.com

Bradley R. Wilson, Esq. (pro hac vice admitted)
brwilson@wlrk.com

WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ
51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

Telephone: 212.403.1000

Robert L. Shapiro, Esq. (pro hac vice admitted)
RS@glaserweil.com

GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP

10250 Constellation Boulevard, 19th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067
Telephone: 310.553.3000

Electronically Filed
07/11/2013 03:12:59 PM

(g@;;.%

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited, Linda Chen,
Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller,
John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker,

Kimmarie Sinatra, D. Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED, a Nevada
Corporation,

Plaintiff,
VS.

KAZUO OKADA, an individual, ARUZE
USA, INC., a Nevada corporation, and
UNIVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT CORP.,

a Japanese corporation,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS

Case No.: A-12-656710-B
Dept. No.: XI

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
GRANTING UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA'S MOTION TO INTERVENE
AND FOR TEMPORARY AND PARTIAL
STAY OF DISCOVERY

Date of Hearing: May 2, 2013

Time of Hearing: 8:30 a.m.
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Bl PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an "Order Granting United States of America's Motion 1o

Intervene and for Temporary and Partial Stay of Discovery and for Order Shortening Time” was

 PISANELLIBICERLIC
3883 HOWARD HUGHES PARKWAY, SUITE B30

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89169

2
3 ilentered in the above-captioned mutter on July 8, 2013, a true and correct copy of which is.
4 {attached hereto. "TLV
{p‘-“‘tv.‘l‘

5 DATED this J day of July, 2013 f "‘g Sy

PISANELL iBl(z‘l PLLG |
" WY
7 ‘ ‘% 5“~ u 4 3 \‘\

By: WA M A ‘a [ )
g James 1. } _ma;{uh At Bdr No. 4027

Todd L. %m,\\ﬁ,bq; Bar No. 4534
Debra L. Spinetli] Esq., Bar No. 9695
3883 Howard Hu“h:m Parknd} Suite §00
Lag Vegas, ! Nevada 0169

and

Paul I\ﬁ QD\’»L I 3¢]. r;}m&m vice mé’nmffeﬁ
‘Bm{ h%’ R. \3 11%011 qu {pra b Vice admiite 2ed}
WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ
51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

and

Robert L, Shapiro, 8q. gro hae vice admitied)
GrasEr WEIL Fixg JAcons HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPRO, LLP |

10250 Constellation Boulevard, 18th Floor
lLos Angeles, California 90067

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited. Lmda(hcn
Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. [rasii, Robert J. Miller
John A, Moran, Mare L} . Schorr, Alvin 'V,
Shoemaker, Kimmarte Sinatra, B, Boone Wayson,
and Allan Zeman

[

R R R R R

PA001402



oy
L
5
[0
st
—
—
o
TE, LN
"
el
l-". ‘v‘
PR
A
s e
Y
o
—_—

NEVADA 89169

PISANELLE

3883 HOWARD Hix

L4

5

19

21

1=

B3 D J 12 ]
~ s L) 4 LR}

)
43

3

.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HERERBY
\, i

| true and correct copies of the foregoing NOTICE OF

| to the following:

H Samuel S. Lionel, Esq.

{ Paul R, Hejmanowski, Esq.
Charles . McCrea, Esq.
LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1700
Las Vegas, WV 89101

William R, Urga, Esq.
Martin A. Little, Esq.
HIOLLEY URGA WIRIII WOODBURY

& STANDISH

i 3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th Floor
1 Las Vegas, NV 89109

' Ronald L. Olson, Esq.
Mark B. Helm, Esq.

Jeffrey Y. Wu, Esq.
MUNGER TOLLES & OLSON, LLP
3535 South Grand Avenue, 35th £ Toor

Los Angeles, CA 90071

| D&mle ( T, BuLdm q

- lmc kﬂmmn, E,aq

i Roger Wenthe, Esq.

‘ _A's*;ifétal“it United States Attorneys

333 Las Vufﬁd"w Boulevard ‘muth, Suite 5000

Las Venas. NV 80101

CERTIFY that I am an emplo

of Pisanelli Bice PLLC, and that on this

| g f day of July, 2013, 1 caused to be clectronically served through the Court's filing system |

INTRY OF ORDER properly addre

Mare I, Sonnenfeld, Esq.
MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS
1701 Market Strect

Philadeiphia, PA 19103

S LLP

Jaseph E. Floren, Esqg,

BLi}]dﬂHll P. Hnmh, Fsq.

Christopher J. Banks, Esq.
MOROAN LEWIS& BOCKIUS LLP
One Market, Spear Street Tower

San Franciseo, CA 94105-1126

Donald J. Campbell, Esq.

1. Colby Williams, E sq
CAMPBELL & WILLIAMS
700 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101

leffrev H. Knox, Esq.

Chief, Fraud Section, Criminal Division
LLS. Department of Justice

Joey Lipton, Trial Attorney

1400 New Y ork Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20005 -‘

e
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JIP@pisanellibice.com

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
TLB@pisanellibice.com

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No, 9695
D].S@pisanellibice.com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 8§00
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: 702.214.2100

Facsimile; 702.214.2101

Paul K. Rowe, Esq. (admirted pro hac vice)
pkrowe@wlrk com

Bradley R. Wilson, Esq. (admitted pro hac vice)
brwilson@wlrk.com

WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ
51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

Telephone: 212.403.1000

Robert L. Shapiro, Esq. (admitsed pro hac vice)
RS@glaserweil.com

GLASER WEIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP

10250 Constellation Boulevard, 19th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067 -
Telephone: 310.553.3000

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited, Linda Chen,
Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller,

John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V., Shoemaker,
Kimmarie Sinatra, D. Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED, a Nevada Case No.: A-12-656710-B
Corporation, Dept. No.: XI
Plaintiff, ORDER GRANTING UNITED STATES
Vs, OF AMERICA'S MOTION TO

KAZUQ OKADA, an individual, ARUZE
USA, INC., a Nevada corporation, and
UNIVERSAL ENTERTAINMENT CORP.,,
a Japanese corporation,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS

Electronically Filed
07/08/2013 01:56:24 PM

Q%;.W

CLERK OF THE COURT

INTERVENE AND FOR TEMPORARY
AND PARTIAL STAY OF DISCOVERY

AND FOR ORDER SHORTENING
TIME

Date of Hearing:  May 2, 2013
Time of Hearing:  8:30 a.m.
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The United States of America's Motion to Intervene and for Temporary and Partial Stay of
Discovery and for Order Shortening Time (the "Motion to Intervene and Stay"), filed on April 5,
2013, came before this Court for hearing on May 2, 2013. The Motion to Intervene and Stay were
supported by an Ex Parte Declaration in Support of Motion to Intervene and For Temporary and
Partial Stay, which the United States of America submitted to the Court in camera also on
April 5, 2013, simultaneously with the filing of its Motion to File the Ex Parte Declaration under
Seal (the "Motion to File £x Parfe Declaration Under S;éé.l").

For the May 2, 2013 hearing, Joey Lipton, Esq., and Russell E. Marsh, Esq., appeared on
behalf of the United States of America. James J. Pisanelli, Esq., of PISANELLI BICE PLLC,
appeared on behalf of Plaintiff/Counterdefendant Wynn Resorts, Limited and Counterdefendants
Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr,
Alvin V. Shoemaker, Kimmarie Sinatra, D. Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman (the
"Wynn Parties"). Donald J. Campbell, Esq., of Campbell & Williams, appeared on behalf of
Counterdefendant/Cross-defendant Stephen A. Wynn ("Mr., Wynn"). William Urga, Esq,, of
Jolley Urga Wirth Woodbury & Standish, and Jeffrey Y. Wu, Esq., of Munger Tolles &
Olson, LLP, appeared on behalf of Counterdefendant/Counterclaimant/Cross-claimant Elaine P.
Wynn ("Ms. Wynn"). And, Charles H. McCrea, Esq., and Samuel Lionel, Esq., of Lionel
Sawyer & Collins, and Christopher J. Banks, Esq., anq Eric Kraeutler, Esq., of Morgan Lewis &
Bockius LLP, appeared on behalf of Defendant Kazuo Okada and Defendant]
Counterclaimant/Counter-defendant Aruze USA, Inc. ("Aruze USA") and Defendant/
Counterclaimant Universal Entertainment Corp. ("Universal") (the "Okada Parties").

The Court considered the following papers filed on behalf of all of the above-referenced
parties:

e The United States of America's Motion to Intervene and Stay, filed
on April 5, 2013;

e The United States of America's supporting Ex Parfe Declaration,
submitted in camera on April 5, 2013;

e The United States of America's Motion to File Ex Parte Declaration
Under Seal, filed on April 5, 2013;
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e Ms. Wynn's Response to the United States of America's Motion to
Intervene and Stay, filed on April 22, 2013;

e The Wynn Parties and Mr. Wynn's Non-Opposition to the
United States of America’'s Motion to Intervene and Stay and the
United States of America's the Motion to File Ex Parte Declaration
Under Seal, filed on April 25, 2013;

e The Okada Parties' Partial Opposition to the United States of
America's Motion to Intervene and Stay, filed on April 25, 2013;

o The Okada Parties’ Errata to their Partial Opposition to the
United States of America's Motion to Intervene and Stay, filed on
April 26, 2013; *

e The Wynn Parties' Response to the Okada Parties' Partial
Opposition, filed on May 1, 2013;

i

" Unired Staes of Ameriows Moton 15 Tntérvene and Stay, fled on
May 1, 2013; and

e The United States of America's Reply in support of its Motion to
Intervene and Stay, filed on May 1, 2013.

The Court also considered the arguments of counsel presented at the hearing. And, good
cause appearing therefor:

THE COURT HEREBY ORDERS, ADJUDGES, AND DECREES that the United States
of America’s Motion to Intervene and Stay is GRANTED as follows:

1. The United States of America shall be and hereby is an intervening party as a matter of

right in the above-referenced action pursuant to NRCP 24(a)(2); and

2. All discovery in the above-referenced action shall be and hereby is stayed for a period

not to exceed six (6) months (or beyond November 4, 2013).

THE COURT FURTHER HEREBY ORDERS, ADJUDGES, AND DECREES that, based
upon the written Non-opposition filed by the Wynn Parties and Mr. Wynn, as well as oral
confirmation by all parties during the hearing that each and all had no opposition, and FINDING
that sealing is justified by a compelling safety interest identified by the United States of America

that outweighs the public interest in access to the subject document, the United States of

America's Motion to File Ex Parte Declaration Under Seal is GRANTED.
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DATED this .2 day of Juns; 2013.

THE COURT FURTHER HEREBY ORDERS, ADJUDGES, AND DECREES that the

United States of America's 2y Parte Declaration shall be filed under seal.

'j Ai\ <
——

Respectfully submitted by:
DAT F-‘D this ~Tay of June, 2013,

SANE fllBiu- lﬂw}

:' ’"\ =.

3 8 i Keq., Bar 84027
Todd[ Bn:e \Fkq., Bar #4534

Debra L. S mé!.h, Esq., Bar # 9693

3883 Iloward Hughes I’aikwav, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

and

Paul K. Rowe, L‘sq (rdmitted pro hac vice}
Bradley R, W 11801‘! L%q facdusitted pro hae vice
Grant R \/Iamlcmd E 5. fadmitted pra hac vics)
WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN & KATZ

51 West 52nd Street

New York, NY 10019

and

Robert L. Shapiro, F,sq. fadminted pro hae vicgh
GLASER WEIL FINK JACORS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPRRO, LLP
10259 CONSTELLATION Blvd,,
Los Angeles, CA 90067

19th Floor

Attorneys for Wyun Resorts, Limited, Linda
Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. lrani, Robert
1. Miller, John A. Moran, Mare D. bchm'l
Alvin V. Shoemaker, Kimmarie Sinatra, D,
Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman

and

— .
& ﬁw @

THIE I‘IU'Q-O%»‘\BL]:‘ ARLE H GONZALEZ
EIGHTH JEDICIAL RS ICEOURT

Appmv,e..d—aﬂo ﬁrm
el I) ATED this ____ day of June, 2013,
LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS

By:
Samuel 8. Lionel, Esq., Bar # 1766
Charles H. McCrea, Ir., Esq., Bar# 104
Steven C. Anderson, Iisq., Bar # 11901
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1700
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

and -

Mark 1. Sonncenfeld, Esq. sadmited pro hoc vice)
MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
1701 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

and

Joseph E. Floren, I:sq indmitted pra hae vicej
Benjumin . Smlth, 158q. edmitted pro kac vice}
Chmmphcr J. Ba.nks th facimitted pro hac wce}i
MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
(One Market, Spear Street Tower

San Francisco, CA 19103

Attorneys for Kazno Okada, Aruze USA, Inc,,
and Universal Entertainment Corp.

[
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THE COURT FURTHER HEREBY ORDERS, ADIUDGES, AND DECREES that the
United States of America's Ex Parte Declaration shall be filed. under seal
DATED this ___day of June, 2013,

THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

Respectfiully submifted by: Approved as to form by:

PISANELL! BICE PLLC
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar # 4027
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar # 4534

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar # 9695

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

and

Paul K. Rowe, Esq. {admiited pro hec vive)
Bradleﬁ R. Wikon, Esq. (admiited pro hac vice)
Grant R. Mainland, Esq. (@dmitted pro hac vice)
WACHTELL, LTPTON, ROSEN & KATZ

51 West 52nd Street

New York, NY 10019

and

Robert L. Shapiro, Esq. (admitted pro hac vice)
GLASER WHIL FINK JACOBS HOWARD
AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP

10259 CONSTELLATION Blvd., 19th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Attorneys for Wynn Resorts, Limited, Linda
Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani Robert
1. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr,
Alvin V. Shoemaker, Kimmarie Sinatra, D.
Boone Wayson, and Allan Zeman

and

DATED this day of June, 2013, DATED this day of June, 2013,
PISANELLI BICE PLLC LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS
CLon Wel

Samuel S, Lionel, Esq., Bar # 1766
Charles H. McCrea, Jr., Esq., Bar # 104
Steven-C. Anderson, Esq., Bar # 11901
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1700
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

and

Mark J. Sonnenfeld, Esq. (admited pro hac vice)
MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP
1701 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

and

Joseph E. Floren, Esq. (admitied pro hac vics)
Benjamin P. Smith, Esq. (edmived pro hac vice)
Christopher J. Banks, Esq. (adminted pro hac vice}]
MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS [LP

One Market, Spear Street Tower

San Francisco, CA 19103

Attorneys for Kazuo Okada, Aruze USA, Inc,,
and Universal Entertainment Corp.
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CAMPBELL & WILLIAMS

. q.
. Colby Williams, Esq Bar #
700 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, NV 89109

Attorneys for Stephen A. Wynn

Approved as to form and substance by:
DATED this ___ of day of June, 2013.
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By:
Daniel G. Bogden, Esaq.
United States Attorney

Eric Johnson, Esq., Bar # 5381

Roger Wenthe, Esq ., Bar # 8920
Assistant United States Attorneys

333 Las Vegas Blvd/. South, Ste. 5000
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Jeffrey H. Knox, Esq.
Chief, Fraud Section, Criminal Division
U.S. Department of Justice

Joey Lipton

Trial Attorney

1400 New York Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20005
Tel.: (202) 514-0839

Attorneys for Intervenor United States of
America

Approved as to form and substance by:
DATED this ___ of day of June, 2013.

JoLLy URGA WIRTH WOODBURY &
STANDISH

By:
William R. Urga, Esq., Bar # 1195
Martin A, Little, Esq., Bar # 7067
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

and.

Ronald L. Olson, Esq. (admited pro hac vice)
Mark B. Helm, Esq. (admitted pro hac vice)
Jeffrey Y. Wu, ESQ. (admitted pro has vice)
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COUNTERCLAIM

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Counterdefendants Wynn Resorts, Limited (“Wynn Resorts” or the “Company™),
Stephen A. Wynn (“Mr. Wynn” or “Steve Wynn”), Kimmarie Sinatra, Linda Chen, Ray R. Irani,
Russell Goldsmith, Robert J. Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker, D.
Boone Wayson, Elaine P. Wynn, and Allan Zeman (collectively, “Wynn Parties”) have each
individually and in concert with one another, caused the acts and events alleged herein within the
State of Nevada and all are subject to the jurisdiction of this Court. Venue is also proper in this
Court.

2. This matter is properly designated as a business court matter and assigned to the
Business Docket under EDCR 1.61(a) as the claims alleged herein arise from business torts.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

3. Plaintiff and Counterdefendant Wynn Resorts initiated this litigation on the same
night it claims to have forcibly purchased (i.e., “redeemed”) nearly 20% of its own common stock
held by its largest shareholder, Counterclaimant Aruze USA, Inc. (“Aruze USA”). Wynn Resorts
understood that, as soon as it became known that it was doing this, Aruze USA would sue Wynn
Resorts and the Wynn Directors. ! Wynn Resorts had undertaken the redemption in the dead of
night through a rushed and secretive process.

4, Among other things, Wynn Resorts purported to redeem the shares at a flat 30%
discount to the most recent market price. Aruze USA’s interests, valued by the market at more
than $2.7 billion and by Wynn Resorts at $2.9 billion three weeks prior to the redemption, would
be forcibly purchased in exchange for a non-transferable promissory note to pay approximately
$1.9 billion in a single “balloon payment” 10 years from now. So Wynn Resorts raced to court,

electronically filing a complaint at 2:14 a.m. on a Sunday morning — even before giving notice to

'The Wynn Resorts’ Board of Directors (the “Board™), other than Kazuo Okada (“Kazuo Okada”
and “Mr. Okada™), were Steve Wynn, Linda Chen, Russell Goldsmith, Ray R. Irani, Robert J.
Miller, John A. Moran, Marc D. Schorr, Alvin V. Shoemaker, Boone Wayson, Elaine P. Wynn,
and Allan Zeman (collectively, the “Wynn Directors™) during the events underlying the claims

raised in this Counterclaim.
2
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Aruze USA of the purported redemption. Wynn Resorts apparently thought that its position as
the named “plaintiff” would help obfuscate the issues and distract the court from the claims of
wrongdoing sure to be filed against it by Aruze USA and Counterclaimant Universal
Entertainment Corporation (“Universal” and collectively with Aruze USA, “Counterclaimants”).
Wynn Resorts’ cynical tactics are unavailing. Based on the facts and thé law, it is clear that it is
Counterclaimants who have been griecvously damaged in this case, and any suggestion to the
contrary is entirely without credibility.

5. This Counterclaim arises because this purported redemption would: (a) violate the
express terms of agreements between Mr. Wynn, Elaine Wynn and Aruze USA; (b) allow
Mr. Wynn and others to profit unjustly from their illegal acts and a process that was corrupt and
unfair; and (c) subject Aruze USA to an unconscionably punitive remedy based on an unproven
pretext.

6. To be clear at the outset, Aruze USA disputes that any redemption has occurred.
Among other things, even if the redemption provision in the Company’s Second Amended
Articles of Incorporation (“Articles of Incorporation™) was legally enforceable (which it is not),
Aruze USA’s stock has never been subject to the redemption provision in the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation, because Aruze USA entered into a Stockholders Agreement before the Articles
of Incorporation were amended and filed, which preclude any redemption of Aruze USA’s stock.
Specifically, Mr. Wynn covenanted that Aruze USA shall be the “record and Beneficial owner”
of its common shares in Wynn Resorts and “shall have the sole power of disposition [and] sole
power of conversion...” of the shares “with no material limitations, qualification or restrictions
on such rights....” (Emphasis added.) Aruze USA and Mr. Wynn entered into the Stockholders
Agreement before Mr. Wynn unilaterally amended the Articles of Incorporation of Wynn Resorts
to provide a discretionary right to redeem shareholders’ stock. Elaine Wynn later became a party
to the Stockholders Agreement and likewise covenanted that Aruze USA shall have the “sole
power of disposition [and] sole power of conversion™ of its shares in Wynn Resorts. Aruze USA

never agreed in writing to the redemption rights in the Articles of Incorporation, as would be

3
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required to amend the “sole powers of disposition” set forth in the Stockholders Agreement. The
right of redemption thus does not apply to Aruze USA’s shares.

7. Moreover, even if the Articles of Incorporation allowed the redemption of Aruze
USA’s interests in Wynn Resorts (which they do not), Steve Wynn and Elaine Wynn are not
excused from breaching the express terms of the Stockholders Agreement by voting for the
redemption in violation of Aruze USA’s “sole right of disposition and sole right of conversion”
and are liable for all damages caused by their breach. Likewise, by voting in favor of and giving
cffect to the redemption of Aruze USA’s shares, Wynn Resorts and the other individual directors
of Wynn Resorts tortiously interfered with the Stockholders Agreement and are thereby liable for

all damages proximately caused by their interference, including for any losses incurred by Aruze

USA as aresult of the unprecedented $1 billion discount Wynn Resorts purported to apply to.

Aruze USA’s shares.

8. The redemption of Aruze USA’s shares is also invalid and unlawful because there
was no legitimate factual or legal basis to invoke the redemption provision in this case. Wynn
Resorts undertook a secret investigation, hiding the subjects of the investigation from Aruze USA
by erroneously invoking attorney-client privilege and confidentiality, even after Wynn Resorts
had leaked a “report” of the investigation to the Wall Street Journal. Wynn Resorts refused
Aruze USA any reasonable opportunity to respond prior to redeeming Aruze USA’s interests,
despite prior written promises to do so. If Wynn Resorts had provided the opportunity, it would
be clear why redemption is unwarranted.

9. The Wynn Directors breached their fiduciary duties to Wynn Resorts and to Aruze
USA in not undertaking a thorough, independent, and objective examination of the law, facts, and
evidence before purporting to usurp the role of the gaming authorities in finding Aruze USA
“unsuitable.” Similarly, they breached their duties by then voting for a wholly unnecessary and
improper “redemption” on unconscionable terms. As a result, the Wynn Directors cannot rely on
the “business judgment rule,” as they did not act in a fully informed, good faith, and independent

manner, and their actions are both contrary to the law and not objectively reasonable.

4
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10. Mr. Wynn, Kimmarie Sinatra and Wynn Resorts later used the secret and one-
sided investigative report to try and extort Aruze USA into selling its approximately $3 billion
stake in Wynn Resorts to Mr. Wynn at a significant discount.

11.  In addition to the lack of any legal basis for Wynn Resorts’ actions, Aruze USA
sucs because Wynn Resorts, for all its accomplishments, is not a corporation in any ordinary
sense. Rather, Wynn Resorts’ flamboyant Chairman, Mr. Wynn, has run Wynn Resorts as a
personal business, packing the Board with friends who do his personal bidding, and paying key
executives exorbitant amounts for their loyalty.

12.  The wrongful acts complained of here cannot be countenanced, and the purported

taking of Aruze USA’s property cannot stand.

PARTIES

13.  Counterclaimant Aruze USA is a company organized and existing under the laws
of the State of Nevada and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Universal. Aruze USA has its
principal place of business in Las Vegas, Nevada. Aruze USA has been found suitable by the
Nevada Gaming Commission as a stockholder of Wynn Resorts. Aruze USA owns 24,549,222
shares or 19.66% of the total outstanding stock of Wynn Resorts, making it the largest single
owner of Wynn Resorts’ stock.

14.  Counterclaimant Universal (f/k/a Aruze Corp.) is a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Japan. Universal manufactures and sells pachislot and pachinko
machines. Universal is registered with the Nevada Gaming Commission, and has been deemed
suitable by the Nevada Gaming Commission as a 100% shareholder of Aruze USA. Mr. Okada is
the Chairman of the Board of Universal.

15. Counterdefendant Wynn Resorts is a corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Nevada with its principal place of business in Las Vegas, Nevada. Wynn

Resorts’ stock is publicly traded on NASDAQ under the ticker symbol “WYNN.”

5

DEFENDANTS’ FOURTH AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM

PA001416




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

16. Counterdefendant Steve Wynn is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of Wynn Resorts and is a resident of Nevada. Mr. Wynn owns 10,026,708 shares of the
common stock of Wynn Resorts.”

17. Counterdefendant Kimmarie Sinatra is the General Counsel, Secretary, and a
Senior Vice President of Wynn Resorts and, on information and belief, is a resident of Nevada.
Ms. Sinatra owns 40,887 shares of the common stock of Wynn Resorts.

18.  Counterdefendant Elaine P. Wynn is a director of Wynn Resorts and, on
information and belief, is a resident of Nevada. Elaine Wynn is Mr. Wynn’s ex-spouse. Elaine
Wynn owns 9,742,150 shares of the common stock of Wynn Resorts.

19.  Counterdefendant Linda Chen was a director of Wynn Resorts and, on information
and belief, is a resident of Macau. Ms. Chen owns 265,000 shares of the common stock of Wynn
Resorts. Ms. Chen stepped down as a director of Wynn Resorts on December 13, 2012.

20.  Counterdefendant Ray R. Irani is a director of Wynn Resorts and, on information
and belief, is a resident of California. Mr. Irani owns 18,000 shares of the common stock of
Wynn Resorts.

21.  Counterdefendant Russell Goldsmith was a director of Wynn Resorts and, on
information and belief, is a resident of California. Mr. Goldsmith owns 40,000 shares of the
common stock of Wynn Resorts. Mr. Goldsmith stepped down as a director of Wynn Resorts on
December 13, 2012.

22.  Counterdefendant Robert J. Miller is a director and Chair of the Gaming
Compliance Committee of Wynn Resorts and, on information and belief,, is a resident of Nevada.
Mr. Miller owns 20,500 shares of the common stock of Wynn Resorts.

23.  Counterdefendant John A. Moran is a director of Wynn Resorts and, on
information and belief, is a resident of Florida. Mr. Moran owns 190,500 shares of the common

stock of Wynn Resorts.

2 All references to the number of shares owned by Counterdefendants are as of March 1, 2012, as
disclosed in Wynn Resorts’ Schedule 14A Proxy Statement, filed with the SEC on March 7,
2012.
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24.  Counterdefendant Marc D. Schorr was a director and Chief Operating Officer of
Wynn Resorts and, on information and belief, is a resident of Nevada. Mr. Schorr owns 250,000
shares of the cbmmon stock of Wynn Resorts. Mr. Schorr stepped down as a director of Wynn
Resorts on December 13, 2012.

25.  Counterdefendant Alvin V. Shoemaker is a director of Wynn Resorts and, on
information and belief, is a resident of New Jersey. Mr. Shoemaker owns 40,500 shares of the
common stock of Wynn Resorts.

26.  Counterdefendant D. Boone Wayson is a director of Wynn Resorts and, on
information and belief, is a resident of Maryland. Mr. Wayson owns 90,500 shares of the
common stock of Wynn Resorts.

27. Counterdefendant Allan Zeman was a director of Wynn Resorts and, on
information and belief, is a resident of Macau. Mr. Zeman owns 30,500 shares of the common
stock of Wynn Resorts. Mr. Zeman stepped down as a director of Wynn Resorts on December

13, 2012.
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

IL. KAZUQO OKADA AND STEVE WYNN LAUNCH WYNN RESORTS

A. Turned Out By Mirage Resorts, Steve Wynn Turns to Kazuo Okada to

Finance the New Wynn Project

28. Mr. Wynn has a long history of involvement in Las Vegas as a casino operator.
As Las Vegas changed, Mr. Wynn sought to present himself as a representative of the new
“corporate” Las Vegas. Mr. Wynn developed Mirage Resorts, Inc., a casino conglomerate that
owned and operated the Mirage, Treasure Island, and Bellagio. On May 31, 2000, MGM Grand
Inc. completed a merger with Mirage Resorts, Inc. In June 2000, after a bruising boardroom
battle, which centered on allegations that Mr. Wynn misappropriated company funds, MGM
Grand, Inc. ousted Mr. Wynn as Chief Executive Officer of Mirage Resorts, Inc.

29.  Humiliated by his public ouster, Mr. Wynn was anxious to re-enter the casino

business and rebuild his reputation and standing in Las Vegas. He purchased the old Desert Inn
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casino and had plans to build a new casino on the site — it was to be a monument to himself,
called “Wynn.” But Mr. Wynn lacked the capital to fund the development of the casino, so he
undertook an extensive search for investors. Having recently been forced out of Mirage Resorts,
Inc., however, he was shunned by other sources of capital; Mr. Wynn eventually called on
Universal, Aruze USA, and Mr. Okada to become the means for Mr. Wynn to get back on his
feet.

30.  Mr. Okada was and is a highly successful Japanese entrepreneur and himself a
pioneer in the gaming industry. After leaving high school, Mr. Okada attended an electronics
trade school. In 1969, Mr. Okada founded Universal Lease Co. Ltd., which is now Universal.
Mr. Okada became a leader in the businesses of pachinko. In addition, Mr. Okada founded a
company that created one of the first video poker machines. In fact, Mr. Wynn originally met
Mr. Okada when one of Mr. Okada’s affiliated companies, Aruze Gaming America, was selling
electronic gaming machines in Nevada.

31.  Beginning in October 2000, Mr. Wynn used a Nevada limited liability company
called Valvino Lamore, LLC (“Valvino™) as the holding entity for his new Desert Inn casino
project. After in-person discussions between Mr. Wynn and Mr. Okada, Aruze USA made a
contribution of $260 million in cash to Valvino in exchange for 50% of the membership interests
in Valvino effective October 3, 2000. This contribution was the seed capital that allowed for the
development of what is now Wynn Resorts. Valvino is referred to by Wynn Resorts as Wynn
Resorts’ “predecessor.”

32.  In April 2002, Aruze USA made two additional contributions totaling $120 million
to Valvino. Mr. Wynn told Mr. Okada that $30 million was related to Macau, but Mr. Wynn did
not explain to Mr. Okada how Mr. Wynn actually spent the money. Serious questions now exist
about how Mr. Wynn used the money and whether Mr. Wynn used the funds for his personal
benefit and/or for other inappropriate purposes. There are also serious questions about the use of

the other $90 million Aruze USA contributed.
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B. The Stockholders Agreement
33. In 2002, all three owners of LLC interests in Valvino — Mr. Wynn, Aruze USA,

and Baron Asset Fund® — understood that the Wynn organization was planning to go public as

“Wynn Resorts. This required a series of legal steps by which the owners’ interests in Valvino

were converted into shares of a newly formed corporation, “Wynn Resorts, Limited,” that could
then sell additional shares to the public.

34. On April 11, 2002, prior to the filing of the Articles of Incorporation for Wynn
Resorts, Mr. Wynn, Aruze USA, and Baron Asset Fund entered into the Stockholders Agreement,
which imposed certain restrictions on the sale of the stock they were to receive in “NewCo,” the
entity that would become Wynn Resorts. As described in Wynn Resorts’ prospectus, dated
October 29, 2002, “the stockholders agreement establishes various rights among Mr, Wynn,
Aruze USA and Baron Asset Fund with respect to the ownership and management of Wynn
Resorts.”

35.  Notably, the parties to the Stockholders Agreement stated that the terms of that
agreement were a condition of transferring their LLC interests in Valvino to Wynn Resorts. The
Stockholders Agreement stated “as a condition to their willingness to form [Wynn Resorts], either
through the contribution of their interests in the LLC or through a different technique, the
Stockholders are willing to agree to the matters set forth” in the Stockholders Agreement.

36. Under the Stockholders Agreement, Steve Wynn, Baron Asset Fund, and Aruze
USA each warranted and covenanted that “[t]he Stockholder shall be the record and Beneficial
Owner of all of the Shares” of Wynn Resorts” common stock, and “shall have the sole power of
disposition [and] sole power of conversion...” of the shares “with no material limitations,
qualification or restrictions on such rights....” except as provided for under applicable securities

laws and the agreement. (Emphasis added.) The Stockholders Agreement “may not be amended,

changed, supplemented, waived or otherwise modified or terminated, except upon the execution

’ Baron Asset Fund is a Massachusetts business trust comprised of a series of funds. It became a
member of Valvino pursuant to the First Amendment to Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement of Valvino Lamore, LLC, dated April 16, 2001.
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and delivery of a written agreement executed by the parties....” As described in further detail
below, Elaine Wynn made this same covenant to Aruze USA when she became a party to the
Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement in 2010.

37.  Wynn Resorts publicly acknowledged the impact of the Stockholders Agreement
on the Company and the shareholders. The Wynn Resorts share certificates issued to Aruze USA
on September 24, 2002, bear the following express, written legend, in bold and all caps: “THE
SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS
AND CONDITIONS OF A STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT DATED AS OF APRIL 11,
2002....” Additionally, in a Form S-1/A filed with the SEC on October 7, 2002, Wynn Resorts
disclosed that the Stockholders Agreement established “restrictions on the transfer of the shares
of Wynn Resorts’ common stock owned by the parties to the stockholders agreement.” In this
way, Wynn Resorts — and all other stockholders — were aware that there were limitations written
in the Stockholders Agreement on the transferability of the Wynn Resorts’ stock held by Aruze
USA.

38.  The Stockholders Agreement removed Aruze USA from the purview of later-
adopted redemption provisions in Wynn Resorts® Articles of Incorporation, as confirmed by, on
information and belief, Wynn Resorts’ own attorneys before the redemption provisions were
added to the Articles of Incorporation.

39. In addition to restricting the power of disposition and conversion of all stock
distributed pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement, the Stockholders Agreement also contained a
voting agreement, granting Mr. Wynn the right to nominate a bare majority of directors, and
Aruze USA the right to nominate all remaining directors. Each Stockholder covenanted to vote
all of their shares in favor of the directors nominated by Mr. Wynn and Aruze USA. Pursuant to
this voting agreement, Aruze USA repeatedly tried over the years to nominate directors to the
Board of Directors of Wynn Resorts. Each time, Mr. Wynn refused to endorse and vote his
shares in favor of Aruze USA’s proposed directors, instead nominating all of the directors himself

to ensure and perpetuate his complete control of the Board. Finally, the Stockholders Agreement
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gave Mr. Wynn the power of attorney to sign all documentation necessary to transfer Aruze
USA’s LLC interests in Valvino to Wynn Resorts in exchange for Wynn Resorts’ stock, and
thereby created a fiduciary duty as between Mr. Wynn and Aruze USA.

C. Wynn Resorts’ Original Articles of Incorporation

40. On June 3, 2002, Mr. Wynn, on behalf of Wynn Resorts, caused the filing of the
Company’s initial Articles of Incorporation. Those Articles of Incorporation did not include any
provision establishing Wynn Resorts’ purported right to redecm shares held by “Unsuitable
Person|s].”

41.  Echoing a false statement made in a February 19, 2012 Wynn Resorts press
release, Matt Maddox, Wynn Resorts” Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, erroneously stated
in a conference call with investors on February 21, 2012, that the redemption provision in the
Articles of Incorporation had “been there since the Company’s inception.”

D. The Contribution Agreement

42.  Before Wynn Resorts could go public, the LLC interests in Valvino held by
Mr. Wynn, Aruze USA, and Baron Asset Fund had to be transferred to the new Wynn Resorts
entity. This was no small matter. By this point, Aruze USA had contributed some $380 million
in exchange for its LLC interests in Valvino.

43.  On June 10, 2002, Mr. Wynn, Aruze USA, Baron Asset Fund, Wynn Resorts and
the Kenneth R. Wynn Family Trust entered into the Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution
Agreement”), by which they agreed to contribute all of the Valvino membership interests to
Wynn Resorts in exchange for the capital stock of Wynn Resorts. The Wynn Resorts’ stock
acquired by Aruze USA was subject to the provisions of the Stockholders Agreement.

44, Wynn Resorts further agreed that the existing restrictions could be altered only
with Aruze USA’s express written consent. The Contribution Agreement stated: “This
Agreement may nof be modified or amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the

corporation and all of the Holders.” (Emphasis added).
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E. After Securing Aruze USA’s Contribution, Steve Wynn Unilaterally Amends

the Articles of Incorporation

45.  After entering into the Contribution Agreement, but before transferring the LLC
interests in Valvino, Mr. Wynn unilaterally changed Wynn Resorts® Articles of Incorporation to
include a restriction that purportedly allows Wynn Resorts to “redeem” stock held by Wynn
Resorts’ stockholders. At this time, Mr. Wynn was the sole stockholder and director of Wynn
Resorts. It was not until 2012, however, that Mr. Wynn and Wynn Resorts attempted to apply
this redemption restriction to Aruze USA’s shares, even though the Stockholders Agreement
precluded Wynn Resorts from unilaterally adding restrictions to the shares.

46.  Under the Stockholders Agreement, Mr. Wynn had power of attorney to transfer
the LLC interests in Valvino to Wynn Resorts. Although the Contribution Agreement obligated
Mr. Wynn to “as soon as practicable ... deliver or cause to be delivered to Holders certificates
representing the Common Stock[,]” Mr. Wynn delayed the contribution of the LLC interests in
Valvino to Wynn Resorts. On information and belief, the final closing condition under the
Contribution Agreement was met by July 9, 2002. Nevertheless, Mr. Wynn’s delay meant that,
although he had already received Aruze USA’s commitment via the Contribution Agreement and
the Stockholders Agreement, Mr. Wynn would continue to maintain unilateral control over Wynn
Resorts for the period of the delay. This enabled Mr. Wynn to improperly change the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation in an apparent attempt to achieve Mr. Wynn’s own long-term interests at
Aruze USA’s expense. Through this deliberate delay, and the intervening acts taken by
Mr. Wynn before he fulfilled the terms of the Contribution Agreement, Mr. Wynn breached his
fiduciary duties to Aruze USA as the attorney-in-fact of Aruze USA under the Stockholders
Agreement and Contribution Agreement, as well as a director and officer of Wynn Resorts.

47.  On September 10, 2002, Mr. Wynn amended Wynn Resorts’ Articles of
Incorporation. Although this change would purport to alter the securities received by Aruze
USA, Mr. Wynn made the change unilaterally, without affording Aruze USA the opportunity to

vote on the changes, let alone expressly consent in writing to the added restrictions as required in
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the Stockholders Agreement and Contribution Agreement, in order to make the provision
enforceable. The language Mr. Wynn unilaterally added to the Articles of Incorporation provided
a discretionary right of redemption, which the Board of Directors had the right to waive
whenever a waiver “would be in the best interests of the Corporation.” That provision provided,
in pertinent part:

The Securities Owned or Controlled by an Unsuitable Person or an

Affiliate of an Unsuitable Person shall be subject to redemption by

the Corporation, out of funds legally available therefor, by action of

the board of directors, to the extent required by the Gaming

Authority making the determination of unsuitability or to the extent
deemed necessary or advisable by the board of directors. ...

48.  If Mr. Wynn had done what he was bound to do pursuant to the trust and duties
placed in him under the Stockholders Agreement and Contribution Agreement, and transferred
the LLC interests in Valvino to Wynn Resorts before adding the redemption restriction, Aruze
USA would have had the right under Nevada law to vote on the changes to Wynn Resorts’
Articles of Incorporation.

49. Years later, in February 2012, Mr. Wynn, Elaine Wynn, the individual directors,
and Wynn Resorts improperly applied the redemption provision to Aruze USA’s stock and acted
to redeem Aruze USA’s shares, thereby breaching and tortiously interfering with the Stockholders
Agreement. Prior to Wynn Resorts’ improper attempt to apply the redemption restriction to
Aruze USA’s stock, Aruze USA was not and could not have been aware that Wynn Resorts
would ever attempt to apply the discretionary redemption provision against Aruze USA because
the Stockholders Agreement, which predated the amended Articles of Incorporation, gave the sole
power of disposition and conversion of Aruze USA’s stock to Aruze USA, precluding any right
of redemption by the Wynn Resorts. Indeed, on information and belief, counsel for Mr. Wynn
informed Aruze USA’s counsel in or around June 2002, that any redemption restriction, if later

added to the Articles of Incorporation through an amendment, would not to apply to Aruze

USA’s shares.
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50.  Thus, although the first acts perpetrated in furtherance of this fraud occurred in
2002, the misconduct did not cause harm until recently, when Wynn Resorts purported to use the
redemption provision to redeem Aruze USA’s shares in 2012 for a fraction of their true value.

F. Wynn Resorts Goes Public

51.  On September 28, 2002, Mr. Wynn eventually contributed the LLC interests in
Valvino to Wynn Resorts. Thereafter, on October 21, 2002, Mr. Okada became a member of
Wynn Resorts’ Board.

52. On October 25, 2002, Wynn Resorts conducted an initial public offering (“IPO”)
on NASDAQ at §13 per share. At this time, Mr. Okada and Mr. Wynn each owned about 30% of
the outstanding stock. Aruze USA contributed an additional $72.5 million to Wynn Resorts by
purchasing stock through the IPO, and also invested $2.5 million in bonds issued by two
Company subsidiaries, raising its total investment to $455 million. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Okada
became Vice Chairman of Wynn Resorts’ Board.

53. On April 28, 2005, Wynn Las Vegas opened. It was an instant success. On
September 10, 2006, Wynn Resorts opened in Macau. “Encore” hotels followed in both
locations. Again, each property has been very successful. None of this success would have been
possible without the capital funding, support, and expertise of Aruze USA and Mr. Okada.

54.  Asone form of recognition for Aruze USA’s contributions, Wynn Resorts
included a high-end Japanese restaurant at both the Las Vegas and Macau resorts. These
restaurants were named “Okada.”

G. The Close and Trusting Relationship of Steve Wynn and Kazuo Okada

55.  Although they have very different backgrounds and educational experiences, both
Mr. Wynn and Mr. Okada are of similar ages, interests, and ambitions. Beyond their business
dealings, Mr. Wynn gave every indication that he considered Mr. Okada to be a close personal
friend, and repeatedly called him his “partner.”

56. For example, at hearings before the Nevada State Gaming Control Board and

Nevada Gaming Commission, on June 4 and 17, 2004, respectively, Mr. Wynn affirmed that
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“Mr. Okada was not only suitable” to receive a gaming license “but he was desirable.”
Repeatedly referring to Mr. Okada as his “partner,” Mr. Wynn said Mr. Okada was “dedicated to
the pursuit of excellence.”

57.  Inthis sworn testimony, Mr. Wynn also affirmed Mr. Okada’s generosity and
unwavering trust in Mr. Wynn. Mr. Wynn said “I have never dreamed that there would be a man
as supportive, as long-term thinking, as selfless in his investment as Mr. Okada.” Mr. Wynn
recalled a conversation with Mr. Okada on a plane from Macau to Tokyo: Mr. Okada “told me
the most important thing, Steve ... is the right thing. Take the high road. Do the right thing.
Don’t worry about me. I'll support any decision you may make.”

58.  Inrecognition of this trust and in “the spirit of friendship and cooperation that
exists between [Steve] Wynn and Mr. Kazuo Okada . . .” on November 8, 2006, Mr. Wynn
caused Aruze USA to enter into an Amendment to the Stockholders Agreement, which purports
to contain a mutual restriction on the sale of stock without the other party’s written consent, with
all other relevant terms of the Stockholders Agreement remaining unchanged.

59. And, indeed, Mr. Okada trusted Mr. Wynn. Mr. Wynn knew this, and callously
and illegally set out to exploit this trust for his advantage.

III. UNIVERSAL DISCLOSES AND ULTIMATELY PURSUES FOREIGN

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

A. In 2007, Universal Fully Discloses to Wynn Resorts Its Interest In Pursuing a

Casino Project in the Philippines

60.  Universal and Mr. Okada first began exploring the possibility of acquiring and
developing land in the Philippines in 2007, with one possible option for development being a
casino and hotel resort. Although the initial discussions were preliminary, Mr, Okada brought the
opportunity tmmediately to Mr. Wynn, hoping that Wynn Resorts might be interested in
undertaking the project. Mr. Wynn told Mr. Okada that Wynn Resorts was not interested at that

time in pursuing a project in the Philippines. However, Mr. Wynn voiced no concerns at all with
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Universal’s pursuit of the project. Mr. Okada thereafter kept Mr. Wynn fully informed of the
project’s progress.

61. On December 20, 2007, Universal publicly announced a planned casino project in
the Asian market.

62. On April 25, 2008, Universal announced its planned casino project in the
Philippines. While the plans were preliminary, they took shape in the months to come.

63.  From that point on, Wynn Resorts and Universal had an agreement. Universal
could pursue a project in the Philippines, but at least for the time being, it would not formally be a
Wynn Resorts project. On a May 1, 2008 conference call with stock analysts, Mr. Wynn affirmed
that Wynn Resorts’ Board and management team had longstanding knowledge of and fully

supported Universal’s project in the Philippines:

Well, first of all, I love Kazuo Okada as much as any man that I’ve
ever met in my life. He’s my partner and my friend. And there is
hardly anything that I won’t do for him. Now, we are not at the
present time an investor, nor do we contemplate, an investment in
the Philippines. This is something that Kazuo Okada and his
company, [Universal], has done on its own initiative. He consults
me and has discussed it with me extensively and I've given him my
own personal thoughts on the subject and advice. And, to the extent
that he comes to me for any more advice or input, all of us here at
the Company will be glad to give him our opinions. But that’s short
of saying this is a Wynn Resorts project. It is a [Universal] project.

(Emphasis added).

64.  Importantly, Mr. Wynn voiced no concerns about the potential of the Philippine
project competing with Wynn Macau, Ltd. (“Wynn Macau™). As reflected in his public statement
to Wynn Resorts’ shareholders and analysts, Mr. Wynn’s attitude reflected Wynn Resorts’
official position on the Philippine project until at least late 2011 or early 2012 when Mr. Wynn
decided to use it as a pretext to deprive Aruze USA of its stock in Wynn Resorts.

65.  As a further example of Wynn Resorts’ knowledge and approval of Universal and
Aruze USA’s activities in the Philippines, on April 4, 2008, Kevin Tourek, a member of Wynn
Resorts’ Compliance Committee, emailed Frank Schreck, the then-head of Universal’s

Compliance Committee. The email was regarding Universal’s investment in the Philippines.
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Mr. Tourek confirmed that — so long as Universal was in compliance with the laws of the
Philippines — the investment would not be something that would concern Nevada regulators or
Wynn Resorts.

66.  Once again, on September 24, 2009, Wynn Resorts acknowledged Universal’s
proj ect in the Philippines. Wynn Macau’s IPO prospectus explicitly acknowledged Universal’s

plans to develop a casino in the Philippines:

In addition to its investment in Wynn Resorts, Limited, [Universal]
has invested in the construction of a hotel casino resort in the
Philippines, which is anticipated to open to the public in 2010.

Mr. Okada confirms that, as at the Latest Practicable Date, except
for his indirect shareholding interests in Wynn Resorts, Limited
through Aruze USA, Inc., neither he nor his associates holds, owns
or controls more than 5% voting interests in an entity which,
directly or indirectly, carries on, engages, invests, participates or
otherwise 1s interested in any.company, business or operation that
competes, or is reasonably expected to compete, with the business
carried on by us in Macau.

67.  Inthis way, Wynn Macau’s prospectus acknowledged and ratified Universal’s

- plans to open a casino in the Philippines and — by adopting Universal’s statement — affirmed that

a casino in the Philippines will not materially compete with Wynn Macau.

B. With the Blessing of Wynn Resorts, Universal Commits Significant Funds

and Energy to the Philippine Project

68.  As was disclosed fully to Wynn Resorts and the Nevada Gaming Commission,
Universal went about the difficult process of acquiring land and approvals to build a casino in the
Philippines.

69. In 2008, after negotiations with private landowners that spanned several months,
Universal purchased contiguous land in and about a special economic zone in Manila Bay that
was specifically zoned for casinos. It made this purchase with a Philippine-based partner, and at
all times (contrary to statements in the Complaint and by Mr. Freeh) has complied with the laws
of the Philippines requiring the citizenship for landholding.

70.  The Philippine government approached Universal as early as 2006 and courted

Universal for years. The Philippine government ultimately secured an agreement that Universal
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would employ significant numbers of local people to work in the casinos. Press reports estimated
that Universal’s project and surrounding development could create as many as 250,000 jobs for
Filipinos, and generate billions of dollars in tax revenues for the Philippine government. When
Universal delayed the project in the wake of the 2008 financial crisis, the Philippine government
again stepped up its efforts to encourage Universal to advance the development of its project.
While Universal certainly expects the Manila Bay Project to be a “win-win” for the Philippines
and Universal, the idea that Universal needed to curry special favor with Philippine government
officials is profoundly mistaken.

C. Steve Wynn and Elaine Wynn Divorce

71.  In March 2009, Mr. Wynn divorced Elaine Wynn. The divorce proved to be
damaging to Mr. Wynn’s financial position and standing within Wynn Resorts. By early 2010,
Mr. Wynn had reached an agreement to split his ownership of Wynn Resorts’ stock with Elaine
Wynn. As a result of the divorce settlement, Aruze USA was now by far Wynn Resorts’ largest
stockholder, owning some 24,549,222 shares of Wynn Resorts, or 19.66% of the outstanding
stock. Mr. Wynn would now own